

International Journal of Medical Science and Discovery Open Access Scientific Journal www.medscidiscovery.com, Lycia Press London UK ISSN: 2148-6832 Medical Science and Discovery (http://www.medscidiscovery.com) is an international open access, peer-reviewed scientific research journal that provides rapid publication of articles in all disciplines of human health, clinical and basic medical science such as Biophysics, Biochemistry, Histology, Physiology, Genetics, Pathology, Toxicology, Anatomical Sciences, Pharmacology, Embryology, Internal and Surgical Medicine.

The policy of top priority of MSD is to put forward and highlight medical innovations and inspiring patents.

MSD offers an exceptionally fast publication schedule including prompt peer-review by the experts in the field and immediate publication upon acceptance. The editorial board aims at reviewing the submitted articles as fast as possible and promptly including them in the forthcoming issues.

This journal is published under ethical publishing policy of international scientific Bioethics and publication rules.

MSD supports the Open Access Initiative. Abstracts and full texts (HTML and PDF format) of all articles published by MSD are freely accessible to everyone immediately upon publication.

Indexed Databases: Chemical Abstracts (CAS), Index Copernicus, Open Air, ULRICHS Database, Proquest, Advanced Science Index, Turkish Citation Index, Research Bible, Scholar Google, NLM Cataloq

Medical Science and Discovery is an international open access, peer-reviewed scientific research journal. ISSN: 2148-6832 (Print) E-ISSN: 2148-6832 (Online) Category: Multi Disciplinary Health Science Journal Abbreviated key title: Med. Sci. Discov. Frequency: Monthly Review System: Double Blind Peer Review Circulation: Globally, Online, Printed Article Processing Charge (APC): Free Licensing: CC-BY-NC 4.0 International License Environmental Editor-in-Chief: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Dr. Ahmad Rajabzadeh, Anatomical Department of lorestan, University of Medical Sciences, Tabriz, Iran Established: 30.04.2014 Web address: www.medscidiscovery.com E-mail : editor [at] medscidiscovery.com

Design and preparation of PDFs, Language editing, Web site design, Graphical design Services of international Journal of Medical Science and Discovery has been contracted with Lycia Press LONDON, UK (as Publisher), by the MSD Board of Directors

Publisher: Lycia Press Inc. Address: 3rd Floor 86 - 90 Paul Street, EC2A 4NE, London, UK Web address: www.lycians.com Phone : +44 020 3289 9294 E-mail : office [at] lycians.com E-mail : info [at] lycians.com

Honorary Editors

Prof. Dr. Aziz Sancar University of North Caroline, Dept. of Biochemistry-Biophysics, Chapel Hill, NC, USA E-mail: aziz_sancar [at] med.unc.edu

Prof. Dr. Giancarlo BAROLAT Barolat Institute, 1721 E 19th Ave #434, Denver, CO 80218, USA E-mail: gbarolat [at] verizone.net

Prof. Dr. Joyce REARDON University of North Caroline, Dept. of Biochemistry-Biophysics, Chapel Hill, NC, USA E-mail: biocjtr [at] gmail.com

Prof. Dr. Metin TULGAR Yuzuncu Yil University, School of Medicine, Dept. of Biophysics, Van, Turkey E-mail: prof.tulgar [at] gmail.com

Editor in Chief

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Asghar Rajabzadeh Anatomical Department, Lorestan University of Medical Sciences, Khorramabad, Iran E-mail: editor [at] medscidiscovery.com E-mail: dr.a_rajabzadeh [at] yahoo.com Phone: +98 938 472 7705

Deputy Editors

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Michael George KEMP Wright State University, Biological Sciences Bldg II 148, 3640 Colonel Glenn Hwy, Dayton, OH 45435-0001 USA E-mail: mike.kemp [at] wright.edu Fax: +1 (937) 775-2614

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Zafer AKAN Co-Founder MSD, Lycia Press., 3rd Floor 86 - 90 Paul Street, EC2A 4NE, London, UK E-mail: zafer_akan [at] hotmail.com Phone: +44 0 203 289 9294

Editorial Board Members

Prof. Dr. Arash KHAKI Islamic Azad university ,Tabriz branch ,Dept. of Pathology, Tabriz Iran E-mail: arashkhaki [at] yahoo.com

Ph.D. Nezahat Ozlem Arat 5380 Avenue du Parc Apt 4, H2V4G7, Montreal, QC, Canada E-mail: aratzlem[at] gmail.com

Prof. Dr. Nobuo INOTSUME (Vice-president) Hokkaido Pharmaceutical University, Clinical Pharmacology, Hokkaido AC, JAPAN E-mail: nobuo_inotsume [at] hokuyakudai.ac.jp

Ph.D. Ozdemirhan SERCIN Interdisciplinary Research Institute, Université Libre de Bruxelles, Belgium E-mail: ozdemirhan.sercin [at] gmail.com

Ph.D. Shobhan GADDAMEEDHI Washington State University College of Pharmacy, Dept. of Experimental and Systems Pharmacology, Spokane, WA, USA E-mail: shobhan.gaddameedhi [at] wsu.edu

Ph.D. Younes El Bouzekri EL IDRISSI Place Aboubakr, Imm 22, App 6, Bd Fal ould oumeir, Agdal Rabat E-mail: y.elbouzekri [at] gmail.com

Ph.D. Christopher SCHMITT University of California, San Francisco Cardiovascular Res. Inst. CA, USA E-mail: schmittce [at] gmail.com

Ph.D. Yusuf Kemal Demir Research and Development Scientist, Prinst Pharmaceuticals, North Carolina, USA E-mail: phdykd [at] gmail.com

Lycia Press Inc. Editorial Office

Language Editor Elena JALBA Reading University, London, UK E-mail: office [at] lycians.com

Instruction for Authors

Important

- MSD journal team, is committed to deterring plagiarism, including self-plagiarism. Your manuscripts will be screened for similarity detection with iThenticate, Similarity rate is expected under the %30 except for material and method section.
- For research studies using human or animal subjects, the trial's design, conduct and reporting of results must conform to Good Clinical Practice guidelines (such as the Good Clinical Practice in Food and Drug Administration (FDA)-Regulated Clinical Trials (USA) or the Medical Research Council Guidelines for Good Clinical Practice in Clinical Trials (UK)) and/or to the World Medical Association (WMA) Declaration of Helsinki
- Dear Authors, please upload just these three files to the manuscript submission system for article submissions.
- 1- Title Page Sample
- 2- Manuscript Sample
- 3- Copyright Transfer and Author Consent Form
- Please select Keywords from the MESH source
- (https://www.nlm.nih.gov/mesh/MBrowser.html)
- Manuscripts should be prepared in accordance with the "Uniform Requirements for Manuscripts Submission to Biomedical Journals" proclaimed by the International Committee of Medical Journal Editors (www.icmje.org).
- MSD uses vancouver reference style, please prepare articles due to Vancouver reference style rules.
- Manuscript Preperation Rules
- 1.Cover letter
- a- A statement that the manuscript has been read and approved by all the authors.
- b- That the requirements for authorship have been met for all the authors, based on the criteria stated by ICMJE.
- c- Approval of all the authors regarding the order in which their names have appeared.
- d- That each author confirms the manuscript represents honest work.
- e- The name, address, and telephone number of the corresponding author who is responsible for communicating with other authors about revisions and final approval.
- f- The letter should give any additional information that may be helpful to the editor, such as the type or format of the article. If the manuscript has been submitted previously to another journal or in another language, it is helpful to include the previous editor's and reviewers' comments with the submitted manuscript, along with the authors' responses to those comments. Submitting previous evaluatory review of another journal accelerates the review process.
- g- For accepted manuscripts, the authors are requested to fill and sign the journal's cover letter to express their consent for its publication.
- h- To reproduce published material, to use illustrations or tables or report information about identifiable people, the author should submit a copy of the permission with the manuscript to the journal.
- 2.Top Ethic Committee Approval
- Inclusion of the approval letter from the relevant Ethics Committee or Institution's Review Board regarding the research protocol and the rights of the subjects (if applicable to the study)
- 3.Top Consent Form
- Attach a copy of the consent form to the letter, if applicable. Consent forms would be evaluated by the Ethics Committee and then signed by the participant.
- 4.Top RCT or NCT Registration
- Emailing the letter denoting registration of RCTs or NCTs in domestic or international databases (The trial's registration number needs to be mentioned, too).
- 5. Manuscripts submitted in English, must be type written, double-spaced, on good quality A4 paper, or paper of similar format. Authors are requested to reserve margins of at least 2.5cm all around the paper. Original drawings of photos, tables and figures should be furnished together with the manuscripts.
- 6. Manuscripts should be kept to a minimum length and should be subdivided into labeled sections (Title page, Abstract, Keywords, Introduction, Materials and Methods, Results, Discussion, Conclusion, Acknowledgement, and References).
- 7. A title page is to be provided and should include the title of the article, authors' names with full first name (with degrees), authors' affiliation, suggested running title and corresponding author. The affiliation should comprise the department, institution (usually university or company), city and state (or nation). The suggested running title should be less than 50 characters (including spaces) and should comprise the article title or an abbreviated version thereof. For office purposes, the title page should include the name and complete mailing address, telephone and fax number, and email of the one author designated to review proofs.
- 8. An abstract no longer than 250 words for reviews and research articles is to be provided as the second page. Abstract should be structured as objective(s) (including purpose setting), materials and methods, results, and conclusion..

Instruction for Authors

• 9. A list of 3-8 keywords, chosen from the Medical Subject Headings(MeSH)

listhttp://www.nlm.nih.gov/mesh/MBrowser.html, is to be provided directly below the abstract. Keywords should express the precise content of the manuscript, as they are used for indexing purposes. Provide abbreviations and nomenclature list in an alphabetical order and non-standard abbreviations contained in the manuscript (excluding references) with definitions after the keywords. Use abbreviations sparingly and only when necessary to save space, and to avoid repeating long chemical names or therapeutic regimes. In a figure or table, define the abbreviations used in a footnote.

- 10. Tables in limited numbers should be self- explanatory, clearly arranged, and supplemental to the text. The captions should be placed above.
- 11. Figures should be utilized only if they augment understandability of the text. The captions should be placed below. Drawings and graphs should be professionally prepared in deep black and submitted as glossy, black and white clean Photostats. Professionally designed computer generated graphs with a minimum of 300 DPI laser printer output is preferable. Color photographs are welcomed.
- 12. The same data should not be presented in tables, figures and text, simultaneously.
- 13. MSD uses Vancouver referencing Style. References in limited numbers and up-to-dated must be numbered consecutively in order of citation in the text (number in parentheses). Periodical titles should be abbreviated according to the PubMed Journals Database (http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/entrez/query.fcgi?db=journals). Print surnames and initials of all authors when there are six or less. In the case of seven or more authors, the names of the first six authors followed by et al. should be listed.
- Please check all references with EndNote referencing System. Please check out and Download Vancouver Endnote Style.
- Type of Articles
- Type of articles are based on PubMed definitions. For more info please refer to: http://dtd.nlm.nih.gov/publishing/taglibrary/3.0/n-w2d0.html
- Editorial :
- Editorial is Opinion piece, policy statement, or general commentary, typically written by staff of the publication (The similar value "article-commentary" is reserved for a commentary on a specific article or articles, which is written by an author with a contrasting position, not an editor or other publication staff.)
- Letters to the Editor about a recent journal article :
- Letters referring to a recent article in this journal must be received within three months of its publication. For example, a letter referring to an article published in the January issue must be submitted online no later than March 31st. Letters submitted after the allowed time will not be considered.
- The text, not including references, must not exceed 700 words. A maximum of three authors and 10 references are allowed. Neither tables nor figures are allowed.
- Letters to the Editor NOT referring to a recent journal article :
- Original research that is of interest but does not fulfill all the requirements needed for publication as a full-length manuscript can be submitted as a letter to the editor. The letter must have a title and a maximum of three authors.
- The text, not including references, tables, figures or legends must not exceed 700 words. No more than 10 references and either one table or one figure are allowed.
- Word Count Limit: Letters should contain 500 700 words, maximum number of references is 10, maximum Number of illustrations/Tables is 1.
- Original Article:
- The content of the paper must justify its length. For reports of original investigative work, traditional division into sections is required: Title, Keywords, Addresses and which author address for correspondence, Structured abstract, Background, Objectives, Materials/Patients and Methods, Results, Discussion, References and Acknowledgements, Legends for display items (Figures and Tables).
- Original Research articles should contain 2500 3500 words, maximum number of references is 35, maximum Number of illustrations/Tables is 5.
- Review Article :
- Review Articles should contain 3500 4000 words, maximum number of references is 50, maximum number of illustrations/Tables is 5. In a review article both abstract and text of the manuscript, include following items:
- 1) Context: Include 1 or 2 sentences describing the clinical question or issue and its importance in clinical practice or public heath.
- 2) Evidence Acquisition: Describe the data sources used, including the search strategies, years searched, and other sources of material, such as subsequent reference searches of retrieved articles. Explain the methods used for quality assessment and the inclusion of identified articles.
- 3) Results: Address the major findings of the review of the clinical issue or topic in an evidence-based, objective, and balanced fashion, emphasizing the highest-quality evidence available.
- 4) Conclusions: Clearly state the conclusions to answer the questions posed if applicable, basing the conclusions on available evidence, and emphasize how clinicians should apply current knowledge.

Case Report

A case report is a case study, case report, or other description of a case that should contain 1500 - 2000 words with a structured abstract of 200 words maximum. Case reports should comprise sections of Introduction, Case Presentation, and Conclusions in Abstract and Introduction, Case Presentation, and Discussion in full text with not more than 2 tables or figures and up to 20 references.

Brief Report

- Brief Reports should contain 1000 2000 words with a structured abstract of 200 words maximum. Short reports should
 comprise sections of Background, Objectives, Materials & Methods, Results and Discussion with not more than 2 tables or
 figures and up to 20 references.
- Short Communication
- Short Communication, follow the instructions for original articles, except that the total word number of the main text (excluding references, tables and figure legends) is limited to 2000 with no more than 2 figures and/or tables and no more than 15 references. An abstract, not exceeding 150 words, should be presented at the beginning of the article.
- News
- News should contain 1000 2000 words with a structured abstract of 200 words maximum. News should comprise sections of Background, Objectives, Materials & Methods, Results and Discussion with not more than 2 tables or figures and up to 20 references.

Publication Policies

- Manuscripts, or the essence of their content, must be previously unpublished and should not be under simultaneous consideration by another Journal. The authors should also declare if any similar work has been submitted to or published by another Journal. By virtue of the submitted manuscript, the corresponding author acknowledges that all the co-authors have seen and approved the final version of the manuscript. The corresponding author should provide all co-authors with information regarding the manuscript, and obtain their approval before submitting any revisions. Manuscripts are only accepted for publication on the understanding that the authors will permit editorial amendments, though proofs will always be submitted to the corresponding author before being sent finally to press. Prior to the initial submission of a new manuscript, please carefully consider that all authors' names are included as no change to authors' details will be permitted after the acceptance. The decision to accept a contribution rests with the Editorial Board of the MSD.
- Manuscripts will be considered for publication in the form of original articles, Case report, short communications, Letter to editor and review articles. The work should be original or a thorough by an authoritative person in a pertinent field.

Peer review process

All submissions will be reviewed anonymously by at least two independent referees. All manuscripts will be acknowledged upon presenting to the Journal office, provided that all stated requirements are met. Authors are encouraged to suggest names of three expert reviewers, but selection remains a prerogative of the Editor. The whole review process depends on receiving referees comments and revising the manuscripts based on these comments to the author. On receipt of the revised article from the author, and after final approving by referees, the letter of acceptance is issued to the author. Authors have the right to communicate to the editor if they do not wish their manuscript to be reviewed by a particular reviewer because of potential conflicts of interest. No article is rejected unless negative comments are received from at least two reviewers. **MSD employs double blind reviewing process, where both the referee and author remain anonymous throughout the process**.



Ethical Rules and Rights

Conflicts of interest

- Conflicts of interest arise when authors, reviewers, or editors have interests that are not fully apparent and that may influence their judgments on what is published. They have been described as those which, when revealed later, would make a reasonable reader feel misled or deceived. (The Committee on Publication Ethics (COPE) states in its Guidelines on Good Publication Practice 2003).
- Authors should disclose, at the time of submission, information on financial conflicts of interest or other interests that may influence the manuscript. Authors should declare sources of funding for the work undertaken.

Authors Responsibilities

- 1. Authors must certify that their manuscript is their original work.
- 2. Authors must certify that the manuscript has not previously been published elsewhere, or even submitted and been in reviewed in another journal.
- 3. Authors must participate in the peer review process and follow the comments.
- 4. Authors are obliged to provide retractions or corrections of mistakes.
- 5. All Authors mentioned in the paper must have significantly contributed to the research. Level of their contribution also must be defined in the Authors Contributions section of the article.
- 6. Authors must state that all data in the paper are real and authentic.
- 7. Authors must notify the Editors of any conflicts of interest.
- 8. Authors must identify all sources used in the creation of their manuscript.
- 9. Authors must report any errors they discover in their published paper to the Editors.
- 10. Authors must not use irrelevant sources that may help other researches/journals.
- 11. Authors cannot withdraw their articles within the review process or after submission, or they must pay the penalty defined by the publisher.

Editorial Responsibilities

- 1. Editors (Associate Editors or Editor in Chief) have complete responsibility and authority to reject/accept an article.
- 2. Editors are responsible for the contents and overall quality of the publication.
- 3. Editors should always consider the needs of the authors and the readers when attempting to improve the publication.
- 4. Editors should guarantee the quality of the papers and the integrity of the academic record.
- 5. Editors should publish errata pages or make corrections when needed.
- 6. Editors should have a clear picture of a researchs funding sources.
- 7. Editors should base their decisions solely one the papers importance, originality, clarity and relevance to publications scope.
- 8. Editors should not reverse their decisions nor overturn the ones of previous editors without serious reason.
- 9. Editors should preserve the anonymity of reviewers (in half blind peer review journals).
- 10. Editors should ensure that all research material they publish conforms to international accepted ethical guidelines.
- 11. Editors should only accept a paper when reasonably certain.
- 12. Editors should act if they suspect misconduct, whether a paper is published or unpublished, and make all reasonable attempts to persist in obtaining a resolution to the problem.
- 13. Editors should not reject papers based on suspicions; they should have proof of misconduct.
- 14. Editors should not allow any conflicts of interest between staff, authors, reviewers and board members.
- 15. Editors must not change their decision after submitting a decision (especially after reject or accept) unless they have a serious reason.
- The Journal's Policy on Plagiarism
- Any practice of plagiarism will not be tolerated by the journal regarding submitted manuscripts. Non-identifiable quoted segments of articles or close paraphrases from other author/s or even submitting the author's previously published work are known as the act of plagiarism by this journal unless proper use of quotations or paraphrasing with decent citation or referencing are in place. Heavy use of one or a couple of articles is discouraged, even if paraphrased fully. Advertent practice of plagiarism will abort reviewing process or later submission to this journal. All submitted articles will evaluate by iThenticate software belonged to cross check for stop any plagiarism and improve publication quality.

The Journal's Policy on Plagiarism

• Any practice of plagiarism will not be tolerated by the journal regarding submitted manuscripts. Non-identifiable quoted segments of articles or close paraphrases from other author/s or even submitting the author's previously published work are known as the act of plagiarism by this journal unless proper use of quotations or paraphrasing with decent citation or referencing are in place. Heavy use of one or a couple of articles is discouraged, even if paraphrased fully. Advertent practice of plagiarism will abort reviewing process or later submission to this journal. All submitted articles will evaluate by iThenticate software belonged to cross check for stop any plagiarism and improve publication quality.

Statement of Human and Animal Rights

- All submitted articles involving human experiments should be performed only in accordance with the ethical standards provided by the responsible committee of the institution and in accordance with the Declaration of Helsinki (as revised in Edinburgh 2000), available at http://www.wma.net/en/30publications/ 10policies/b3/index.html. Papers describing animal experiments can be accepted for publication only if the experiment conforms the National Institute of Health Guide (National Institute of Health Publications No. 80-23, Revised 1978) for the care and use of Laboratory Animals for experimental procedure. Authors must provide a full description of their anesthetics and surgical procedures. All manuscripts reporting the results of experimental investigations involving human subjects should include a statement confirming the informed consent was obtained from each subject or subject's guardian.
- Humans: When reporting experiments on human subjects, authors should indicate whether the procedures followed were in accordance with the ethical standards of the responsible committee on human experimentation (institutional and national) and with the Helsinki Declaration of 1975, as revised in 2008 (5). If doubt exists whether the research was conducted in accordance with the Helsinki Declaration, the authors must explain the rationale for their approach and demonstrate that the institutional review body explicitly approved the doubtful aspects of the study.
- Animals: When reporting experiments on animals, authors should indicate whether the institutional and national guide for the care and use of laboratory animals was followed.
- All animal or human subjects should be used after approval of the experimental protocol by a local ethics committee.
- Acknowledgements
- Contributors: In acknowledgement section, name people for their contributions or their permission to reproduce their published material, to use their illustrations or provide information about them- try to fully name people who have helped from the conception of the idea to adoption of the hypothesis, to finalization of the study, etc., earnestly. Statement of financial support: Aside from the title page, state any financial or other relationships that might lead to a conflict of interest.
- Copyright
- After acceptance and publication; Medical Science and discovery allows to the author's to hold the copyright without any restriction. Please complete copyright form and send via email to editor. Download MSD Copyright Transfer and Author Consent Form
- Creative Commons License
- This work is licensed under a Creative Commons Attribution-NonCommercial 4.0 International License.(CC BY NC).
- **Copyright 2019:** The Author(s); This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0), which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited. All Rights reserved by international journal of Medical Science and Discovery.
- Disposal of material
- Once published, all draft copies of the manuscript, correspondence and artwork will be held at least for 6 months before disposal. Authors and Readers may find original PDF file of article on backup servers such as LOCKSS (https://www.lockss.org/)
- Digital Object Identifier DOI
- Once a manuscript is accepted for publication it will be provided with a registered DOI number following the acceptance decision. Manuscripts accepted for publication by the MSD will be published as ahead of print articles prior to the printing date of their scheduled issue. Corresponding author will be provided with a PDF Proof by the publisher once the production process of an accepted manuscript is over.

- Article Processing Charge is free
- MSD Article Submission Fee: Free
- MSD Fast Evaluation Process Fee: Free
- MSD Article Evaluation Fee: Free
- Lycia Press Proofreading Service Fee: Desing and preperation of PDFs, Language editing, Graphical design Services of international Journal of Medical Science and Discovery has been contracted with Lycia Press LONDON, UK (as Publisher https://lycians.com), by the MSD Board of Directors. Proof Reading Service Fee depends on your manuscript. Please get contact with lycia press language office for your manuscripts proofreading cost info office@lycians.com

MSD revenue sources and Sponsorships

• All costs arising from the publications are covered by the Sponsor Companies. Sponsorship request evaluates by the MSD Journal Management Board, Lycia Press and the sponsor company logos will be included on the back page of printed magazine and in the sponsor section of journal website

References

- Committee on Publication Ethics (COPE). (2011, March 7). Code of Conduct and Best-Practice Guidelines for Journal Editors. Retrieved from http://publicationethics.org/files/Code_of_conduct_for_journal_editors_Mar11.pdf
- World Association of Medical Editors (WAME). Principles of Transparency and Best Practice in Scholarly Publishing. http://www.wame.org/about/principles-of-transparency-and-best-practice

Contents

Research Article

Analysis of suicidal patients admitted to the emergency rooms and their intensive care requirements: A double-center study in Turkey/ 224-229

Betül Kocamer Şimşek, Şengül Kocamer Şahin

Determining knowledge and administration of nurses in preventing surgical site infections/230-234 Yelda Candan Dönmez, Pelin Sarı

Analysis of breast true-cut biopsies by applying immunohistochemical study of myoepithelial markers /173-179 Mecdi Gürhan Balcı, Mahir Tayfur

Evaluation of risk factors predicting surgical treatment in tuboovarian abscess cases/235-240 Bora Çoşkun, Coşkun Şimşir

Tobacco-alcohol consumption, socio-sanitary profile and factors influencing the anthropometric and cardiorespiratory parameters of Kinshasa smokers/241-248

Vuvu Pierre Gaylord Lofuta, Gael Deboeck, Mboko Augustin Kipula, Kalabo Louise Kikontwe, Bompeka François Lepira, Nzanza Richard Matanda, Bikuku Honore Nkakudulu

Determination of the anxiety, depression and psychological resilience levels of mothers with children diagnosed with attention deficit hyperactivity disorder/249-256 Kübra Abacı Erginyavuz, Nurgül Özdemir

Socio-Economic Status and Intelligence Quotient of primary school-aged children with asthma/257-262 Obinna Chukwuebuka Nduagubam

The use of methotrexate, vincristine, L-asparaginase and dexamethasone for salvaging adult acute lymphoblastic leukemia and lymphoma: a real-life experience/263-267

Funda Pepedil Tanrikulu, Nurhilal Buyukkurt, Mahmut Yeral, Pelin Aytan, Soner Solmaz, Asli Korur, Cigdem Gereklioglu, İlknur Kozanoglu, Can Boga, Hakan Ozdogu

Frequency of depression in patients with Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus: Psychiatric support necessity for diabetic patients/268-271

Erhan Önalan, Yusuf Gökalp, Mehmet Aslan, Burkay Yakar, Emir Döner

Efficacy and safety of intravenous iron sucrose treatment in children with iron deficiency anemia/278-283 Muhammet Furkan Korkmaz, Elif Güler Kazancı, Betül Orhaner

Evaluation of the relationship between MIH severity and dental fear among the children/284-287 Hale Önder Yılmaz **OPEN ACCESS JOURNAL**



Medical Science and Discovery 2019; 6(10):224-9

Research Article

Doi: 10.36472/msd.v6i10.300

Analysis of suicidal patients admitted to the emergency rooms and their intensive care requirements: A double-center study in Turkey

Betul Kocamer Şimşek¹*, Şengül Kocamer Şahin²

Abstract

Objective: In the present study, the clinical and socio-demographic data of the patients who admitted to the emergency department due to suicide attempt, the duration at the emergency department, and hospitalizations are examined. Requirement of intensive care and duration of hospitalization are investigated in the patients with suicide attempt.

Materials and Methods: Patients who were admitted to the emergency department of the hospitals after suicide attempts between 2015 and 2017 and per 2018 were included in the retrospective study. Reason for suicide, suicide modality, duration between the suicide attempt and arrival to the emergency department, suicide time, first treatment at the emergency department, hospitalization, mortality, and the levels at the intensive care unit (ICU) were retrospectively reviewed and analyzed. Data obtained from the archives of the hospitals. SPSS 25.0 (IBM Corporation, Armonk, New York, United States) program was used to analyze the variables.

Results: In the present study, 428 patients were included. Ratio of the female to male patients was 319/109. The mean age of the patients was 29.18 ± 10.48 . 205 patients were single. 136 patients were unemployed. Ninety-four (22.87%) patients were diagnosed with a psychiatric disorder. Four hundred twenty-two (98.59%) of the patients were attempted suicide with drugs/toxics. One hundred ninety-seven patients (49.75%) reported domestic violence and family issues reasons for suicide. Mean duration between the time of suicide and the time to arrive to the emergency department was 100.53 ± 91.82 minutes. One hundred thirty (30.5%) patients were transferred to ICU, and 45 (10.5%) patients were followed in clinical departments. One hundred twenty (92.3%) patients hospitalized in the first-level ICU, 4 (3%) in the second-level ICU, and 6 (4.6%) in the third-level ICU. The mean ICU stay was 2.37 ± 1.48 days.

Conclusion: The suicide attempts were prominent in acute poisoning cases. Majority of the patients stated domestic violence and family issues as a reason of suicide. They were discharged mostly from the emergency department and 10.5% of the patients were kept under surveillance in the departments. When the suicide attempts were evaluated in terms of their time, they were observed during day time at a higher rate.

Keywords: Suicide; Intensive care; Emergency

Introduction

Suicide is a public health problem that concerns communities, provinces and all the countries. More than 800.000 people die each year due to suicide. Suicide is the second most important cause of death between 15- and 29years old patients worldwide (1). Methods of suicide attempt vary according to the countries. The most frequent suicide methods are over dosage, hanging themselves, asphyxiation, jumping out, pesticide poisoning, and use of firearms (2). Pesticide intake is one of the most common methods of suicide attempt globally (1). Most frequently used two methods of suicide leading to death in Turkey are hanging oneself and the use of firearms (3). The patient with suicide attempt can be discharged or hospitalized based on the examination. The need for medical attention and interventions after a suicide attempt varies from 22% to 88% (4). Treatment settings include the department, intensive care unit, and the outpatient treatments. Severe suicide attempts, refusal of treatment, or mental state changes with metabolic, toxic, infectious situations or any other etiology generally require hospitalization (5). In Nordic countries, the rate of the patients requiring intensive care only after overdose varies between 3% and 15.7% (6).

There are limited numbers of studies in which suicidal attempts and the follow-up of the treatment at the intensive care unit are considered and there are no large-scale studies

Received 26-08-2019 Accepted 24-09-2019 Available Online 25-09-2019 Published 30-10-2019



¹ Sanko University, Medicine Faculty, Dept. of Anesthesiology and Reanimation Gaziantep, TR

² Gaziantep University, Faculty of Medicine, Department of Psychiatry, Gaziantep, TR

^{*} Corresponding Author: Betül Kocamer Şimşek E-mail: btlkcmr@yahoo.com Phone: +90 (532) 253 6098

including the interventions at the emergency department and the follow-ups at the intensive care unit in Turkey.

There is a rapidly increasing trend in suicide attempts in Turkey especially in respect of elderly suicides (7,8) and suicidal patients who are required intensive care, poses a significant cost to the health care system in Turkey (9). Current studies in this area are mostly investigated patients who were admitted ICU due to suicide (10). In other perspective, this study investigates the rate of the patients who were in need of intensive care or followed up under clinical conditions after suicide attempt. In this exploratory study, the clinical and socio-demographic data of the patients with suicide attempt who admitted to the emergency department, duration of admission to the emergency department, and hospitalizations are examined. Requirement of intensive care and duration of hospitalization are investigated in the patients with suicide attempt.

Material and Methods

Data collection: The present study was retrospectively conducted at Adana State Hospital and Sanko University Hospital of Faculty of Medical. Approval for the study was granted by the Institutional Ethics Committee of Sanko University, Gaziantep, Turkey (No: 2017/01-4 date: 25.01.2017). Patients who were admitted to emergency departments of the hospitals after suicide attempts between 2015 and 2017 and per 2018 were included in the study. The file numbers, and hospitalization process of the patients were retrospectively reviewed from central electronic file system of the two hospitals. This system includes all data of procedures applied to patients in hospital. Suicide time, arrival time, suicide pattern and reasons were reviewed from the paper charts which had been applied to patients by a nurse and a psychologist when the patient had admitted to emergency due to suicide. Age, gender, relationship status, employment status, alcohol or substance abuse, history of psychiatric disorders, history of chronic illnesses, reason for suicide, suicide modality, previous suicide attempts, history of suicide in family members, duration between the suicide attempt and arrival to the emergency department, suicide time, initial treatment at the emergency department, hospitalization, mortality, and intensive care unit (ICU) levels were retrospectively reviewed and analyzed. If the answers for the said elements were not present in the hospital registries, they were recorded as missing data. Patients' information were received as ananomized.

Statistical analysis: SPSS 25.0 (IBM Corporation, Armonk, New York, United States) program was used to analyze the variables. Chi-Square and Binominal tests are used for the homogeneity of categorical variables, Fisher-Freeman-Holton tests are used for the comparison with each other and they are tested by using the Monte Carlo Simulation technique. The ratios of the columns are compared with each other and expressed according to the Bonferroni corrected p value results. Quantitative variables were shown as mean \pm SD (Standard Deviation) and median (Minimum/maximum) and categorical variables as n (%) in the tables. The variables were examined at

^{dol} http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.300

confidence level of 95% and p value less than 0.05 was accepted as significant.

Results

Totally 458 patients were detected in this review of inpatients records. Patients who have missing data (suicide time, reason etc.) were excluded from the study. Rest of the patients (428) were included the study. Ratio of the female to male patients was 319/109. The mean age of the patients was 29.18 ± 10.48 . Most of the patients were married (n=189) and single (n=205) and others were widow (n=20) or divorced (n=14). The patients were mostly unemployed. One hundred nine patients were housewives (n=109), 103 were working in a job, 58 were students and 3 were retired. Table 1 shows the sociodemographic data of the patients.

Table 1. Demographic data of the cases

		n (%)
Gender		
	Female	319 (74.53)*
	Male	109 (25.47)
Relationship statu	IS	
	Single	205 (47.90)*
	Married	189 (44.16)*
	Widow	20 (4.67)
	Divorced	14 (3.27)
Occupying		
	Unemployed	136 (33.25)*
	Working in a job	103 (25.18)
	Housewife	109 (26.65)
	Student	58 (14.18)
	Retired	3 (0.73)
Age (n: 428)		
	Mean±SD.	29.18±10.48
	Median (Min./Max.)	26 (14 / 67)

Ninety-four patients were diagnosed with a psychiatric disorder, and ninety of them were receiving treatment. Sixteen patients were diagnosed with chronic illnesses as diabetes mellitus, hypertension, cardiac problems and cancer, and 3 of these patients were diagnosed with neurological disorders. Fifteen patients had substance abuse and 31 patients had alcohol abuse. Eighty-five patients had attempted suicide previously, 23 of these patients had a history of suicide attempt in the family members and 21 of them had a history of psychiatric disorders in the family members. Medical history of the patients was analyzed, and they are shown in table 2. **Other comorbidities are diabetes mellitus, hypertension, cardiac problems and cancers. Four hundred twenty-two of the patients were attempted suicide with drugs/toxic substances. Of these patients, 3 attempted suicide with cutting tools, 2 by jumping over (1=4th floor, 1=2nd floor), and 1 by gunshot (died within 12 hours).

The reasons for attempting suicide were analyzed, and 396 patients specified the reason, but 32 patients did not want to give information. In the said 396 patients, majority stated the reason as domestic violence and family issues (n=197) followed by chronic illnesses, (n=64) and others specified the reason as communication problems (n=46), sexual

problems (n=28), economic problems (n=18), loneliness (n=12), alcohol/substance abuse (n=9), parental conflicts (n=8), exams (n=8), Death/lost (n=6), juvenile problems (3), and school (n=2). Table 3 shows the suicide modality of the patients.

Alcohol abuse Yes $31 (7.29)$ No $394 (92.71)^*$ Substance abuse Ves Yes $15 (3.55)$ Comorbidities Vo None $408 (96.45)^*$ Yes $15 (3.55)$ Comorbidities Vo None $409 (96.23)^*$ Other ** $13 (3.06)$ Neurological $3 (0.71)$ Psychiatric disorder Ves Yes $94 (22.87)$ Psychiatric treatment Ves Yes $94 (22.87)$ Psychiatric treatment Ves Yes $90 (23.50)$ History of suicide attempt before Ves No $335 (79.76)^*$ Yes $85 (20.24)$ History of suicide attempt in family members Yes $23 (6.12)$ Psychiatric disorder in family members Yes $23 (6.12)^*$	History		n (%)
Yes $31 (7.29)$ No $394 (92.71)^*$ Substance abuse Yes Yes $15 (3.55)$ Comorbidities None None $409 (96.23)^*$ Other ** $13 (3.06)$ Neurological $3 (0.71)$ Psychiatric disorder $3 (0.71)$ Psychiatric treatment $317 (77.13)^*$ Yes $94 (22.87)$ Psychiatric treatment $317 (77.13)^*$ Yes $94 (22.87)$ Psychiatric treatment $317 (77.13)^*$ Yes $90 (23.50)$ History of suicide attempt before $335 (79.76)^*$ Yes $85 (20.24)$ History of suicide attempt in family members Yes Yes $23 (6.12)$ Psychiatric disorder in family members Yes No $341 (94.20)^*$ Yes $21 (5.80)$	Alcohol abuse		
No $394 (92.71)^*$ Substance abuse No $408 (96.45)^*$ Yes 15 (3.55) Comorbidities None $409 (96.23)^*$ Other ** 13 (3.06) Neurological 3 (0.71) Psychiatric disorder None $317 (77.13)^*$ Yes 94 (22.87) Psychiatric treatment None $293 (76.50)^*$ Yes $90 (23.50)$ History of suicide attempt before None $335 (79.76)^*$ Yes $85 (20.24)$ History of suicide attempt in family members No $353 (93.88)^*$ Yes $23 (6.12)$ Psychiatric disorder in family members No $341 (94.20)^*$ Yes $21 (5.80)$		Yes	31 (7.29)
Substance abuse No 408 (96.45)* Yes 15 (3.55) Comorbidities None 409 (96.23)* Other ** 13 (3.06) Neurological 3 (0.71) Psychiatric disorder None 317 (77.13)* Yes 94 (22.87) Psychiatric treatment Yes 94 (22.87) Psychiatric treatment Ves 90 (23.50) History of suicide attempt before None 335 (79.76)* Yes 85 (20.24) Yes 85 (20.24) History of suicide attempt in family members Yes 23 (6.12) Psychiatric disorder in family members Yes 23 (6.12) Psychiatric disorder in family members No 341 (94.20)* Yes 21 (5.80) Yes 21 (5.80)		No	394 (92.71)*
No $408 (96.45)^*$ Yes 15 (3.55) Comorbidities None $409 (96.23)^*$ Other ** 13 (3.06) Neurological 3 (0.71) Psychiatric disorder None $317 (77.13)^*$ Yes 94 (22.87) Psychiatric treatment None $293 (76.50)^*$ Yes 90 (23.50) History of suicide attempt before No $335 (79.76)^*$ Yes $85 (20.24)$ History of suicide attempt in family members No $353 (93.88)^*$ Yes $23 (6.12)$ Psychiatric disorder in family members No $341 (94.20)^*$ Yes $21 (5.80)$	Substance abuse		
Yes 15 (3.55) Comorbidities None 409 (96.23)* Other ** 13 (3.06) Neurological 3 (0.71) Psychiatric disorder None 317 (77.13)* Yes 94 (22.87) Psychiatric treatment Psychiatric treatment Ves 90 (23.50) History of suicide attempt before No 335 (79.76)* Yes 85 (20.24) History of suicide attempt in family members No 353 (93.88)* Yes Yes 23 (6.12) Psychiatric disorder in family members No 341 (94.20)* Yes Yes 21 (5.80) 516		No	408 (96.45)*
Comorbidities None $409 (96.23)^*$ Other ** 13 (3.06) Neurological 3 (0.71) Psychiatric disorder Ves None $317 (77.13)^*$ Yes 94 (22.87) Psychiatric treatment Ves None $293 (76.50)^*$ Yes 90 (23.50) History of suicide attempt before No Yes 85 (20.24) History of suicide attempt in family members Yes Yes 23 (6.12) Psychiatric disorder in family members No No 341 (94.20)* Yes 21 (5.80)		Yes	15 (3.55)
None $409 (96.23)^*$ Other **13 (3.06)Neurological3 (0.71)Psychiatric disorder $Verrological$ None $317 (77.13)^*$ Yes94 (22.87)Psychiatric treatment $Verrological$ None $293 (76.50)^*$ Yes90 (23.50)History of suicide attempt before $Verrological$ No $335 (79.76)^*$ Yes85 (20.24)History of suicide attempt in family membersNo $353 (93.88)^*$ Yes23 (6.12)Psychiatric disorder in family membersNo $341 (94.20)^*$ Yes21 (5.80)	Comorbidities		
Other 13 (3.06) Neurological 3 (0.71) Psychiatric disorder None 317 (77.13)* Yes 94 (22.87) Psychiatric treatment None 293 (76.50)* Yes 90 (23.50) History of suicide attempt before No 335 (79.76)* Yes 85 (20.24) History of suicide attempt in family members No 353 (93.88)* Yes Yes 23 (6.12) Psychiatric disorder in family members No 341 (94.20)* Yes Yes 21 (5.80) 10		None	409 (96.23)*
Neurological $3 (0.71)$ Psychiatric disorder None $317 (77.13)^*$ Yes $94 (22.87)$ Psychiatric treatment Ves $94 (22.87)$ Psychiatric treatment Ves $94 (22.87)$ History of suicide attempt before Ves $90 (23.50)$ History of suicide attempt before Ves $85 (20.24)$ History of suicide attempt in family members Ves $23 (6.12)$ Psychiatric disorder in family members Ves $23 (6.12)$ Psychiatric disorder in family members Ves $21 (5.80)$		Other **	13 (3.06)
Psychiatric disorder None $317 (77.13)^*$ Yes $94 (22.87)$ Psychiatric treatment Ves None $293 (76.50)^*$ Yes $90 (23.50)$ History of suicide attempt before Ves No $335 (79.76)^*$ Yes $85 (20.24)$ History of suicide attempt in family members No $353 (93.88)^*$ Yes $23 (6.12)$ Psychiatric disorder in family members No $341 (94.20)^*$ Yes $21 (5.80)$		Neurological	3 (0.71)
$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c } \hline None & 317 (77.13)* \\ \hline Yes & 94 (22.87) \\ \hline Psychiatric treatment & & & \\ \hline None & 293 (76.50)* \\ \hline Yes & 90 (23.50) \\ \hline History of suicide attempt before & & \\ \hline No & 335 (79.76)* \\ \hline Yes & 85 (20.24) \\ \hline History of suicide attempt in family members & \\ \hline No & 353 (93.88)* \\ \hline Yes & 23 (6.12) \\ \hline Psychiatric disorder in family members & \\ \hline No & 341 (94.20)* \\ \hline Yes & 21 (5.80) \\ \hline \end{tabular}$	Psychiatric disorder		
Yes 94 (22.87) Psychiatric treatment $Vone$ 293 (76.50)* Yes 90 (23.50) History of suicide attempt before $Vone$ $Vone$ No 335 (79.76)* Yes 85 (20.24) History of suicide attempt in family members Ves $23 (6.12)$ Psychiatric disorder in family members No $341 (94.20)*$ Yes 21 (5.80) Ves		None	317 (77.13)*
$\begin{tabular}{ c c c } \hline Psychiatric treatment & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & &$		Yes	94 (22.87)
$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c } \hline None & 293 (76.50)* \\ \hline Yes & 90 (23.50) \\ \hline \end{tabular} \\ \hline t$	Psychiatric treatment		
$\begin{array}{c c} Yes & 90 \ (23.50) \\ \hline \mbox{History of suicide attempt before} \\ & No & 335 \ (79.76)^* \\ Yes & 85 \ (20.24) \\ \hline \mbox{History of suicide attempt in family members} \\ & No & 353 \ (93.88)^* \\ Yes & 23 \ (6.12) \\ \hline \mbox{Psychiatric disorder in family members} \\ & No & 341 \ (94.20)^* \\ Yes & 21 \ (5.80) \\ \hline \end{array}$		None	293 (76.50)*
History of suicide attempt before No 335 (79.76)* Yes 85 (20.24) History of suicide attempt in family members No 353 (93.88)* Yes 23 (6.12) Psychiatric disorder in family members No 341 (94.20)* Yes 21 (5.80)		Yes	90 (23.50)
No 335 (79.76)* Yes 85 (20.24) History of suicide attempt in family members No Yes 23 (6.12) Psychiatric disorder in family members No No 341 (94.20)* Yes 21 (5.80)	History of suicide attempt be	lore	
Yes 85 (20.24) History of suicide attempt in family members No No 353 (93.88)* Yes 23 (6.12) Psychiatric disorder in family members No No 341 (94.20)* Yes 21 (5.80)		No	335 (79.76)*
No 353 (93.88)* Yes 23 (6.12) Psychiatric disorder in family members No 341 (94.20)* Yes 21 (5.80)		Yes	85 (20.24)
No 353 (93.88)* Yes 23 (6.12) Psychiatric disorder in family members 341 (94.20)* No 341 (94.20)* Yes 21 (5.80)	History of suicide attempt in a	family members	
Yes 23 (6.12) Psychiatric disorder in family members 341 (94.20)* No 341 (94.20)* Yes 21 (5.80)		No	353 (93.88)*
Psychiatric disorder in family membersNo341 (94.20)*Yes21 (5.80)		Yes	23 (6.12)
No 341 (94.20)* Yes 21 (5.80)	Psychiatric disorder in family	members	
Yes 21 (5.80)		No	341 (94.20)*
		Yes	21 (5.80)

Table 3. Suicide descriptive.

Suicide modality	Numbers (%)
Drugs/toxics	422 (98.59)*
Cutting tools	3 (0.70)
High jump	2 (0.47)
Gun	1 (0.24)
Reason for suicide attempt	
Domestic violence and family issues	197 (49.75)*
Chronic illnesses	64 (16.16)
Communication problems	46 (11.62)
Sexual problems	23 (5.81)
Economic problems	18 (4.54)
Loneliness	12 (3.03)
Alcohol/substance abuse	9 (2.27)
Parental conflict	8 (2.02)
Exams	8 (2.02)
Death/lost	6 (1.52)
Juvenile problems	3 (0.76)
School	2 (0.51)
Suicide time	
[24:00-06:00]	75 (18.9)*
[06:00-18:00]	174 (43.9)
[18:00-24:00]	147 (37.1)

The times of suicide attempts were examined in three different periods: evening period (18:00-23:59), night period (00:00-05:59), and day time period (06:00-17:59). The records of the times of suicide attempts were available in 396 patients. Most of the patients attempted suicide

^{dol} http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.300

during the day time period (n=174), secondly in the evening period (n=147), and finally in the night period (n=75) (table 3). Table 4 shows the descriptive characteristics of ICU and the emergency department. Four hundred twenty patients were treated with gastric lavage and activated charcoal in the emergency department, 3 patients with tracheal intubation and transferred to ICU, and 3 patients with tracheal intubation and then immediately transferred to the operating room. One hundred twenty (92.3%) patients hospitalized in first-level ICU, 4 (3%) in second-level ICU, and 6 (4.6%) in third-level ICU.

Table 4. ICU and emergency room descriptives.

Steps in ICU	n (%)
1.Step	120 (92.3) *
2. Step	4 (3)
3. Step	6 (4.6)
Stay in hospital	
Discharge from emergency room	251 (58.9)*
ICU	130 (30.5)
Clinical Services	45 (10.5)
Treatment in emergency room	
Gastric lavage and activated charcoal	420 (98.5)*
Tracheal intubation and transfer to	3 (0.7)
ICU	
Tracheal intubation and transfer to	3 (0.7)
operating room	
Treatment in ICU	
Monitored Care	120 (92.3) *
Hemodialysis	4 (3)
Mechanical ventilation and	3 (2.3)
Hemodialysis	
Mechanical ventilation and operation	3 (2.3)
Discharge from ICU	
Discharged	129 (99.24)*
Death	1 (0.76)

Two hundred fifty one patients were discharged from the emergency department, 130 patients were transferred to ICU, and 45 patients were followed in clinical departments. Mean duration between the time of suicide attempt and the time to arrive to the emergency department was 100.53±91.82 minutes (n=416) (table 5). Sixty-three female and 40 male patients were working in a job, and 92 female patients and 44 male patients were unemployed. The reasons for suicide attempts were mostly domestic violence and family issues (52.7%) in female patients and were mostly the economic problems (13.5%) and illnesses (13.5%) in male patients. The most common cause in all relationship status when the relationship status and the reason of suicide are compared is domestic violence and domestic problems. Similarly, the most common causes in employment conditions when the employment status and the reason of suicide are compared, are domestic violence and domestic problems. Table 6 shows the relationship status, and the occupational status.

Table 5. Time to reach to the emergency room and Stay in ICU.

	Mean±SD.	Median (Min/Max)
Time to reach to the emergency room (min)	100.5±91.8	60 (6 / 540)
Stay in ICU (day)	2.37±1.48	2 (1 / 12)

	Gender		Relationship	status			Occupying				
	Female	Male	Single	Divorced	Widow	Married	Working in a job	Unemployed	Retired	Housewife	Student
	n (%)	u (%)	n (%)	u (%)	n (%)	n (%)	n (%)	n (%)	u (%)	n (%)	n (%)
Domestic violence and family issues	158 (52.7)*	39 (40.6)	69 (37.3)*	9 (64.3)*	7 (41.2)*	112 (62.2)*	51 (52)	51 (40.8)	1 (50)	$64 (61)^{*}$	20 (39.2)
Alcohol/substance abuse	1 (0.3)	8 (8.3)	9 (4.9)	0 (0)	0 (0)	0 (0)	3 (3.1)	4 (3.2)	0(0)	(0)	2 (3.9)
Sexual problems	15 (5)	8 (8.3)	16 (8.6)	0 (0)	1 (5.9)	6 (3.3)	5 (5.1)	6 (4.8)	0)0	5 (4.8)	5 (9.8)
Parental conflict	7 (2.3)	1 (1)	7 (3.8)	0 (0)	0 (0)	1(0.6)	0(0)	7 (5.6)	(0)	(0) (0)	1 (2)
Economical problems	5 (1.7)	13 (13.5)*	7 (3.8)	0 (0)	0(0)	11 (6.1)	6 (6.1)	9 (7.2)	0) (0)	1(1)	1 (2)
Juvenile problems	2 (0.7)	1 (1)	3 (1.6)	(0) (0)	(0) (0)	(0)(0)	0 (0)	0 (0)	(0) (0)	0 (0)	3 (5.9)
Chronic illnesses	51 (17)	13 (13.5)*	29 (15.7)	3 (21.4)	5 (29.4)	27 (15)	22 (22.4)	19 (15.2)	1 (50)	18 (17.1)	4 (7.8)
Communication problems	35 (11.7)	11 (11.5)	26 (14.1)	1 (7.1)	1 (5.9)	18 (10)	11 (11.2)	15 (12)	(0) (0)	12 (11.4)	7 (13.7)
School	2 (0.7)	0 (0)	1 (0.5)	(0) (0)	0 (0)	1 (0.6)	0 (0)	0 (0)	0 (0)	0 (0)	2 (3.9)
Death/lost	6 (2)	0 (0)	2 (1.1)	0 (0)	2 (11.8)	2 (1.1)	0 (0)	2 (1.6)	(0) (0)	4 (3.8)	0 (0)
Exams	6 (2)	2 (2.1)	8 (4.3)	0 (0)	(0)	0 (0)	0 (0)	5 (4)	0 (0)	0 (0)	3 (5.9)
Loneliness	12 (4)	0 (0)	8 (4.3)	1 (7.1)	1 (5.9)	2(1.1)	0 (0)	7 (5.6)	0 (0)	1(1)	3 (5.9)

Discussion

As reported from Turkish Statistical Institute, the number of suicides that resulted in death was 3 thousand 169 in the revised 2014, while it increased by 1.3% in 2015 and became 3 thousand 211, also 72.7% of the suicides were men and 27.3% were women.

The time of suicide per hundred thousand population, and in 2015, it remained unchanged at 4,11 per hundred thousand. In other words, four of every hundred thousand people committed suicide in 2015 (11).

It is critical to understand the extent of suicide attempts in order to develop the protection and intervention programs. The present study contributes to the literature regarding the suicide modalities, duration between the suicide attempt and arrival to the emergency department, time of the suicide attempt, first treatment at the emergency department, hospitalization, and the intensive care unit (ICU) stages in order to monitor suicide-related treatment level.

Previous studies found that suicide attempts are higher in females and males are more likely to have completed suicide (12,13). Similarly, in the present study, the number of suicide attempts were higher in women than in men and 1 person who died due to a suicide attempt was male. Also, being single acts as a risk factor for a suicide attempt (14). Consistently, it was found that suicide attempts were higher in singles.

In the present study, the predominant method for suicide attempt was drug intoxication, and the second reason was slitting his/her wrists. Only 3 patients attempted suicide by slitting their wrists. Drug overdose was found the most common way of attempting suicide in also adolescents like adults (15). This frequency is compatible with the previous studies regarding suicide attempt (13).

Psychiatric disorders, history of suicidal behaviors, and substance abuse are important risk factors for suicide attempt (16,17). In the current study, 94 patients were diagnosed with a psychiatric disorder, 15 had substance abuse, 31 had alcohol abuse, and 85 had a previous suicide attempt. The approaches to interpersonal/relationship problems, psychiatric morbidity may be complementary for the doctors at the emergency department as well as the psychiatrists.

There is a significant correlation between domestic violence and suicide attempt tendency in developing countries (18,19). In the current study including 396 patients, most of the patient stated domestic violence and family issues (n=197) as the reason for a suicide attempt followed by chronic illnesses.

The results of the studies regarding the times of suicide attempt are not consistent. In the present study, the highest incidence rate for suicide attempt was the day time period (06:00-17:59). Times of suicide attempts are analyzed in different time intervals (ex. Most frequent time intervals according to the studies are 15.00-18.00, 06.00-16.00, 12.00-16.00, 8.30-12.30) (20-21), it may be considered that

the suicide attempts are more frequent when the patient is awake in the day time.

One of the distinctive results of the present study is how long the patients reach the emergency department after suicide attempt. In a study conducted in Turkey, the median time from the exposure to substance intake to the ED was 2 hours (22,23). It took 100.53 ± 91.82 minutes to arrive to the emergency department after any suicide attempt in the current study. 130 (30.5%) patients were transferred to ICU, and 45 (10.5%) patients were followed in the clinical departments. The mean ICU stay was 2.37 ± 1.48 days.

The patients who needed intensive care due to suicide attempts were also examined. In a previous study, it was determined that 12.8% of the patients, who applied due to suicide attempt, were admitted to ICU (22). In the present study, 130 (30.5%) patients were transferred to ICU. According to the classification of the ICU levels, 120 patients with suicide attempts, who took drugs, were kept in ICU at first level, 4 patients at the second level (one needed CPAP ventilation, two needed hemodiafiltration, 1 had a Glasgow coma scale of 10). Mechanical ventilation was required for 6 patients, so they were accepted as the ICU level 3. Two of these patients jumped from a high place, 1 attempted suicide with a gun, and 3 had a respiratory failure due to the use of drugs. All the patients in the 1st level were accepted to ICU due to the possible adverse events like arrhythmia, loss of consciousness and respiratory, cardiac, renal or hepatic failures and they were monitored according to the said adverse events as mentioned in the previous studies (6).

In a study in Turkey, it was determined that the rate of deaths caused by the suicide attempts by using drugs is 6%. In another study, this rate was found to be 0.1% (24, 25). According to the findings of World Health Organization, mortality rate after a suicide attempt is 11,4 per 100.000 (1,25,26). In the current study, it was found that 1 patient died by blowing his/her brains out in a suicide attempt. No patient died due to the suicide attempts by using drugs. The result supports the low mortality rate in the suicide attempts in Turkey.

A major limitation of this study is the retrospective design. There are no detailed psychiatric examination findings in the emergency departments.

Conclusion

The suicide attempts were prominent in acute poisoning. Majority of the patients stated domestic violence and family issues as a reason of suicide. They were discharged mostly from the emergency department and 10.5% of the patients were kept under surveillance in the departments. When the suicide attempts were evaluated in terms of their time, they were observed during day time at a higher rate.

Acknowledgments: None

Conflict of Interest: The authors declare no potential conflicts of interest with respect to the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article.

dol http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.300

Author's Contributions: BKŞ, ŞKŞ; Research concept and design, Research the literature, preparation of the article BKŞ; Revision of the article.

References

- 1. World Health Organization. 2014. Preventing Suicide: A Global Imperative.
- Bachmann S. Epidemiology of Suicide and the Psychiatric Perspective. Int J Environ Res Public Health. 2018; 15(7): 1425. doi: 10.3390/ijerph15071425
- Enginyurt Ö, Özer E, Gümüş B, Demir EY, Çankaya S. Evaluation of suicide cases in Turkey, 2007–2012. Med Sci Monit. 2014; 20:614–62. doi: 10.12659/MSM.890689
- Bertolote JM, Fleischmann A, De Leo D, Bolhari J, Botega N, De Silva D et al. Suicide attempts, plans, and ideation in culturally diverse sites: the WHO SUPRE-MISS community survey. Psychol Med. 2005; 35(10):1457-65.
- 5. American Psychiatric Association (APA). 2010. Practice guideline for the assessment and treatment of patients with suicidal behaviors.
- 6. Clark D, Murray DB, Ray D. Epidemiology and outcomes of patients admitted to critical care after self poisoning. 2011; 12
- Yakar M, Temurçin K, Kervankıran I. Suicide in Turkey: its changes and regional differences. Bulletin of Geography. Socio-economic Series. 2017; 35(35): 123-144.
- 8. Koo Y W, Kõlves K, De Leo D. Profiles by suicide methods: an analysis of older adults. Aging & mental health, 2017; 1-7.
- Sut N, Memis D. Intensive care costs of acute poisoning cases. Clinical Toxicology, 2008; 46(5): 457– 460.doi:10.1080/15563650701644295
- Wolk-Wasserman D. The intensive care unit and the suicide attempt patient. Acta Psychiatrica Scandinavica, 1985; 71(6): 581-595.
- http://www.tuik.gov.tr/PreHaberBultenleri.do?id=21516&utm_term= istatistik,nüfus,enflasyon,sanayi,gsyih,demografi&utm_source=twitt erfeed&utm_medium=twitter
- 12. Canetto SS, Sakinofsky. The gender paradox in suicide. Suicide Life Threat Behav. 1998; 28(1):1-23.
- Zeppegno P, Gramaglia C, Castello LM, Bert F, Gualano MR, Ressico F, Coppola I, Avanzi GC, Siliquini R, Torre E. Suicide attempts and emergency room psychiatric consultation. BMC Psychiatry. 2015; 15: 13.
- 14. Davis AT, Schrueder. The prediction of suicide. C Med J. 1990; 5; 153(9): 552-4.
- Doğan M, Öztürk S, Esen F, Demirci E, Öztürk MA " Evaluation of Child and Adolescents who Attempted Suicide." Bozok Tıp Dergisi 8.3: 30-34.
- Moscicki EK. Epidemiology of completed and attempted suicide: toward a framework for prevention. Clin Neurosci Res. 2001; 1:310– 23.
- Yılmaz EB. "Psikiyatri Hastalarında Özkıyım Riskini Değerlendirme ve Yönetme." Psikiyatride Guncel Yaklasimlar-Current Approaches in Psychiatry 2019; 11: 1-1.
- 18. Geneva, Switzerland: The World Health Organization; 2001. World Health Report; 42.
- Yilmaz, N, Kugu, N, Kavakci, O, Dogan, O. "Psychopathology and sociodemographic characteristics in suicide attempters: a single center study." Cumhuriyet Medical Journal 40.3 (2018): 215-225.

Şimşek et al.

- Vollen KH, Watson CG. Suicide in relation to time of day and day of week. Am J Nurs. 1975; 75(2): 263
- Williams P, Tansella M. The time for suicide. Acta Psychiatr Scand. 1987; 75(5): 532–5.
- Altamura C, Van Gastel A, Pioli R, Mannu P, Maes M. Seasonal and circadian rhythms in suicide in Cagliari, Italy. J Affect Disord. 1999; 53(1): 77–85
- Walker X, Lee J, Koval L, Kirkwood A, Taylor J, Gibbs J et al. Predicting ICU admissions from attempted suicide presentations at an Emergency Department in Central Queensland.. Australas Med J. 2013; 6(11): 536–541.doi: [10.4066/AMJ.2013.1730]

doi http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.300

- Kara H, Bayir A, Degirmenci S, Kayis SA, Akinci M, Ak A et al. Causes of poisoning in patients evaluated in a hospital emergency department in Konya, Turkey. J Pak Med Assoc. 2014; 64(9): 1042-8.
- Taktak S, Uzun I, Balcioglu I. Gender differences in completed suicides in Istanbul, Turkey. J Affect Disord. 2013; 145: 394-9.
- Junior DFM, Felzemburgh RM, Dias AB, Caribé AC, Bezerra-Filho S, Miranda-Scippa A.. Suicide attempts in Brazil, 1998–2014: an ecological study. BMC Public Health. 2016; 16: 990.

Copyright © 2019 The Author(s); This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0), (CC BY NC) which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited. International journal of Medical Science and Discovery.

OPEN ACCESS JOURNAL



Medical Science and Discovery 2019; 6(10):230-4

Research Article

Doi: 10.36472/msd.v6i10.303

Determining knowledge and administration of nurses in preventing surgical site infections

Pelin Sarı¹, Yelda Candan Dönmez²*

Abstract

Objective: This study was conducted to define the knowledge and administrations of nurses working in surgical clinics for the prevention of surgical site infections.

Material and Methods: The research sample consisted of 199 nurses who were working in surgical clinics and operating rooms of a university hospital between 02 October and 29 December 2017 and who were volunteers to participate in the study and met the limitations of the study. Data were collected by the researchers through face to face interviews with the nurses included in the study. Data collection tools were developed by the researchers in line with the literature. Sociodemographic characteristics information form, SSI Information Questionnaire and Practice Evaluation Form of Nurses in Preventing SSI were used as data collection tools.

Results: The mean age of nurses participating in the study was 35.2 ± 6.2 years, 97.5% of them were women, 89.4% of them were graduate's degree, 36.2% of them were working in surgical units between 13-60 months, 58.3% in the last two years, 48.7% of them have received training in the site of surgical site infections in the last two years. It was found that 62.3% of the nurses' knowledge status was "moderate". The average score of the practice statements answered by the clinical nurses participated in the research was found out to be $65,16\pm6,11$, by the operating room nurses participated in the research was found that there was a statistically significant relationship between the training status of the operating room nurses participating in the study and their administration scores (p <0.05).

Conclusion: Results obtained from the study; the knowledge and administration scores of the nurses who were trained in CAE were found to be higher.

Key words: Surgical wound, infection, nurses, knowledge, administration

Introduction

Nosocomial infections (NI), which are indicator of quality in inpatient treatment institutions, cause problems such as increased mortality / morbidity rates, prolonged hospital stay and treatment process. NI rates in inpatient treatment institutions can be reduced by following up the surveillance results, comparing these results with other institutions' infection rates and taking effective infection control measures (1). The World Health Organization states that 20% of NI in developed countries and more than 40% in developing countries are preventable (2). Surgical site infection (SSI) is one of the most serious surgical complications and causes serious mortality, morbidity and economic losses. Factors related to the patient and the surgical process influence the improvement of SSI (3,4). It is vital to fully apply the asepsis rules to prevent SSI which occurs in 2-5% of the surgeries and ¼ of all the nosocomial infections. In the surgical wound care which is the responsibility of the nurse and the physician; the most important main goal is to be able to discharge the patient from hospital as soon as possible, before the infection occurs (5). Nurses are one of the primary health workers who interacts the most with patients. Therefore, the contribution of nurses to the prevention of healthcare-related infections is significant (2). The knowledge, attitudes and administrations of nurses to prevent surgical site infections must be up to date and evidence-based (6,7). This study was conducted to define the knowledge and administrations of nurses working in surgical clinics for the prevention of surgical site infections.

Received 27-08-2019 Accepted 28-09-2019 Available Online 30-09-2019 Published 30-10-2019

* Corresponding Author: Yelda Candan Donmez E-mail: candanyelda@hotmail.com



¹ Ege University, Health Sciences Institute, Surgical Nursing, İzmir, TR

² Ege University, Faculty of Nursing, Dept. of Surgical Nursing, İzmir, TR

Material and Methods

This study is descriptive. The population of the study consisted of 288 nurses working in surgical clinics and operating rooms of a university hospital between 02 October and 29 December 2017. The research sample consisted of 199 nurses who were working in surgical clinics (138 nurses) and operating rooms (61 nurses) and who were volunteers to participate in the study and met the limitations of the study and the 69.0% of these samples were reached. Data were collected by the researchers through face to face interviews with the nurses included in the study. Data collection tools were developed by the researchers in line with the literature. Sociodemographic characteristics information form, SSI Information Questionnaire and Practice Evaluation Form of Nurses in Preventing SSI were used as data collection tools.

In Sociodemographic Characteristics Information Form there are ten questions in total on nurses' age, gender, educational status, the department in which they work, working time in the unit, the status of training received on hospital infections and surgical site infections in the last two years, determining the resources of the trainings received. Surgical Site Infections Information Questionnaire includes 10 information questions prepared in line with current guidelines on SSI (8,9). There are information questions about the definition of SSI, types of SSI, risk factors related to surgical process, patient risk factors, results of surgical site infections, surgical site hair removal tool, place of hair removal in surgical site, prophylactic antibiotic renewal time and solutions used in skin preparation. According to the answers given to the information questions by the nurses who participated in the study, their knowledge status was rated as "weak", "moderate" and "good. According to the information questions, 0-40 points were classified as "weak", 41-70 points were classified as "moderate" and 71-100 points were classified as "good".

Practice Evaluation Form of Nurses in Preventing Surgical Site Infections, which includes evidence based nurse administrations in the light of current guidelines, was prepared as two separate questionnaires for clinical and operating room nurses by taking the differences in their administrations into account. There are 15 questions in each form. A 5 points likert-type scale (1 = Never, 2 = Rarely, 3)= Sometimes, 4 = Often, 5 = Always) was used for the answers of the questions. In converting the score into a system of 100, the scores were calculated as; 1 = 0, 2 = 25, 3 = 50, 4 = 75, 5 = 100. In the questions prepared for clinical nurses; new developments related to nosocomial infections, if they follow the current guidelines, their hand washing times, changing gloves when passing from one patient to another, paying attention and compliance with sterility in invasive procedures, recording the medications used routinely by patients and informing the related physician, suggesting patients to stop smoking in the preoperative period, suggesting patients to take a shower with antiseptic solutions at least one day before surgery, checking the blood glucose levels of patients with diabetes before and after surgery, the status of applying prophylactic antibiotics, checking the saturation value of patients in the

^{dol} http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.303

postoperative period and applying the relevant nursing interventions, following the nutritional status of the patients in the postoperative period, taking appropriate isolation measures according to the microorganism that grows in culture results (contact, droplet, respiration), paying attention to signs and symptoms of infection around the operated area in the postoperative period (swelling, redness, gleet, pain, fever), supporting the hydration of the patients if there is no restriction in the postoperative period, informing patients about infection symptoms before discharge from the hospital were questioned. The Cronbach alpha internal consistency coefficient of the form was found to be 0.806.

In the questionnaire prepared for operating room nurses; new developments related to hospital infections, if they follow the current guidelines, frequency of changing their uniforms, using nail varnish or nail polish during working hours, their compliance with the principles of surgical asepsis, notifying the infection control committee about any operating room personnel with respiratory system infection or nasal colonization, if they leave the operating room in their operating room uniforms, their applying the surgical hand washing processes, wearing goggles and face protection against the possibility of splashing blood to the eyes and mucous membranes, wearing masks, changing gloves / aprons during surgery if there are visible contaminations or damage, ensuring that surgical sets are opened just before use, controlling the indicators of the sets that come from the sterilization unit, their performing flash sterilization administrations, keeping the traffic, temperature, ventilation and humidity of the operating room under control were questioned. A 5 point likert-type scale (1 = Never, 2 = Rarely, 3 = Sometimes, 4 = Often, 5 = Always) was used for the answers of the questions. In converting the score into a system of 100 the scores were calculated as; 1 = 0, 2 = 25, 3 = 50, 4 = 75, 5 = 100. The Cronbach alpha internal consistency coefficient of the form was calculated as 0.765. In order to carry out the research, approval of the Scientific Research and Publication Ethics Committee of the related university, application permission from the institution where the research will be conducted and informed consent forms were obtained from the nurses participating in the research.

Statistical Analyzes: Statistical Package for Social Science (SPSS) package software was used. The research population consisted of 288 nurses working in surgical clinics and operating rooms of a university hospital. The research sample included 199 nurses who were working in surgical clinics and operating theaters, volunteered to participate in the research and met the limitations of the study, and 69.0% of the populations were reached. The reliability of the questionnaires was checked with Cronbach alpha coefficients. The normal distribution assumption of knowledge and practice scores was tested by Kolmogrov Smirnov and Shapiro-Wilk tests. As the knowledge and practice scores were not normally distributed, these scores were evaluated using non-parametric tests (Mann Whitney U). When the p value, which is the significance value of all tests, was less than 0.05, it was evaluated as statistically significant.

Results

The age average of the nurses participated in the study was calculated as 35.2 ± 6.2 years. The 97.5% of the nurses participating in the study were women and 89.4% had bachelor's degree. When the term of employment of the nurses in their current units was analyzed, it was found that 36.2% worked between 13-60 months and 30.7% worked over 120 months (Table 1).

The 30.7% of the nurses participated in the study worked in the operating room and 69.3% worked in the clinic. It was found that 58.3% of the nurses participated in the research received training on nosocomial infections in the last two years and 48.7% received training on surgical site infections in the last two years. It was determined that 17.6% of the nurses participated in the research received the training on nosocomial infections during their undergraduate education and 62.3% of them received it during an in-service training program. It was determined that 18.3% of the nurses participated in the research received their training on surgical site infections during their undergraduate education and 65.0% of them received it during an in-service training program. The average score of the nurses participated in the research was found out to be 40 ± 12.45 and the lowest score was 20 and the highest score was 70, according to their answers to the information questions. The average score of the practice statements answered by the clinical nurses participated in the research was found out to be 65.16 ± 6.11 and the lowest score was 42 and the highest score was 75. The average score of the practice statements were answered by the operating room nurses participated in the research was found out to be 64.09 ± 6.93 , and the lowest score was 50 and the highest score was 75 (Table 2). It was found that 35.7% of the nurses' knowledge status was "weak", 62.3% was "moderate" and 2.0% was "good (Table 3).

It was found that there was no statistically significant relationship between the SSI training status and the knowledge scores of the nurses who participated in the research (p > 0.05). It was found that there was no statistically significant relationship between the SSI training status of clinical nurses and their practice scores (p > 0.05). It was found that there was a statistically significant relationship between the SSI training status and practice scores of operating room nurses participated in the study (p < 0.05) (Table 4).

 Table 1. The distribution of Sociodemographic and Professional Life Characteristics of Nurses

Sociodemographic Characteristics		Number	Percentage
	25 and below	8	4.1
	26-30	43	21.6
Age	31-35	55	27.6
	36-40	58	29.1
	41 and above	35	17.6
Condor	Male	5	2.5
Gender	Female	194	97.5
	High school-Associate degree	4	2.0
Graduation status	Bachelor's degree	178	89.4
	Master's degree-PhD	17	8.6
	6 -12 months	19	9.5
Torm of amployment in the aurout unit	13-60 months	72	36.2
Term of employment in the current unit	61-120 months	47	23.6
	Above 120 months	61	30.7
Total		199	100.0

Table 2.	Distribution	of Average	Knowledge an	d Practice Scores	s of Surgical Site	Infections of Nurses
					A	

Measurements	Number	The Lowest	The Highest	Average	SD	Median	Range
		Score	Score	Score			
Knowledge Scores	199	20	70	40	12.45	40.0	50.0
of Nurses							
Practice Scores of	138	42	75	65.16	6.114	66.0	33.0
Clinical Nurses							
Practice Scores of	61	50	75	64.09	6.932	65.0	25.0
Operating Room							
Nurses							

Table 3. Distribution of Knowledge Scores of Nurses on Surgical Site Infections

Knowledge Score	Number	Percentage
Weak	71	35.7
Moderate	124	62.3
Good	4	2.0
Total	199	100.0

Table 4. The Effect of Training Status of Nurses on Surgical Site Infection on their Knowledge and Administrations

Measurements	Training Status	n	x ±SD	Test	р
Knowledge Seens of Numers	Received	116	41.64±12.44	7-1800	0.059
Knowledge Score of Murses	Not received	83	37.83±12.20	L-1.099	0.038
Prosting Sector of Clinical Number	Received	84	65.71±6.47	7-1925	0.069
Fractice Scores of Chilical Nurses	Not received	54	64.30±5.46	Z=-1.823	0.008
Practice Scores of Operational	Received	32	66.0±6.22	7-2102	0.020*
Room Nurses	Not received	29	62.0±7.18	Z2.195	0.028

*: p<0.05 significant

Discussion

Although there have been improvements in asepsis and antisepsis administrations, sterilization methods, operating room ventilation, surgical techniques and appropriate antibiotic prophylaxis, SSI is still an important problem in surgery. This situation leads to more postoperative antibiotic use, prolonged length of hospital stay and increased treatment costs. When the risk factors of SSI are examined, it is stated in the literature that more than half of it can be prevented. It is important that nurses make accurate and rapid decisions to prevent infections and know evidence-based recommendations to ensure quality nursing care.

It was seen that 58.3% of the nurses participated in the research received training on nosocomial infections in the last two years and 51.3% did not receive any trainings on surgical site infections in the last two years. When the literature is reviewed, the ratio of those who received training on nosocomial infections varies between 64.0-95.3% (2,10,11). Although there are many studies in the literature defining the status of nurses receiving in-service training related to NI, the rates vary in all studies. Among the reasons of this variability are the educational policies of the institutions, the number of patients per nurse / workload, the volunteering of nurses / encouraging participation in training and etc. When the information sources of the nurses included in the research were analyzed, it was found out that there were mostly in-service trainings. It shows that in-service training has an important place in updating information on behalf of nursing care. Although the source of information is secondly during undergraduate, graduate and PhD education, the rate is lower. As it is known that most of the nurses participated in the research had bachelor's degree, this ratio suggests that the undergraduate curricula should give more importance to NI and SSI issues. 98% of the nurses included in the research gave the "correct" respond to the statement about SSI results.

The post-operational infection extends the hospital stay for 5-20 days (8,12,13) reported that SSI increased hospital costs by 0.5% on average for all patients (13). SSI has been reported to increase mortality twice, to 60% prolong the length of hospitalization in intensive care units and to increase the readmissions to the hospital by 5 times, resulting in economic loss (14,15). When the relationship between the knowledge score and graduation status of the nurses is analyzed, according to the result of Kruskall Wallis test, there was no statistically significant difference between knowledge score and graduation status. It is similar in literature. Graduation status and knowledge score could not been associated significantly (3,16,17,18). When the relationship between term of employment and knowledge score of the nurses was examined, no statistically significant relationship was found between the two. In support of our study, Mankan and Kasıkcı (2015) and Tank (2016) reported in their studies that there was no significant difference between term of employment of the nurses and their knowledge level in preventing infections (2,19). Contrary to our study, in Naharcı's (2006) research which was conducted with intensive care nurses, when the duration of professional experience and the number of correct questions answered by nurses are compared; as the duration of professional experience increased, the number of correct answers increased (20). It was found that nurses who were trained on SSI had higher knowledge score. In the studies comparing the training status and knowledge level in literature, different results have been obtained. This is thought to be due to factors such as sample size, duration of training received and its effectiveness. When the relationship between SSI training status and practice score of operating room nurses was examined, it was found that there was a statistically significant relationship. In a research conducted by Hasanoğlu on the SSI knowledge level of nurses working in the surgical ward, as a result of the Mann Whitney-U test which was applied in order to determine whether the average scores show a significant

Sarı et al.

difference according to the variable whether they received training related to surgical site infections or not, the difference between the group averages was found to be statistically significant (21).

Conclusion

The results of the research show that the knowledge and practice scores of nurses who received SSI training were higher. It was determined that the practice score of the operating room nurses who got trained about SSI was significantly higher.

According to the results of the research, it is recommended for the consciousness it will create in nurses in preventing SSI more effectively that, to include more SSI related subjects in undergraduate and graduate education programs, to present in-service training programs related to SSI to healthcare workers in line with current guidelines, to emphasize the importance of sharing the results of surveillance performed in hospital with all nurses responsible for the care of surgical patient, to share the result of the study with the related institution and to organize the in-service training program, since this study, which is carried out as a master thesis, is limited in terms of the number of volunteers and the place of study, to recommend that similar studies should be conducted in broader time periods and with increased number of people.

Acknowledgments: None

Conflict of Interest: The authors declare no potential conflicts of interest with respect to the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article.

Author's Contributions: PS, YCD; Research concept and design, Research the literature, preparation of the article **YCD**; Revision of the article.

References

- Özçetin M, Saz EU, Karapınar B, Özen S, Aydemir Ş, Vardar F. Pediatric Nosocomial Infections; Incidence, Risk Factors. Journal of Pediatric Infection 2009; 3: 49-53
- Mankan T, Kaşıkçı MK. The Knowledge Level of Nurses Related to Prevention of Hospital Infections. İnönü University, Health Science Journal 2005; 4(1), 11-16.
- Dinççağ, A. Preventions Against Resistant Microorganisms in Surgery. Ankem Journal, 2004; 18, 222-228.
- Aygin D. The Latest Updates on the Definition of Surgical Site Infections and Current Practice in Perioperative Hair Removal. Online Turkish Journal of Health Science. 2006; 1(3), 28-36.
- Musaev G. Infection Control in Surgery: Do We Know Everything? Postoperative Patient Care, Dressing and Infection Control: Ignored. Journal of Hospital Infections. 2011; 15(1), 141-148.
- Kara M. Babadağ K. Evidance Based Nursing. Atatürk University. Journal of the School Nursing. 2003; 6(3), 96-104.

doi http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.303

- Yurtsever S. Altıok M. Evidance Based Practices and Nursing. Firat University Journal of Health Sciences 2006; 20(2), 159-166.
- Mangram A. Horan T. Pearson M. Silver L.Alicia J. Teresa C. et al. Guideline For Prevention of Surgical Site Infection. Infection Control and Hospital Epidemiology. 1999; 20, 250-78.
- Torres SIB, Umscheid CA, Bratzler DW, Leas B, Stone EC, Kelz RR. et al. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Guideline for the Prevention of Surgical Site Infection. JAMA Surg, 2017;152(8):784-91.
- 10. Özpulat, F. Determination of Opinions of Health Personnel Working at Ministry of
- 11. Health Ankara Dışkapı Training and Research Hospital Regarding in Service Training Program Maltepe University Journal of Nursing Science and Arts. Symposium Special Issue 2010; 283-292.
- Saygılı M. Özer Ö. Uğurluoğlu Ö. An Evaluation on Levels of Knowledge and Behavior of Nurse About Rational Drug Use in a Public Hospital. Journal of Dokuz Eylül University Nursing Faculty 2015; 8 (3),162-170.
- Coello R. Charlett A. Wilson J. Ward, V. Pearson, A. Borriello P. Adverse Impact of Surgical Site Infections in English Hospitals. Journal of Hospital Infection. 2005; 60(2), 93-103.
- Persson M. Flock J. I van der Linden, J. Antiseptic Wound Ventilation with a Gas Diffuser: A New Intraoperative Method to Prevent Surgical Wound Infection? Journal of Hospital Infection. 2003; 54, 294-299.
- Astagneau, P. Rioux C. Golliot F. Bruker G. INCISO Network Study Group. Morbidity and Mortality Associated with Surgical Site Infections: Results From the 1997–1999 INCISO Surveillance. Journal of Hospital Infection, 2001; 48, 267-274.
- Pirson M. Dramaix M. Struelens M. Riley MV. Leclercq P. Costs Associated with Hospital-Acquired Bacteraemia in a Belgian Hospital. Journal of Hospital Infection, 2005; 59, 33-40.
- 17. Kaya BŞ. Valuation The Knowledge Level of the Medical Staff Working at Afyon Kocatepe University Regarding Nosocomial Infections. Master Thesis. Afyon Kocatepe University Institute of Health Sciences. 2004. Afyonkarahisar
- Yağmur Ş. Determining The Knowledge Level and Attitude with the Prevention of Hospital Infections of Nurses Working in Intensive Care Units. Master Thesis. Afyon Kocatepe University Institute of Health Sciences. 2004. Afyonkarahisar
- Ergen S. Knowledge Levels of Nurses for Preventing the Hospital Infections. Master Thesis. Okan University Institute of Health Sciences. 2015. İstanbul.
- Tank DY. Effect of Use of Nail Polish on Bacterial Colonization After Surgical Handwashing in Operating Room Nurses: A Preliminary Study. Master Thesis. Bülent Ecevit University Institute of Health Sciences. 2016. Zonguldak.
- Naharci H. A Determination of the Knowledge About Effective Measures in Preventing Nozocomial Infections of Nurses Working in Intensive Care Units of Various Hospitals in Adana. Master Thesis. Çukurova University Institute of Health Sciences. 2006. Adana.
- 22. Hasanoğlu S. The Knowledge And Practice of The Nurses Working in Surgery Service Regarding Surgery Site Infection. Master Thesis. Haliç University Institute of Health Sciences. 2013. İstanbul.

Copyright © 2019 The Author(s); This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0), (CC BY NC) which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited. International journal of Medical Science and Discovery.

OPEN ACCESS JOURNAL



Medical Science and Discovery 2019; 6(10):235-40

Research Article

Doi: 10.36472/msd.v6i10.309

Evaluation of risk factors predicting surgical treatment in tuboovarian

abscess cases

Bora Çoşkun¹*, Coşkun Şimşir²

Abstract

Objective: The main outcome measure of the present study was to find out the predictive factors affecting the need for surgery in patients diagnosed with tuboovarian abscess (TOA). We also examined the success of different medical treatment regimens in those patients.

Material and Methods: This was a retrospective clinical study performed on 96 TOA patients who were treated in the current hospital between August 2015 and August 2019. All patients underwent physical examination and ultrasonographic imaging with some laboratory tests to investigate the presence of TOA. Two different medical treatment regimens were administered as recommended by the international guidelines after the initial diagnoses. Patients with worsening clinical and/or laboratory findings and/or who did not respond to medical treatment were taken to surgery. Predictive factors for surgical intervention and success rates of medical treatment regimens were evaluated.

Results: White blood cell (WBC) levels ≥ 16000 and abscess size ≥ 7 cm was strongly correlated with the requirement for surgery. The 94 patients received the Regimen 1. Six patients underwent surgery urgently when they were under medical treatment. Regimen 1 failed in 21 (22.34 %) patients out of 94, Regimen 2 was shifted to. Six patients (28.5%) out of 21 underwent surgery because of treatment failure with Regimen 2. Recovery was achieved in the remaining 15 (71.4%) patients.

Conclusion: The success of medical TOA treatment was found to be high. Therefore, medical treatment can be applied first, except in case of acute abdomen. It was found that WBC and abscess diameter in patients with TOA in admission were the most important factors affecting the need for surgery. The factors affecting the duration of medical treatment were found to be age, WBC count, CRP (C-Reactive Protein), ESR (Erythrocyte Sedimentation Rate) and NLR (Neutrophil/Lymphocyte Ratio) levels.

Key words: Tuboovarian Abscess, Medical Treatment, Surgical Approach

Introduction

In patients staying in clinics with pelvic inflammatory disease (PID), prevalence of tuboovarian abscess (TOA), which is among the most serious complications of PID, is reported as 10-30% (1, 2). Actual prevalence of PID can be difficult because of the ambiguity in the diagnosis of subclinical PID, which is one of the types of PID together with acute and subacute PID. Early start of sexual life, multiple sexual partners, not using barrier anticontraceptive and chlamydia or gonorrhea infections are among factors affecting the occurrence of PID (3).

The risk factors related to TOA resemble the risk factors of PID. Past PID in personal history is also a significant risk factor for TOA (4). Pelvic inflammatory disease will have long term complications including chronic abdominal pain,

ectopic pregnancy and infertility in almost 25% of women because of delayed medical therapy because of varying clinical features and lack of specific laboratory tests (5).

Polymicrobial anaerobic and aerobic bacterial infections result in PID and TOA. Although Neisseria gonorrhoeae and Chlamydia trachomatis rarely grow in cultures in PID and TOA, they are the suspected facilitators (6, 7). Escherichia coli and Bacteroides species are the most commonly isolated organisms in TOA (8). TOA optimal approach is still controversial. In the treatment, oral antibiotics follow the classical intravenous antibiotic therapy. Surgery such as laparoscopy or laparotomy with drainage of the abscess, unilateral or bilateral adnexectomy, or hysterectomy will be required in case of failing medical



Received 12-09-2019 Accepted 30-09-2019 Available Online 30-09-2019 Published 30-10-2019

¹ Liv Hospital, Dept. of Obstetrics and Gynecology, Ankara, TR

² Liv Hospital Yuksek Ihtisas University School of Medicine, Dept. of Gynecology and Obstetrics, Ankara, TR

^{*} Corresponding Author: Bora Çoşkun E-mail: drboracoskun@gmail.com

treatment. Drainage with the guidance of imaging techniques or needle aspiration of the abscess is another approach for TOA treatment, and is combined with antibiotics(9). Center for Disease Control and Prevention recommends empiric broad-spectrum antibiotics for the medical therapy of TOA (10). If it is understood that antibiotic resistance is of question, surgery will be required. Our primary purpose in this study was to find out the predictive factors affecting the need for surgery and antibiotic resistance reported by the laboratory, and clinical and sonographic findings of patients diagnosed with TOA on admission. The second purpose was to investigate the success of medical treatment regimens. Thirdly, factors effective the duration of medical treatment were analyzed for medically-treated patients.

Material and Methods

This is a retrospective study conducted on 94 inpatients diagnosed with TOA in Ankara Liv Hospital, Obstetrics and Gynecology Department between August 2015 and August 2019. Approval of the ethical committee of our hospital was obtained for our study (Liv Hospital Ankara Local Ethical Committee Date: 09 August 2019 Approval Number: 2019/004-003) and Our study was conducted in accordance with the principles of the Declaration of Helsinki.

Physical examination and laboratory tests were carried out on patients with lower quadrant abdominal pain to investigate PID and TOA. At least 2 major criteria (lower abdominal quadrant tenderness, cervical motion tenderness, adnexal tenderness), and at least one minor criteria (body temperature>38.3 °C, cervicovaginal mucopurulent discharge, white blood cell (WBC)> 10 000/ml, erythrocyte sedimentation rate (ESR)> 15 mm/ hour, C-reactive protein (CRP)> 10 mg/L and cervical infection with N. gonorrhoeae or C. trachomatis (10) were required for the diagnosis of PID. An ultrasound examination was performed to diagnose TOA.

One of the two medical treatment regimens were administered as recommended by Sexually-transmitted diseases treatment guidelines, 2015 (11)

Regimen 1: Ampicillin (2 g IV every 6 hours) + Clindamycin (900 mg IV every 8 hours) + Gentamicin (2 mg/kg loading dose then 1.5 mg/kg every 8 hours IV or IM)

Regimen 2: Levofloxacin (500 mg IV once daily) + Metronidazole (500 mg IV every 8 hours)

Initial therapy with Regimen 1 was administered for ten days. Upon observation of improvement in clinical and laboratory findings, the patient was discharged with the recommendation of Metronidazole (500 mg orally twice daily) + Doxycycline (100 mg orally twice daily) for 14 days.

In cases where Regimen I was not successful within 48-72 hours, Regimen 2 was administered for ten days more. In resistant cases (no improvement within 48 to 72 hours with Regimen 2) patients were taken to surgery. Patients with worsening clinical and/or laboratory findings during

treatment with Regimen 1 or 2 were taken to emergency surgery.

Surgery options included unilateral salpingo-oopherectomy or total abdominal hysterectomy and bilateral salpingooophorectomy.

Patients of the study group were divided into two groups:

Group 1: Patients who responded well to medical treatment.

Group 2: Patients who did not respond to medical treatment and needed surgical treatment.

In this study, clinical, laboratory and sonographic parameters were taken into consideration as the predictive values for the success of medical treatment in Group 1 and requirement for surgery in Group 2 in the first place. Secondly, success of the medical treatment regimens was also evaluated. Patients of the Group 2 responding well to medical treatment were evaluated for the factors affecting the duration of medical therapy.

Statistical Analayzes: SPSS 18.0 was used for the statistical analysis. Kolmogorov–Smirnov test was used to determine if distribution of continuous variables was normal. Independent sample t-test was used for normally-distributed variables, and the Mann–Whitney U test was used for abnormally distributed variables. Relative risks (RRs) with 95% confidence intervals (CIs) were calculated. Level of statistical significance was accepted as the value of p< 0.05. A receiver operating characteristic was used to evaluate cut-off, positive predictive values, and negative predictive values.

Results

Ninety-four patients in total were hospitalized with the diagnosis of TOA. The all patients firstly received the Regimen 1. Six (6.38%) of these 94 patients were found to have acute abdominal findings, and were taken to emergency surgery while taking Regimen 1. Recovery was achieved with Regimen 1 in 67 (71.2 %) patients out of 94 patients. Regimen 1 failed in 21 (22.3%) patients and Regimen 2 was shifted to. Six patients (28.5%) out of 21 underwent surgery because of treatment failure with Regimen 2. Recovery was achieved in the remaining 15 (71.4%) patients. Number of patients who underwent surgery was 12 in total. 8 underwent unilateral salpingo-oopherectomy and 4 underwent total abdominal hysterectomy and bilateral salpingo-oopherectomy (Figure 1).

The overall total success rate of the medical treatment was found as 87.2% (82/94) with 71.2% (67/94) and 71.4% (15/21) success rates for Regimens 1 and 2, respectively. The average age, smoking, previous surgery in history, length of hospital stay and failure of Regimen 1 were similar in Groups 1 and 2.

The mean gravida number in both groups were 2.8 ± 1.7 and 3.5 ± 3.1 , respectively (p= 0.04), while the same for parity were 2.6 ± 1.2 and 3.6 ± 2.3 , respectively (p=0.003). Venereal disease in history was positive in 40.4% and 75%, in Groups 1 and 2, respectively (p= 0.003). The IUD usage of

doi http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.309

the groups was determined as 76.1% and 83.3%, respectively (p= 0.009). The mean abscess diameter measured in groups 1 and 2 was 4.7±0.9 and 6.9±1.2 cm, respectively (p=0.000). The mean body temperature in group 1 and 2 was 37.3±0.6 °C and 38.7±0.3 °C, respectively (p=0.000). The mean WBC count was 10.430±3.290 in Group 1 and 18.260±2.860 K/uL in Group 2 (p=0.000). The mean CRP levels in Groups 1 and 2 were 42.5±39.8 and 78±11.4 respectively (p=0.001). The ESR rate was significantly different between the two groups with 52.2 \pm 9.5 in Group 1 and 82.4 \pm 11.2 in Group 2 (p= 0.000) (Table 1). Analysis of the groups' neutrophil/lymphocyte ratio (NLR) values showed that the surgical treatment group had significantly higher NLR 6.2± 5.3 and 9.4 \pm 5.1, respectively (p=0.001). As regards the factors affecting the duration of medical treatment, body temperature, previous pelvic surgery,

smoking, parity and venereal diseases were similar among patients with periods of medical treatment exceeding 10 days and among patients with periods of medical treatment equal to or less than 10 days (both groups were treated medically) (Table 2). Also, longer duration of medical treatment was correlated with average age, average dimension of the abscess, medical drug exchange, gravidity, high leukocyte values, CRP levels, high NLR, ESR rate and intrauterine device (IUD) (p=0.001, 0.04, 0.000, 0.005, 0.000, 0.000, 0.001 and 0.01, respectively) (Table 2). Parameters predicting the requirement for surgery were also evaluated. WBC levels≥ 16.000 and abscess size≥ 7 cm was strongly correlated with the requirement for surgery (PPV 92.6% and 98.1 % respectively). The positive predictive value of Age>36 was 71.7%, the same for body temperature \geq 38.5°C was 78.1%, for NLR> 6 it was 73.4% (Table 3).

Table1: Comparison of medical treatment and surgical treatment in patients diagnosed with TOA

	Medical treatment (Grup 1, $n = 84$)	Surgical treatment (Grup 2, $n = 12$)	p value
Age	33.5±9.6	37.1±4.2	0.09
Gravidity	2.8±1.7	3.5±3.1	0.04
Parity	2.6±1.2	3.6±2.3	0.003
Smoking	41 (48.8%)	7 (58.3%)	0.1
Previous Pelvic Surgery	22 (26.1%)	4(33.3%)	0.09
Previous Sexually Transmitted Diseases	34 (40.4%)	9 (75%)	0.003
IUD	64 (76.1%)	10 (83.3%)	0.009
Duration Of Hospitalization	8.8±2.5	$11.4{\pm}1.2$	0.08
Abscess Diameter (cm)	4.7±0.9	6.9±1.2	0.000
Body Temperature (°C)	37.3±0.6	38.7±0.3	0.000
WBC	10.430±3.290	18.280 ± 2.860	0.000
CRP	42.5±39.8	78 ± 11.4	0.001
ESR	52.2±9.5	82.4±11.2	0.000
NLR	6.2±5.3	9.4±5.1	0.001

Abbreviations: IUD: Intrauterine Device, WBC: White Blood Cell (K/uL), CRP: C-Reactive Protein (mg/L), ESR: Erythrocyte Sedimentation Rate (mm/h), NLR: Neutrophil/Lymphocyte Ratio. Independent sample t test and $\chi 2$ was used for normally distributed variables and the Mann–Whitney U test for abnormally distributed variables. Values are given as mean±SD or number (percentage). p<0.05 was considered statistically significant

Table 2: Comparison of patients diagnosed with TOA on admission whose medical treatment lasted>10 days or ≤ 10 days

	Duration of treatment	Duration of treatment	p value
	$\leq 10 \text{ days} (n:73)$	> 10 days(n=19)	
Age	34.8±5.7	38±6.4	0.001
Medical drug exchange	8 (9.8%)	13 (68.4%)	0.000
Abscess diameter (cm)	5 ± 1.1	5.4±1.3	0.04
Body Temperature(°C)	37.4±0.8	37.7±0.9	0.3
Previous pelvic surgery	32 (31.4%)	2 (10.5%)	0.03
Previous sexually transmitted diseases	46 (45.1%)	8 (36.4%)	0.5
Smoking	48 (47.1%)	10 (52.6%)	0.5
Gravidity	$2.8{\pm}1.7$	$4{\pm}1.7$	0.005
Parity	2.5 ± 1.3	3.8±1.9	0.007
WBC	11.190 ± 3.450	16.740 ± 2.460	0.000
CRP	51.1±28.6	79.5±13.1	0.000
ESR	58.3±21.8	71.3±20.1	0.01
NLR	6.1±4.7	9.6±8.1	0.001
IUD	53(72.6%)	21 (100%)	0.001

Abbreviations: WBC: White Blood Cell (K/uL), CRP: C-Reactive Protein (mg/L), ESR: Erythrocyte Sedimentation Rate (mm/h), NLR: Neutrophil/Lymphocyte Ratio, IUD: Intrauterine Device. Independent sample t test and χ^2 was used for normally distributed variables and the Mann–Whitney U test for abnormally distributed variables. p<0.05 was considered statistically significant

Table 3: The predictive values	s of surgery	requireme	nt in patie	nts diagnosed	with TOA	on admission
--------------------------------	--------------	-----------	-------------	---------------	----------	--------------

	Sensitivity %	Specificity %	PPV %	NPV %	P value	Relative risk (95% CI)
Abscess diameter \geq 7 cm	66.5	98.1	83.6	92.7	0.000	10.6 (2.4-52.6)
WBC count > $16 * 10^{3}$	87.6	92.6	76.5	97.4	0.000	7.54 (4.9-14.2)
Age>36	44.4	71.7	26.6	88.3	0.001	1.5 (0.8-2.8)
NLR>6	71.7	73.4	66.6	87.3	0.001	3.2 (1.8-4.9)
Body Temperature \geq 38.5 °C	88.7	78.1	48	96.8	0.000	2.8 (1.6-5.2)

Abbreviations: WBC: White Blood Cell (K/uL), NLR: Neutrophil/Lymphocyte Ratio. Relative risks (RRs) with 95% confidence intervals (CIs) were calculated. Level of statistical significance was accepted as the value of p < 0.05. A receiver operating characteristic was used to evaluate cut-off, positive predictive values, and negative predictive values.



Figure 1: Flow of patients with treatment of Tuboovarian Abscess (TOA)

Discussion

TOA treatment with antibiotics with broad spectra is successful in 34% to 87.5% of patients (6), while 25% will be taken to surgery because of resistance(12). However, superiority of any of the antibiotics to each other have not been shown yet (13). Clindamycin and metronidazole can be preferred, because they are effective on anaerobic bacteria and penetrate will into the abscess cavity (14). In a study of 232 patients, clindamycin gentamicin was reported as successful in 68% of patients (15). In another study, clindamycin+ gentamicin combination reportedly provided cure in 47%+ of patients, while ampicillin+ clindamycin+ gentamicin combination was successful in 87.5% (16). Furthermore, Güngördük et al. found that clindamycin+ gentamicin or ceftriaxone+ metronidazole was successful in 74.3% of patients (17).

In our study, we found that Ampicillin (2 g IV every 6 hours) + Clindamycin (900 mg IV every 8 hours) + Gentamicin (2 mg/kg loading dose then 1.5 mg/kg every 8 hours IV or IM) was effective in 71.2% of patients consistently with the reports in the literature.

The success rate of Levofloxacin (500 mg IV once daily) + Metronidazole (500 mg IV every 8 hours) regimens in resistant cases, was identified as 71.4%.

The overall total success rate of medical treatments was 87.2% (82/94). These results are supportive for the continuance of medical treatment till signs or symptoms makes emergency surgery necessary.

We found no studies in the literature reporting sequential administration of the two regimens that we have used in our study. Sequential administration of these two regimens can be recommended in TOA treatment.

The predictability of the necessity for surgical treatment:

Randomized controlled trials are needed to compare these two regimes. Group1 and Group 2 were found as significantly different in Gravidity, Parity, Positive Venereal Diseases in Medical History of Patients, Abscess Size, Body Temperature, WBC, CRP, NLR and ESR rate, while differences were insignificant as regards the Age, Previous Pelvic Surgery History, IUD and Duration of Hospitalization Stay (Table 1).

In a previous study, while 35% of patients with abscesses with sizes 7 and 9 cm underwent surgery, 60% of patients with abscesses $60 \ge 10$ cm underwent surgery(9).

In another study, rates of surgery in patients with abscesses with sizes ≤ 8 cm and >8 cm were 23% and 35%, respectively (p= 0.24)(18).

Mizushima et al. reported that abscess size alone increased the probability of surgery. They found that abscess size of > 5 cm increased the risk of surgery by 69 folds. They also found that there are no significant differences in age, gravidity, parity, body temperature, leukocyte levels and CRP levels between medical and surgical therapy groups (19). In their study, Güngördük et al, found statistically significant differences between patients treated medically or surgically as regards CRP levels, ESR, and abscess

dol http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.309

diameter \geq 7 cm; however, differences in WBC were not significant.

In our study, the mean abscess size was 4.7 ± 0.9 cm in the medical therapy group and 6.9 ± 1.2 cm in the surgical treatment group (p= 0.000). Surgery was performed in 83.6% (RR (95% CI) 10.6 (2.4-52.6)) of the patients with an abscess size of ≥ 7 cm (Table 3), indicating that abscesses larger than 7cm require surgery.

The need for surgery is frequently linked to the abscess size. In our study however, Age, WBC, Body Temperature, NLR levels were found associated with the requirement for surgery in addition to abscess size, with mean WBC level being highly significant. Surgery was required in 76.5% (RR (95% CI) 7.54 (4.9-14.2)) of the patients with \geq 16.000 baseline leukocyte count. Based on these results, the most important factors in the patient's surgery risk were WBC level and abscess size.

Conclusion

The results of this study showed the success rate of the treatment regimen of Ampicillin (2 g IV every 6 hours) + Clindamycin (900 mg IV every 8 hours) + Gentamicin (2 mg/kg loading dose then 1.5 mg/kg every 8 hours IV or IM) to be 71.2%, the success rate of Levofloxacin (500 mg IV once daily) + Metronidazole (500 mg IV every 8 hours) regimens in resistant cases was 71.4% and the total success rate of medical treatment was 87.2%.

The most important markers in the prediction of surgical treatment were determined as WBC count and abscess diameter. If abscess diameter is \geq 7 cm and WBC \geq 16.000, the risk of a need for surgical intervention is high. The most important factors in the duration of medical treatment were found to be age, WBC count, CRP and NLR levels.

Acknowledgments: None

Conflict of Interest: The authors declare no potential conflicts of interest with respect to the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article.

Author's Contributions: BÇ, ÇŞ; Research concept and design, Research the literature, preparation of the article BÇ; Revision of the article.

References

- Inal ZO, Inal HA, Gorkem U. Experience of Tubo-ovarian abscess: a retrospective clinical analysis of 318 patients in a single tertiary Center in Middle Turkey. Surgical infections. 2018;19(1):54-60.
- Tokmak A, Esercan A, Sarikaya E. An incidental finding of chronic salpingitis complications: Tubo-uterine fistula. Journal of experimental therapeutics & oncology. 2015;11(2).
- 3. Rosado F. Factors Associated with Chlamydia trachomatis Reinfection Among Puerto Rican Adolescents 2008-2012. 2014.
- Lachiewicz MP, Nair N. Simple Technique for Transvaginal Aspiration of a Tubo-Ovarian Abscess. Gynecologic and obstetric investigation. 2016;81(4):381-4.
- Chu L, Ma H, Liang J, Li L, Shen A, Wang J, et al. Effectiveness and adverse events of early laparoscopic therapy versus conservative treatment for Tubo-ovarian or pelvic abscess: a single-center retrospective cohort study. Gynecologic and obstetric investigation. 2019:1-9.

Çoşkun et al.

- Granberg S, Gjelland K, Ekerhovd E. The management of pelvic abscess. Best practice & research Clinical obstetrics & gynaecology. 2009;23(5):667-78.
- Lareau SM, Beigi RH. Pelvic inflammatory disease and tubo-ovarian abscess. Infectious disease clinics of North America. 2008;22(4):693-708.
- Yavuzcan A, Çağlar M, Dilbaz S, Kumru S, Avcıoğlu F, Üstün Y. Identification of Clostridium septicum in a tubo-ovarian abscess: a rare case and review of the literature. Vojnosanitetski pregled. 2014;71(9):884-8.
- Chappell CA, Wiesenfeld HC. Pathogenesis, diagnosis, and management of severe pelvic inflammatory disease and tuboovarian abscess. Clinical obstetrics and gynecology. 2012;55(4):893-903.
- Scharbo-DeHaan M, Anderson DG. The CDC 2002 guidelines for the treatment of sexually transmitted diseases: implications for women's health care. Journal of midwifery & women's health. 2003;48(2):96-104.
- Workowski KA. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention sexually transmitted diseases treatment guidelines. Clinical Infectious Diseases. 2015;61(suppl_8):S759-S62.
- Soper DE. Pelvic inflammatory disease. Obstetrics & Gynecology. 2010;116(2):419-28.

doi http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.309

- 13. Kim HY, Yang JI, Moon C. Comparison of severe pelvic inflammatory disease, pyosalpinx and tubo-ovarian abscess. Journal of Obstetrics and Gynaecology Research. 2015;41(5):742-6.
- Mirhashemi R, Schoell WM, Estape R, Angioli R, Averette HE. Trends in the management of pelvic abscesses. Journal of the American College of Surgeons. 1999;188(5):567-72.
- Reed SD, Landers DV, Sweet RL. Antibiotic treatment of tuboovarian abscess: comparison of broad-spectrum β-lactam agents versus clindamycin-containing regimens. American journal of obstetrics and gynecology. 1991;164(6):1556-62.
- McNeeley SG, Hendrix SL, Mazzoni MM, Kmak DC, Ransom SB. Medically sound, cost-effective treatment for pelvic inflammatory disease and tuboovarian abscess. American journal of obstetrics and gynecology. 1998;178(6):1272-8.
- Güngördük K, Guzel E, Asicioğlu O, Yildirim G, Ataser G, Ark C, et al. Experience of tubo-ovarian abscess in western Turkey. International Journal of Gynecology & Obstetrics. 2014;124(1):45-50.
- DeWitt J, Reining A, Allsworth JE, Peipert JF. Tuboovarian abscesses: is size associated with duration of hospitalization & complications? Obstetrics and gynecology international. 2010;2010.
- Mizushima T, Yoshida H, Ohi Y, Ishikawa M, Hirahara F. Evaluating the risk factors for developing resistance to parenteral therapy for tubo-ovarian abscess: A case–control study. Journal of Obstetrics and Gynaecology Research. 2013;39(5):1019-23.

Copyright © 2019 The Author(s); This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0), (CC BY NC) which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited. International journal of Medical Science and Discovery.

OPEN ACCESS JOURNAL



Medical Science and Discovery 2019; 6(10):241-8

Research Article

Doi: 10.36472/msd.v6i10.305

Tobacco-alcohol consumption, socio-sanitary profile and factors influencing the anthropometric and cardiorespiratory parameters of Kinshasa smokers

Vuvu Pierre Gaylord Lofuta^{1*}, Gael Deboeck², Mboko Augustin Kipula¹, Kalabo Louise Kikontwe¹, Bompeka François Lepira³, Nzanza Richard Matanda⁴, Bikuku Honore Nkakudulu¹

Abstract

Objective: To determine the prevalence of alcoholism and the influence of the associated «tobacco-alcohol» consumption on the anthropometric and cardiorespiratory parameters of some smokers in Kinshasa.

Material and Method: Cross-sectional and prospective study, conducted in Kinshasa from January to October 2017, including 120 tobacco smokers with at least 5 years of service, with a mean age of 36 ± 9 years. The Global Tobacco Surveillance System (GTSS) Validated Adult Tobacco Surveillance Questionnaire has been adapted and used. Sociodemographic, anthropometric, cardiorespiratory parameters and behavioral of consumption were the variables of interest. At the p ≤ 0.05 threshold, correlation and multiple linear regressions allowed for statistical inference.

Results: The sex ratio was 19/1 (M / F), 84.2% of the smokers were alcoholics. The median seniority in smoking and alcohol consumption was 8 years. The median amount of tobacco consumed was 27 pack-years; it was positively correlated with the amount of alcohol consumed, the oldest in smoking and alcoholism. The BMI of smokers was influenced by seniority in smoking and the amount of alcohol consumed (R2 = 0.049, p <0.001). RR rest was influenced by the amount smoked, seniority in tobacco and alcohol (R2 = 0.187, p <0.001). While the DBP was influenced by age, the amount of smoked tobacco, alcohol consumed as well as seniority in smoking and alcoholism (R2 = 0.102, p <0.001).

Conclusion: The prevalence of alcoholism is very high in Kinshasa smokers; this association "tobacco-alcohol" has an influence on their BMI, RR rest and DBP.

Key words: Body mass index, blood pressure, respiratory rate, smoking, alcoholism, Kinshasa

Introduction

Tobacco kills, it currently causes more than six million deaths each year and will probably cause more than eight million by 2030 (1-3). Since the 16th century, tobacco was described as a grass huge therapeutic virtue by Jean Nicot and was long used to treat nausea, migraine, wounds, the art sores and rheumatism (4). Today, apart from the mortality attributed to it, tobacco consumption is also implicated in comorbidities and the severity of diseases in adults (1, 5, 6).

Regardless of the mode of consumption (chewed, snorted, smoked, hookah, etc.) (7, 8), the consequences of tobacco consumption are the same (1, 9, 10) and are directly proportional to the consumption, number of years of smoking, and sedentary lifestyle (1, 6, 11-13). Since tobacco is a risk factor for many chronic diseases, its pejorative effects on the respiratory, cardiovascular and metabolic systems are demonstrated (1,5,6). Although the biochemical mechanism of its deleterious effects is not always well understood (5, 6, 11, 12);

Received 05-09-2019 Accepted 08-10-2019 Available Online 12-10-2019 Published 30-10-2019

1 University of Kinshasa, Faculty of Medicine, Dept of PMR, Cardiopulmonary Rehabilitation Unit, Kinshasa, DR Congo

2 Free University of Brussels, Faculty of Motor Sciences, Lymphology and Cardiorespiratory Physiology, Brussels, Belgium

3 University of Kinshasa, Faculty of Medicine, Dept of Internal Medicine, Hypertension and Nephrology, Kinshasa, DR Congo

* Corresponding Author: Vuvu Pierre Gaylord Lofuta E-mail: lofuta.olenga@unikin.ac.cd



⁴ University of Kinshasa, Faculty of Medicine, Dept of Specialty, Otorhinolaryngology Service, Kinshasa, DR Congo

Lofuta et al.

Physiologically, tobacco alters blood lipids, increases heart rate and blood pressure, decreases weight and body mass index (8,12,14,15). In addition, smoking is found to be associated with higher alcohol consumption (16), and despite lower purchasing power, this association " tobacco-alcohol " is mainly observed among youth, workers s e qualified and unemployed (2,3,17-20).

In the world, it is now estimated that 49% of underqualified workers are regular smokers, the majority of tobacco users live in low-income countries whose populations pay the highest price for tobacco misdeeds (1.3%). Tobacco use is struggling to decline in European countries where 28% of the population is still smokers (21). In Africa, where 25% of the population smoke (2,21), this prevalence varies widely depending on the population's purchasing power (22). In the countries south of the Sahara, 5 to 47% of the population smoke (23).

In the Democratic Republic of Congo (DRC), there is less than 20% of smokers, this prevalence varies according to sex, age and environment : 10 to 26% of men and less than 10% of women ; 29% of 12- to 16-year-old schoolchildren in Kinshasa (2).

In the DRC, moreover, studies on tobacco are rare, there is no data neither on the consumption behavior «tobaccoalcohol»; nor on the amount of tobacco consumed and their influence on physiological parameters (2,22). The majority of the studies conducted in Congo or Kinshasa smokers being essentially epidemiological and clinical (24-28), they do not provide sufficient information on the interrelation of consumption "alcohol-tobacco", neither on the general characteristics, weight and changes in the cardiovascular and respiratory parameters of smokers, and even less on their determinants.

This study aims to describe the general characteristics of Kinshasa smokers, their smoking behavior in association with alcohol consumption, in order to find their influences on anthropometric, cardiovascular and respiratory parameters. Observations made may direct medical attitudes to smokers in Congolese or even African clinical settings and, where appropriate, motivate smoker surveillance strategies.

Material and Methods

This transversal and prospective study took place in the city of Kinshasa, Democratic Republic of Congo, from January to October 2017. This study was accepted by the ethics committee of the Faculty of Medicine of the University of Kinshasa. Verbal consent to participate in the study was obtained.

Population and sampling: Our study population consists of active tobacco smokers and alcohol consumers living in the 4 districts of the city of Kinshasa. Recruitment was conducted randomly, with 200 active smokers at 50 per district enrolled. The inclusion criteria hereafter allowed to consider 120 active smokers:

- Voluntary membership in the study ;
- Be at least 18 years old and reside in the city of Kinshasa;

doi http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.305

- Being an active tobacco smoker for at least 5 years, not practicing a risky activity on the respiratory system.
- Not having any illness in the last trimester before the study;
- Do not have a personal history of chronic disease or diagnosed and known cardiovascular disease.
- Do not have a physical disability.

Each participant was randomly selected to obtain a homogeneous distribution among the four districts of the city of Kinshasa.

Methodology

A data collection form was developed and adapted e from Tobacco Surveillance adult questionnaire Global Tobacco Surveillance System (GTSS) (1). This fact sheet asked the following information:

- Sex, age (in years), weight (kg) and height (cm).
- The municipality and the district of residence,
- The profession, the practice of sport and the consumption of alcoholic beverages.
- Tobacco consumption.
- Heart rate, resting respiratory rate, systolic and diastolic blood pressure.

The occupation was defined as the gainful occupation or job held by the smoker at least 20 hours per week for at least 6 months. Different socio-professional categories were listed: the unemployed (not working for 6 months); senior managers (clerical employees with a higher level of education); students ; technicians (worker or selfemployed) ; sellers and traders ; low-level employees (supervisors, cleaners, cooks, carriers and security guards). The practice of physical activity and sport was defined as a physical activity (PA) or sports for fun or competition (including walking) for at least 60 minutes, once a week for at least six months. Alcohol consumption was described as the average weekly consumption of 5 bottles of beer, with or without wine or whiskey. The number of bottles consumed per week and the seniority (number of years) of consumption were considered. Tobacco consumption resumed the number of years of use, the amount consumed: the number of cigarettes smoked per day (c/d) and converted in pack-years (PY). The resting respiratory rate (RR) was taken at least three times in a subject sitting at rest for at least 5 minutes; it was not stated to the subject that the measurement of his respiratory rate was performed at this time. Three measurements of heart rate (HR) and systolic and diastolic blood pressures (SBP and DBP) (using a branded device OMRON®, model HEM-741CRELN2 (HEM-8705-WM) ReliOn) were obtained in a sitting position, at rest for at least 5 minutes, with an interval of 5 minutes between each measurement. The lowest value of each value was selected.

The existence of a history of respiratory disease was based on a diagnosed respiratory disease that required medical follow-up for more than one week, either on an outpatient basis or in hospital since the onset of smoking. Finally, the reported subjective evolution of weight (weight loss or weight gain) since the beginning of smoking was noted.

Lofuta et al.

Statistical analysis: The statistical analysis was performed using IBM SPSS version 20.0 software. Qualitative data is presented in terms of frequency and percentage. After verifying the normality of the data, the results are presented either by the mean \pm standard deviation (for age), or by the median (quartile interval: QI 25-75) for the other parameters. Simple correlations are indicated by a Spearman (r) correlation coefficient and (R2) determination and the factors influencing the anthropometry and physiology of Kinshasa smokers were studied by multiple linear regressions. Significant statistical relationships were considered at the CI \leq 95 confidence interval (p <0.05).

Ethical considerations: The data was collected, recorded, analyzed and interpreted in accordance with the Helsinki declaration on human manipulation of the World Medical Association (WMA). No incident related to the study was observed.

Results

General Characteristics of Kinshasa smokers

Of the 120 smokers studied, 95% were male, with a sex ratio of 1 woman to 19 men. The average age was 36 ± 9 years, range: [18-65 years]. Three-quarters of smokers (74.1%) were under 40 years of age, of which 30-39 years had the highest number of smokers (45.8%). Half of the smokers did not work (50%) and almost a quarter (23.3%) was students. With respect to their antecedents and habitus, 97.5% of smokers were sedentary (did not engage in physical activity or sports); 84.2% regularly consumed alcohol. However, only 2.5% of smokers reported having ever had a diagnosed respiratory illness, while almost half (48.3%) of smokers surveyed reported a significant decrease in body weight a few years after they started smoking (Table 1).

Quantity of tobacco and alcohol consumed by Kinshasa smokers

Table 2 shows that the median amount of smoked tobacco was 27 (QI 25-75: 1-53) pack-year, extreme: 7.2-144 pack-years. Half of smokers surveyed consume since 8 (QI: 1-17) years with a maximum of 40 years. Alcoholic smokers consumed alcohol for a median of 8 (QI: 0-16 years), the median of bottles consumed was 12 (QI: 3-21) per week.

The anthropometric and cardiopulmonary parameters of smokers in Kinshasa

Anthropometrically, Table 2 shows that half of smokers weighed less than 65 kg. The median BMI of smokers was 23 (QI: 20-26) Kgm2, 14% of smokers were lean and 62% had BMI in standards (Table 3). In terms of cardiorespiratory fitness, these smokers had a median resting FR of 24 (QI: 22-26) cycles per minute (cpm), of which 88% were in tachypnea at rest (RR> 20 cpm) ; median HR of 80 (QI : 66-94) beats per minute (bpm) including 25% of tachycardia (HR> 90bpm). The median was 110 SBP (QI: 90-130) mm Hg, 10% hypertensive, the elevated systolic (SBP \geq 140mmHJg), while the median was 90 DBP (QI: 70-110) mm Hg, 59% were high diastolic hypertension (DBP> 90mmHg) (Tables 2 and 3).

Table 1: Profile by gender, age, physical activity, smoking habits and history of cardio-respiratory diseases

doi http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.305

Characteristics	N = 120 (%)
Sex	
Male	114 (95)
Female	6 (5)
Age groups (years)	
18-29	34 (28.3)
30-39	55 (45.8)
40-49	18 (15)
50-59	9 (7.5)
≥60	4 (3.4)
Profession	
Without jobs	60 (50.0)
Senior executives	12 (10.0)
Students	28 (23.3)
Technicians	10 (8.3)
Sellers / traders	7 (5.8)
Low-level employees	3 (2.5)
Physical activity and sport	
Practice PAS	3 (2.5)
Do not practice PAS	117 (97.5)
Alcohol consumption	
Yes	101 (84.2)
No	19 (15.8)
ATCD of respiratory disease	
Yes	3 (2.5)
No	117 (97.5)
Observation of slimming	
Slimming observes	58 (48.3)
No slimming observes	62 (51.7)

Relation smoking and alcoholism

We found in this study, a positive correlation between the age of smoking and the amount of smoked tobacco (PY) r = 0.524 (p <0.001). Regarding the alcoholism of these smokers, a positive correlation was also found between the amount of smoked tobacco (PY) and the number of weekly bottles of beer consumed r = 0.419 (p <0.001), but also with the age of the smoker. Alcohol consumption r = 0.488 (p <0.001). In addition, seniority in smoking was strongly correlated with that in alcoholism r = 0.64, (p <0.001) (Table 4).

Factors Influencing IMC, DBP and RR

Table 5 shows that the body mass index was inversely influenced by the weekly amount of alcohol consumed (p <0.001) and the age of tobacco consumption (p < 0.003). The diastolic blood pressure was positively influenced by age (p <0.001), the amount of smoked tobacco (p <0.001), the quantity of alcohol bottles consumed weekly (p <0.001) and the age of consumption of tobacco (p = 0.008). It was negatively influenced by the age of alcohol consumption (p <0.001) (Table 5). The frequency of rest was positively influenced by the age of alcohol consumption (p <0.001), the amount of tobacco consumed (p <0.001) and the age of smoking (p < 0.001) (Table 5).

Table 2: Description of smoking habits, alcoholics and anthropometric and haemodynamic parameters of Kinshasa smokers

Settings	Ν	Minimum - Maximum	Mean ± Standard deviation
Age	120	18-65	36 ± 9
Tobacco and alcohol			Median (IQ: 25-75)
Tobacco (stems / days)	120	2-40	12 (1-25)
Tobacco (packs-year)	120	7.2-144	27 (1-53)
Smoking seniority	120	5-40	8 (1-17)
Alcohol (bottles / week)	101	1-21	12 (3-21)
Alcoholism seniority	101	5-32	8 (0-16)
Anthropometric and cardio	o-respiratory	parameters	
Weight	120	39-85	65 (56-74)
Height	120	100-192	168 (155-181)
BMI	120	16-29	23 (20-26)
RR	120	12-28	24 (22-26)
HR	120	65-105	80 (66-94)
SBP	120	90-160	110 (90-130)
DBP	120	60-130	90 (70-110)

BMI : Body mass index ; HR : Heart rate ; FR : Resting respiratory rate ; PAD : diastolic blood pressure ; SBP : systolic blood pressure.

Table 3: Categorization of Anthropometric and Hemodynamic Parameters of Tobacco Smokers in Kinsha	asa
---	-----

Settings	N = 120 (%)
Weight	
≤59 Kg	21 (18)
60-79 Kg	92 (77)
≥80 Kg	7 (6)
BMI	
$<18.5 \text{ Kg} / \text{m}^2$	17 (14)
$18.5-24.9 \text{ Kg} / \text{m}^2$	75 (62)
$\geq 25 \text{ Kg} / \text{m}^2$	28 (23)
RR	
≤19 cpm	14 (12)
≥20 cpm	106 (88)
HR	
≤ 89 bpm	90 (75)
≥ 90 bpm	30 (25)
SBP	
\leq 139 mm Hg	108 (90)
\geq 140 mm Hg	12 (10)
DBP	
\leq 89 mm Hg	49 (41)
\geq 90 mm Hg	71 (59)
cpm : cycles per minute ; bpm : beats per minute.	

Table 4: Correlation of substances usually consumed.

Correlation	R	p <
Tobacco (PY) / Alcohol (bottles / week)	0419	0.001 *
Tobacco (PY) / Alcohol seniority	0488	0.001 *
Tobacco (PY) / Tobacco seniority	0524	0.001 *
Tobacco seniority / Alcohol seniority	0641	0.001 *

* significant p; PY: pack-years

Table 5: The influencing factors anthropometric and cardiorespiratory parameters of smoking Kinshasa

Regression equation			validity	of the reg	gression m	odel
	coefficient	Р	r	R^2	F	p value
Body mass index						-
Constant	24252	0.001 *				
Age	0098	0.455				
Alcohol (bottles / week)	-0074	0.001 *	0208	0049	9544	0.000^{a}
Alcohol seniority	-0.01	0.636				
Tobacco (PY)	-0015	0.238				
Age of smoking	-0057	0.003 *				
Diastolic Blood Pressure						
Constant	76584	0.001 *				
Age	2.484	0.001 *				
Alcohol (bottles / week)	2878	0.001 *	0210	0102	72077	0 000 a
Alcohol seniority	3499	0.001 *	0319	0102	23011	0.000
Tobacco (PY)	2259	0.001 *				
Age of smoking	1886	0.008 *				
Respiratory rate rest						
Constant	20366	0.001 *				
Age	-0181	0.104				
Alcohol (bottles / week)	-0033	0.061	0433	0187	48.53	0.000^{a}
Alcohol seniority	0134	0.001 *				
Tobacco (PY)	0083	0.001 *				
Age of smoking	0054	0.001 *				

* significant p; a valid regression model; PY: pack-years

Discussion

The characteristics of smokers: Our study conducted on some active smokers in Kinshasa, aimed to determine the general characteristics of Kinshasa smokers, the prevalence of alcohol consumption, as well as the factors influencing their anthropometry and physiological parameters. The result is a dominance of men, youth and non-workers among the smokers studied. Several African publications corroborate our findings, stating that men and young people between the ages of 20 and 35 are the most likely to smoke (2,20,23,26). Theoretically, one of the effects sought by tobacco consumption is that of reducing stress, ascribed to one of its components, nicotine; Tobacco use therefore seems to grant physical, psychological and spiritual wellbeing: it gives a good image of oneself (29,30). It is thus possible that men and young people, being more socially active and more exposed to stress (17,31), consume more tobacco, certainly in search of these virtues in order to alleviate the stress related to their daily life. . Studies in North America and Europe also report that these two groups are the most smoking tobacco categories (3,5,17,29,31). However, in contrast to North American and European data, where it is workers and lower-level workers who are the most likely to smoke, in Kinshasa, a significant proportion of unemployed people are reported to be smokers (2,9,32). This difference in socio-occupational status between Kinshasa smokers and those from elsewhere is certainly due to the high unemployment rate observed in the Kinshasa population, from which the sample of the study was taken (32,33).

Behavior, antecedents and factors influencing the anthropometric and cardiorespiratory parameters of Kinshasa smokers

Regarding the practice of physical activities and sports (PAS), almost all smokers in Kinshasa do not practice PAS. Several publications indicate that smoking potentiates the effects of physical activity, increases energy expenditure and has the same effects on the body (well-being) as PAS alone (12, 30). Thus, tobacco users already observing these effects would no longer feel the need to practice PAS. In addition, PAS practice reduces smoking and speeds smoking cessation; smoking is mainly linked to a sedentary lifestyle (34). It is therefore difficult to find a significant number of PAS practitioners in a population of smokers, corroborating the observation made in our series.

The median tobacco consumption was 12 stems / day (27 PY), for a maximum of 40 stems / day (144 PY). This consumption of smokers in Kinshasa is higher than that of Canadian smokers (13), but comparable to that of French and Belgian smokers (3,29,34).

Smoking more tobacco stems is not without consequences on health, the Congolese publications (24,35), American and European confirm (5,22). The authors describe the intensity of cumulative smoking as a risk factor for respiratory and cardiovascular diseases (8,15,24,34). Comparing the amount of smoked tobacco reported by these authors and that of our series, we observe that in the present study, the quantity consumed is greater than that observed in these publications; however, only 2.5% of the smokers interviewed in our series reported having had a respiratory illness since they smoked. This can be explained by the fact that smoking-related respiratory illnesses generally occur after several decades of exposure to tobacco (23) and the median exposure to tobacco observed here is only 8 (QI : 1- 17 years. In addition, African cultural considerations would be another element of explanation. Indeed, the evocation of a disease is a taboo subject for an African; see a weakness that smokers certainly did not want to reveal. Also, medical screening at the asymptomatic stage, is not culture among Congolese (2,25). As a result, the reality of respiratory problems in the smokers studied is probably difficult to estimate.

The high prevalence (84.2%) of observed alcohol consumption is strongly related to tobacco consumption (r = 0.4, p < 0001). The seniority of alcohol and tobacco consumption are also similar in the two groups, respectively 8 (QI: 0-16) years and 8 (QI: 1-17) years, with a strong correlation (r = 0.6, p< 0.001). Moreover, significant links were found between the amount of smoked tobacco (PY) with the alcohol bottles consumed, and with the number of years of alcoholism (respectively r = 0.5 and r = 0.5; p<0.001). Several authors corroborate our observations (3,16,22,38). Molimard describes that there is a strong link between tobacco and alcohol and that cigarette consumption increases with the amount of alcoholic beverages. He further argues that it is rather alcohol dependence that leads to heavy tobacco consumption (38). The reverse has been observed among Canadian teen smokers where the majority of alcohol insiders (71%) have never tried smoking cigarettes, whereas among tobacco initiates, the majority (63%) has already consumed alcohol in their lives (39). There is also a biochemical and physiological dependence between these two products. Indeed, the biochemical actions of alcohol and tobacco all pass through the same neuroendocrine pathways. The consumption of alcohol activates the need for nicotine. It acts by attenuating the psychotropic effects of alcohol by activating dopaminergic, serotoninergic, gabaergic and glutamate receptor inhibition systems (38). Thus drunkenness and euphoria seem to be reduced in the smoking drinker, motivating a consumption behavior that combines the two addictive.

Although smokers studied had a median BMI in the normal range and less than 1/6th or in leanness. Nearly half (48.3%) of them reported that they had lost weight since smoking ; corroborating the literature that reports a decrease in BMI decrease of 3 to 5 kg of weight in regulars smokers (12). Nevertheless, without establishing a numerical assessment of the weight loss associated with alcohol or tobacco consumption, we found that smokingalcohol consumption is a factor that negatively influences BMI significantly (r 2 = 0.049, p < 0.001). This is theoretically explained by the fact that nicotine acting on the same receptors as ethanol influences BMI by decreasing appetite, increasing energy expenditure and slowing down fat storage (11,38). The meta-analyzes of Nanhou and Piirtola confirm, as in our series, that long-term smoking decreases BMI (14,39).

In terms of haemodynamics, Kinshasa smokers have a median DBP of hypertensives, and 59% of them have a value greater than or equal to 90 mmHg. The increase in this DBP is positively influenced by age, the amount of tobacco stem and bottles of alcohol consumed (p <0.001), and the age of smoking (p = 0.008). This contrasts with the negative relationship between this DBP and seniority in alcoholism (p <0.001). Linneberg does not associate smoking with the elevation of DBP (15). But several other authors corroborate our series, associating smoking with increased blood pressure in a way general ; in fact, the work carried out in the DRC and elsewhere report that the amount of tobacco smoke regularly (pack-years) and the tobacco seniority are factors influenced ant hypertension (6,8,13,26). In addition, there are recognized relationships between heavy alcohol consumption and increased blood pressure regardless of race (40). Thus, a positive relationship between seniority for alcoholism and cumulative blood pressure has been reported (38,40), which does not support our series. The neuroendocrine arguments underlie tobacco and alcohol acting on the same receptors of the autonomic nervous system. They each have specific effects on vascular tone, myocardial activity and the angiotensin-aldosterone system (38,40). They work by increasing blood pressure through SBP and DBP. Although the receptors seem to have more affinity with nicotine; but in the situations of combined consumption of the two drugs, one would attribute the effects on the arterial pressure to the synergistic action of the compounds of two addictives (38); alcohol having the most action on the aldosterone-angiotensin system (40).

In the absence of comparison with a control, dyspnea, clinical and spirometric indicator group in these smokers, only the resting respiratory rate allowed to get an idea about the respiratory function of the studied sample. . The resting respiratory rate was high in more than 80% of smokers. We observed that it increased with the age of smoking (p <0.001), the age of alcohol consumption (p <0.001) and the amount of smoked tobacco (p <0.001). The majority of studies conducted on smokers report that smoking and alcoholism influence respiratory symptoms and worsen respiratory disease clinics, but do not specify their influence on the resting respiratory rate (41,42). It is also known that smoking is a risk factor for respiratory diseases (5,24,28). Therefore we can understand that the resting respiratory rate which is an indicator of respiratory disease is high in our series; and that it is influenced by the associated behavior smoking-alcoholism, both addictive having a cumulative effect on the stimulation of the autonomic nervous system, regulator of the respiratory rate (38).

Conclusion

This study on regular active smokers in Kinshasa showed that it is men, young people under 40 and the unemployed who smoke the most. These smokers have a sedentary behavior and more than 4/5ths of them consume alcohol regularly. This consumption of alcohol is strongly correlated with smoking. The quantity and duration of consumption of these two addictive substances are factors influencing their anthropometric and cardiorespiratory

Lofuta et al.

parameters. Regular awareness of this group on the combined consumption dangers of these two drugs is necessary.

Limitations on the methodology: low sample size to generalize, the subjective nature of the general characteristics, clinical and history of smokers studied will certainly be a significant factor in the interpretation of this study and its generalization.

Nevertheless, the study provides global information on Kinshasa smokers, the influence of addictive smokingalcohol consumption behavior, while allowing to project future studies taking into account the limitations of the present.

Acknowledgments: None

Conflict of Interest: The authors declare no potential conflicts of interest with respect to the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article.

Author's Contributions:

LVPG: field surveys, collection and analysis of data, preparation of the manuscript, **DG:** statistical analysis, manuscript revision and literature search. **KMA:** reading and revision of the manuscript. **KKL:** collection data and preparation of the manuscript. **LBF:** development of the manuscript. **MNR:** Reading and correction of the manuscript. **NBH:** reading, manuscript correction and literature search.

References

- Global Adult Tobacco Survey Collaborative-WHO: Questions on Smoking for Use in Surveys: A Subset of Key Questions from the Global Adult Tobacco Survey (GATS). 2nd edition. Atlanta. GA. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention [Internet]. 2011. Available from: http://www.who.int/tobacco/surveillance/en/
- Mbuyu MR. National Strategic Plan for Tobacco Control in the DRC (NPS 2016-2020). National Program for Combating Drug Addiction and Toxic Substances / PNLCT. Ministry of Public Health-DRC [Internet]. November 2015: 60. Available from: https://www.untobaccocontrol.org/impldb/wpcontent/uploads/reports
- 3. Beck F, Guignard R. Prevalence of smoking in France and international comparisons. Inpes. Department "Surveys and Statistical Analysis". Paris [Internet]. 2012. Available from: https://www.santepubliquefrance.fr
- 4. Molimard R. Critical analysis of messages of support to quit candidates. Sem.Hôp.Paris (1991) 67: 1326-35.
- 5. Hill C, Laplanche A. Smoking and mortality: epidemiological aspects. Bull Epidemiol Hebd 2003; 22-23: 98.
- Lagrue G, Maurel A. Smoking and vascular diseases. Encyc. Med.Chir. (Elsevier, Paris) Angeiology 19-0130, 2009: 6. Doi: 10.1016 / S0000-0000 (10) 49424-3.
- Sadowski J, Cornuz I. New ways of using tobacco and nicotine. Rev Med Switz 2009; 5: 1457-61.
- Gupta RL, Gupta N, Khedar RS. Smokeless tobacco and cardiovascular disease in low and middle income countries. Indian Heart J. 2013 Jul-Aug; 65 (4): 369-77. Doi: 10.1016 / j.ihj.2013.06.005. Epub 2013 Jul 16.

^{doi} http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.305

- Lauzeille D, Merchant JL, Ferrand M. Tobacco use by socioprofessional category and sector of activity - Methodological tool for epidemiology. Saint-Maurice (Fra): Institute of Health Surveillance, Diadeis -Paris [Internet]. December 2009: 208. Available from: http://www.invs.sante.fr
- 10. Bettcher D, Smith E, Perucic AM. Counter the global tobacco epidemic. Bull Epidemiol Hebd 2008; 21-22: 181.
- 11. OFT: stop smoking without gaining weight: is it true that you gain weight when you stop smoking? Inpes [Internet]. Available from: https://www.tabac-info-service.fr
- 12. Paquot N, Deveux M. Smoking and body weight. Medisurf. Patient care, 2006: 6-9.
- 13. CISSS: Lifestyle and Behavior: Smoking. Public Health Branch of the CISSS Bas-Saint-Laurent. Canada. 2016: 15-20.
- Piirtola M, Jelenkovic A, Latvala A, Sund R, Honda C, Inui F, and al. Association of running and smoking with body mass index: A study of tuxedo discordant twin peers from 21 twin cohorts. PLoS ONE, July 2018, 13 (7): 1-17 e0200140.
- Linneberg A, Jacobsen RK, Skaaby T, Taylor AE, Fluharty ME, Jeppesen JL and al. Effect of Smoking on Blood Pressure and Resting Heart Rate: A Mendelian Randomization Meta-Analysis in the CARTA Consortium. Circ Cardiovasc Genet. 2015; 8 (6): 832-41. Doi: 10.1161.
- Hart CL, Smith GD, Gruer L. Watt GCM The combined effect of smoking tobacco and drinking alcohol on cause-specific mortality: a 30 year cohort study. BMC Public Health. 2010; 10: 789.
- 17. Gaudette LA, Richardson A, Huang S. Workers who smoke. Canada Statistics. Catalog 82-003. Health Reports. 1998; 10 (3): 38.
- Beck F. Teen Smoking: A Closer Look at Epidemiology and Sociology, Medicine / Science 2011; 27: 308-10.
- Annesi-Maesano I, Oryszczyn MP, Raherison C, Kopferschmitt C, Pauli G, Taytard A. Increased prevalence of asthma and allied diseases among active adolescent tobacco smokers after controlling for passive smoking exposure. Because of concern? Clin Exp Allergy. 2004; 34 (7): 1017-23. Doi: 10.1111 / j.1365-2222.2004.02002.x.
- GYTS-Niger: Final Report of the Global Survey of Youth Tobacco in Niger. Nigerian Association for the Promotion of Public Health, Niamey [Internet]. 2001. Available from: http://www.int/tobacco/surveillance/Niger GYTS Report 2001
- 21. http://www.euro.who.int/en/health-topics/diseaseprevention/tobacco/data-and-statistics.
- Saloojee Y. Tobacco in Africa: More than a health threat in: Boyle P, Henningfield J, and al. Tobacco and public health: science and politics. New York: Oxford University Press; 2004: 267-77.
- 23. Network of African Science Academies. Prevention of a Tobacco Epidemic in Africa: A Call for Effective Action to Support Health. Social and Economic Development. Report of the Commission on the Adverse Effects of Tobacco on Health. The Economy and the development of Africa. Nairobi, Kenya [Internet]. 2014. Available from: http://www.nationalacademies.org/asadi/Africa Tobacco control
- Tshiasuma PM, Mbutiwi F, Tete OB, Kayembe NJM. Frequency, Phenotypes, and Determinants of Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) at University Clinics in Kinshasa. Ann. Afr. Med. 2007; 10 (4): 2653-59.
- Muchanga MJS, Lepira FB, Tozin R, Mbelambela EP, Ngatu NR, Sumaili EK, JR Makulo, Suganuma N. Prevalence and risk factors of pre-hypertension in Congolese pre and post-menopausal women. Afr. Health Sci. 2016 16 (4): 979-85 [PubMed].

Lofuta et al.

- Mbutiwi FIN, Lepira FB, Mbutiwi TL, Kumakuma DK, Kumbukama GK, Sylvestre MP. Prevalence and Sex-Specific Distribution of Cardiovascular Risk Factors in University Students in the Urban-Rural Environment of the Democratic Republic of Congo. J Community Health. 2018 Aug; 43 (4): 761-767. doi : 10.1007 / s10900-018-0481-5 [PubMed].
- Chomba E, Tshefu A, Onyamboko M, Kaseba SC, Moore J, McClure ME, Normand G, Bloch M, Goldenberg RL. Tobacco Use and Secondhand Smoke Exposure During Pregnancy in Two African Countries: Zambia and the Democratic Republic of the Congo. Acta Obstet Gynecol Scand. 2010; 89 (4): 531-9, [PubMed].
- Sokolo GJ, Longo MB, Matanda NJ, Lukoki LE, Reddy P, Buso D. Nose and throat complications associated with passive smoking among Congolese schoolchildren. Afr Health Sci. 2011 Sep; 11 (3): 315-9, [PubMed].
- 29. Kacenelenbogen N. Management of Tobacco Weaning in General Practice. Rev Med Brux 2009; 30: 359-71.
- CSS: Smoking, First Nations Regional Health Survey- 2008, CSS_1601_FicheSynthèse8_Fr_v2.indd. First Nations of Quebec and Labrador Health and Social Services Commission [Internet]. [Released on 07-07-2016]. Available from: http://www.cssspnql.com/en/popular-plants/regional-health-quest
- Baudier F, Badeyan G, Beck F, Dépinoy M, Dressen C, Fontaine D, et al. Tobacco: digital health, education for health to live better. CFES [Internet]. 1999: 01-99343-B. Available from: https://www.ziladoc.com/download/la-sante-en-chiffres-tabac_pdf
- 32. Makabu MNT, Mba M, Torelli C. Employment, Unemployment and Conditions of Activity in the Democratic Republic of Congo: Main Results of Phase 1 of the 1-2-3 Survey 2004-2005. IRD. Dial. [Internet]. DT / 2007-14. Available from: https://drcongo.iom.int/sites/defaults/files/PDF
- ANAPI: economic and social situation of the DRC [Internet]. [published August 8, 2017] Available from: http://www.investindrc.cd/en/generalites-sur-la-rdc/environmenteconomic-investments/economic-and-social-situation-of-the-rdc

doi http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.305

- Filloux S, Rebolledo H, Cousin F, Bartsch P, Prignot J, Wanlin M. Sport and Tobacco Let's talk about it! FARES [Internet]. December 2010, Legal Deposit D/2010/5052/4. Available from: http://www.fares.be/static/upload/Cahiersporttabac
- Mbutshu HL, Ngatu RN, Malonga FK, Mbelambela PE, Nyembwe DS, Kayembe NJM. Prevalence and factors associated with Workrelated among Dust-exposed Cassava Congolese and Corn Millers. Ann. Afr. Med; Déc.2014; 8 (1): 1833-38.
- Lebargy F. Influence of Smoking on Respiratory Diseases: Ideas Received and Reality. Focus. La Lettre du Cancérologue. April 2008; 17 (4): 149-57.
- Gold DR et al. Effects of cigarette smoking on lung function in adolescent boys and girls. New England Journal of Medicine. 1996; 335 (13): 931-37.
- Molimard R. Alcoholology, Tabacology, Addictology: question of words? (Editorial) Courrier des Addictions. 2000; 2 (3): 99-100.
- 39. Nanhou V, Ducharme A, Eid H. Initiation to tobacco, alcohol and drugs: an overview of the situation during the passage of the 6th grade to the 1st year of secondary Statistics Institute of Quebec. Portraits and Trajectories. ELDEQ series [Internet]. 2013 (16):1-8, ISSN: 1913-4479. Available from: https://www.docplayer.fr/20959235-Publications-de-l-isq
- 40. Gasche PV, Leuenberger V, Sutter K, Nakhlé AR. Hypertension and Alcohol Use. Rev Med Switz. 2006; 2 (78): 31629.
- 41. Yong L, Pleasants R, Croft JB, Wheaton AG, Heidari K, Malarcher AM et al. Duration, symptoms, and symptoms of COPD. July 2015: 10 1409-16.
- Forey BA, AJ Thornton, Lee PN. Systematic review with metaanalysis of the epidemiological evidence relating to COPD. Chronic bronchitis and emphysema. BMC Pulmonary Medicine. 2011. 11:36; doi: 10.1186 / 1471-2466-11-36.

Copyright © 2019 The Author(s); This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0), (CC BY NC) which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited. International journal of Medical Science and Discovery.

OPEN ACCESS JOURNAL



Medical Science and Discovery 2019; 6(10):249-56

Research Article

Doi: 10.36472/msd.v6i10.306

Determination of the anxiety, depression and psychological resilience levels of mothers with children diagnosed with attention deficit hyperactivity disorder

Kübra Abacı Erginyavuz¹, Nurgül Özdemir²*

Abstract

Objective: This descriptive study was carried out for determining the anxiety, depression and psychological resilience levels of mothers with children diagnosed with Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder.

Material and Method: Study population was comprised of mothers with children diagnosed with ADHD who applied to a state hospital in central Gaziantep province for outpatient treatment during April – August 2017, whereas the number of samples was determined as 54 according to power analysis. The study was carried out with 163 mothers. "Sociodemographic Questionnaire", "Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale", "Beck Anxiety Scale" and "Psychological Resilience Scale for Adults" were used for obtaining the required data. The data were analyzed using SPSS Windows version 24.0 software.

Results: It was determined that the depression and anxiety levels of mothers with children diagnosed withADHD are at a low level, while their psychological resilience levels are good. A statistically significant relationship was determined between the mental health state of mothers and the adaptation of the child to the environment and Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale, Beck Anxiety ScaleandPsychological Resilience Scale (p<0.05).

Conclusion: It should be kept in mind that having a child diagnosed with ADHD may cause mothers to experience mental issues such as anxiety and depression while also decreasing their psychological resilience. Thus, the importance of carrying out psychological assessments not only for the child but also on the parents with emphasis on mothers should not be ignored during the treatment process.

Keywords: Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder, Mother, Depression, Anxiety, Psychological Resilience, Psychiatric Nursing

Introduction

Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) is an important public health issue since it is the most frequent psychiatric disorder during childhood. Its prevalence in the world varies between 8 % to 12 % (1,2). It is indicated that children with ADHD have a more negative relationship with their parents because they are stressful, demanding and insistent resulting in adverse impacts on familial relations as well as the mental states of parents (3). Studies carried out indicate that mothers of children with ADHD experience greater parenthood stress, have less self-confidence with more anxiety and Depression in comparison with mothers of normal children and that their problem solving skills are lower (4,5).

Whereas anxietyand depressive disorders are important psychological disorders that are frequently observed in society with severe impacts on the social and professional functions of individuals resulting in decreased quality of life (6). Studies put forth that lifetime prevalence of depression is 10-25% for females, 5-12% for males and that females are affected twice more than males (6,7). It is also accepted when anxiety disorders are examined with regard to gender that they are twice more frequent among females than among males (7). Majority of the mothers experiencing psychological disorders in our society are diagnosed but cannot be treated.Untreated mothers may experience many different issues such as lack of the

Received 05-09-2019 Accepted 17-10-2019 Available Online 18-10-2019 Published 30-10-2019

* Corresponding Author: Nurgül Özdemir E-mail: nuozdemir@gantep.edu.tr



¹ Cengiz Gökçek Children's and Women's and Gynecology Hospital, Şehitkamil, Gaziantep, TR

² Gaziantep University, Faculty of Health Sciences, Department of Psychiatric Nursing, Gaziantep, TR

self-confidence, negative parenthood attitudes, problematic marital relationships, loss of labor, child abuse and child neglect (8). Whereas Psychological Resilience considered as the ability of an individual to adapt to and cope with important stressors such as a personal trauma, threat, familial-relational problems, health issues and economic issues is reduced in psychological disorders such as anxiety and depression (9,10).

Treatable issues of depressionand anxiety lead to loss of ability and impairments in health perception thereby reducing the quality of life (11). Early diagnosis and treatment prevents adverse impacts on child development in addition to preventing the mothers from harming themselves and others around them due to increasing depressionand anxiety intensities while also strengthening their psychological resilience (8).

It is important that these mothers in the society are diagnosed early on and directed to treatment.Nurses who spend the highest amount of time with the patient, patient relatives and families, who take care of them and with whom the patient and his/her relatives can share their needs and problems as well as psychiatric nurses who have the opportunity to closely monitor and assess the families and the patients play vital roles in this process.

In this study we aimes to determine the anxiety, depression and psychological resilience levels of mothers with children diagnosed with Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder.

Material and Methods

Population and Sample Group

The study population was comprised of mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD who applied to the state hospital in central Gaziantep during April – August 2017 for outpatient treatment. The number of samples was determined as 54 as a result of the power analysis carried out. A total of 163 mothers who meet the study criteria at the time of the study comprised the sample group.

Data Acquisition Tools

Sociodemographic Questionnaire; The sociodemographic questionnaire prepared by the researcher in accordance with literature was comprised of 28 questions. The questions included those on the age, marriage age, marital status, number of children, education level, occupation, income level and mental illness status for mothers of children diagnosed with Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder; the age, profession, education level, economic status of the spouse as well as those on the place of residence of the family, family structure and the age, diagnosed age, school success and environmental adaptation for the diagnosed child.

Beck AnxietyScale (BAS); It is a self-assessment scale used for measuring the symptoms of anxiety experienced by the individual.The Likert type scale is comprised of 21 items and scored between 0-3. The Turkish reliability and validity study for the scale developed by Beck et al. in 1988 was completed in 1998 by Ulusoy et al. Questions are directed at the individual to determine the level of distress caused by the sense of anxiety in the past week.Classification is made based on the test scores as light, moderate and severe anxiety. The highest score that can be obtained from the scale is 63. High total scores indicate high anxiety levels or intensity.Anxiety levels have been classified according to scores obtained from BAS as; scores of 0-17 low, scores of 18-24 moderate, scores of 25 and + high anxiety (12).The Cronbach alfa for the scale has been calculated as 0,909 in the present study.

Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale(ZDS); The original Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale has been developed by Zungin1965 for evaluating depression symptoms. The reliability and validity study for the scale was carried out by Ceyhun et al. The items in the scale include the affective, cognitive, behavioral and physiological dimensions of depression. Comprised of 20 items, the scale includes 10 non-reverse and reverse (scored reversely) questions. It is a Likert type scale for which each item is evaluated in four levels as; never or very rarely, sometimes, frequently and most of the time.Scale items numbered 1., 3.,4., 7.,8.,9.,10.,13.,15. and 19 are non-reverse, whereasitems 2.,5.,6.,11.,12.,14.,16.,17.,18., and 20 are reverse. Non-reverse items in the scale are scored from 1 to 2.3.4 whereas reverse items are scored from 4 to 3, 2, 1. The item scores are then summed up and the raw score acquired from the scale is transformed into a value out of 100. The lowest raw score that can be obtained from the scale is 20 which corresponds to an SDS (Depressionscore) of 25 out of 100 whereas the highest raw score is 80 corresponding to an SDS score of 100. The following formula is used for transforming the raw scores into a value out of 100:

Index= (Raw Score Total / Maximum Score of 80) x 100

Scores of 50 % or above indicate depression. When the cutoff scores are examined, scale scores of less than 50 % is considered as normal; between 50-59 % as light depression; 60-69 % indicates moderate depression; whereas scores that are above70 % are defined as severe depression(13,14). The Cronbach alfa of the scale was determined as 0,778 in this study.

Resilience Scale for Adults (RSARSA); The scale originally entitled as 'Resilience Scale for Adults' has been developed in 2005 by Friborg et al. and the Turkish validity and reliability for the scale has been carried out in 2011 by Nejat Basım and Fatih Çetin. The scale comprised of 33 questions has been prepared to eliminate acquaintance bias and enables any desired assessment by way of its 5-point Likert structure with 5 boxes across the responses. If psychological resilience is expected to increase with decreasing scale scores, the answer boxes should be evaluated from left to right as 54321. If it is desired that psychological resilience increases with increasing scores, answer boxes should be evaluated from left to right as 12345 (10). The answer boxes were evaluated from left to right as 12345 with the expectation that psychological resilience will increase with increasing scores. The Cronbach alfa coefficient for the original scale was 0.86 and it was determined in the present study as 0.87.

Statistical Analysis

Shaphirowilk test was used for testing whether the data fit normal distribution, Student t test was used for comparing characteristics with normal distribution in 2 independent groups, whereas Mann Whitney u test was used for comparing characteristics without normal distribution in 2 independent groups. Moreover, one way analysis of variance (ANOVA) and LSD multiple comparison tests were used for comparing numerical data in more than 2 independent groups for characteristics with normal distribution, while Kruskal Wallis test and All pairwise multiple comparison test were used for characteristics without normal distribution. The relationships between numerical variables were tested by way of Spearman correlation coefficient. Cronbach alfa coefficients were calculated for testing validity and reliability. Mean±standard deviation was calculated for numerical variables as descriptive statistics whereas number and % values were provided for categorical variables. SPSS Windows version 24.0 software was used for statistical analysis and p<0.05 was accepted as statistically significant.

Ethical Principles of the Study

Study data were acquired from mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD who volunteered to participate in the study after all written permits were taken from the Gaziantep University Clinical Studies Ethics Council (2017/87) and the Public Hospitals Union under the Ministry of Health related to the study. The mothers who accepted to participate in the study were asked to sign the informed consent forms after they were informed of the purpose of the study and that their information will not be disclosed. Permits were also obtained for the scales used from their respective owners.

Results

It was determined that 30.1 % of the mothers who participated in the study are in the 30-34 age interval,6.1 % are single, 34.4 % have 2 children, 49.1 % are primary school graduates, 82.8 % are housewives, 76.1 % do not have personal incomes, whereas it was determined that 38.0 % of the fathers are primary school graduates, 35.6 % are aged 40 and above, 52.8 % are self-employed, 58.9 % have an income level ranging between 1300-3000tl, that 23.3 % of the families do not have social security, 4.9 % live in districts, 9.8 % have an extended family structure, that 22.7 % of the mothers smoke/consume alcohol, that 6.7 % of the mothers and 9.8 % of the fathers are diagnosed withADHD, that 17.2 % of the other children in the family are diagnosed withADHD, that27.6 % of the mothers have a mental illness, that of those mothers with mental illness 16 % suffer from depression, whereas 11 % haveanxiety disorder, that 71.2 % do not receive psychological support for themselves regarding the state of their child, that 6.7 % do not consult to psychologists, special educators, psychological counselors, mental health specialists and that 33.74 % spend their spare time playing with their child. It was determined that 36.8 % of the children diagnosed with ADHD do not come to their controls regularly, 19.6 % are not successful and that 28.8 % have bad adaptation with their environment. The total score average for the Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale Ham (scale total score) for mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD was determined as 40.56±8.93(min=24.00, max=73.00), the total score average for the Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale SD (total scale score transformed to 100 system) was determined as 50.70±11.17(min=30.00, max=91.25).The Beck Anxiety Scaletotal score average for the mothers was determined as 17.41±11.05 (min=1.00, max=57.00). Psychological Resilience Scale (RSA) total score average was calculated as 116.68±19.74 (min=48.00, max=157.00) (Table 1).

Table.1. Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale, Beck Anxiety Scaleand, Psychological Resilience Scale Total Score Averages

Scales	Min-Max	AvgStd.
Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale Ham	24.00-73.00	40.56±8.93
Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale SD	30.00-91.25	50.70±11.17
Beck Anxiety Scale	1.00-57.00	17.41±11.05
Psychological Resilience Scale	48.00-157.00	116.68±19.74

Table.2. Correlation between Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale, Beck Anxiety Scale and Psychological Resilience

 Scale

Scales	Correlation Values	Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale	Beck Anxiety Scale	Psychological Resilience Scale
Zung Self-Rating	r	1.000	0.635**	-0.572**
Depression Scale	р		0.001	0.001
Beck Anxiety Scale	r		1.000	-0.382**
·	p			0.001

r: Spearman correlation coefficient, ** statistically significant at a level of r= 0.001, *statistically significant at a level of r=0.005

A strong and positively significant correlation was determined between the Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale and Beck Anxiety Scale (r=0.635, p: 0.001). There was a negative and moderate correlation between the Zung Self-Rating Depression Scale and Psychological Resilience Scale (r=-0.572, p: 0.001).A moderate and negative statistically significant correlation was observed between the Beck Anxiety Scaleand Psychological Resilience Scale (r=-0.382, p: 0.001) (Table 2). A statistically significant difference was determined between the environmental adaptation of children diagnosed with ADHD and the mental illness states of the mothers and total score averages for ZDS, BAS and RSA (p<005).A statistically significant difference was determined between the school success levels of the children and the ZDSand RSAtotal score averages of the mothers (p<0.05); a statistically significant difference was observed between the family structure and the ZDSandBAS total score averages of the mothers (p<0.05); a statistically significant difference was observed between the father being diagnosed with ADHD and the ZDSand RSA total score averages of the mothers (p<0.05); a statistically9 significant difference was determined between the income level of the father and the ZDSand RSA total score averages of the mothers (p<0.05);

a statistically significant difference was determined between whether mothers receive psychological support for themselves regarding the state of their child and the ZDSand BAS total score averages of the mothers (p<0.05); a statistically significant difference was determined between the income levels of the mothers and their RSA total score averages (p<0.05); a statistically significant difference was observed between the education level of the mothers and their RSA total score averages (p<0.05); a statistically significant difference was determined between whether mothers receive psychological support for themselves regarding the state of their child and their BAS total score averages (p<0.05); a statistically significant difference was determined between the profession of the mothers and their RSA total score averages (p<0.05); a statistically significant difference was determined between the education level of the fathers and the RSA total score averages of the mothers (p<0.05); a statistically significant difference was determined between the mental illness diagnosis of the mothers and their RSA total score averages (p<005); a statistically significant difference was determined between whether mothers smoke/consume alcohol and their ZDS total score averages (p<005) (Table 3).

 Table.3:
 Comparison of Sociodemographic Data withZung Self-Rating Depression Scale, Beck Anxiety Scale andPsychological Resilience Scale Total Score Averages

Attributes	Zung Self- Rating Depression	Statistics	Beck Anxiety Scale	Statistics	Psychological Resilience Scale	Statistics
	Scale		beate		Beale	
Child's Adaptation to the	e Environmen	t	L		•	
Good (50)	45.92±8.42	f=9.962	14.06±10.15	f=4.613	120.06±15.37	f=3.243
Moderate (66)	50.89±11.77	p=0.001 ^{***}	17.59±11.71	p=0.011 [*]	118.40±19.96	p=0.042*
Bad (47)	55.53±10.93		20.72±10.14		110.68±22.46	
Mental Illness State of t	he Mother					
Yes (45)	56.22±12.03	z=-3.708	23.93±10.55	z=-5.333	106.60±20.33	z=-4.106
No (118)	48.60±10.11	p=0.001***	14.92±10.23	p=0.001***	120.53±18.17	p=0.001***
School Success of the Cl	nild					
Successful (42)	48.21±11.55	$x^2 = 6.093$	17.33±12.67	$x^2 = 0.519$	120.45 ± 16.96	x ² =3.084
Moderate (59)	50.95 ± 10.38	p=0.048 [*]	17.59±10.16	p=0.772	116.18±15.90	p=0.049*
Not successful (32)	54.60±11.74		18.59 ± 11.80		110.06 ± 21.91	
Family Structure						
Nuclear Family (147)	49.86±10.98	z=-2.903	16.61 ± 10.85	z=-3.023	117.87 ± 19.21	z=-1.922
Extended Family (16)	58.43±10.11	p=0.004 [*]	24.68 ± 10.47	p=0.003*	105.81 ± 21.84	p=0.055
ADHD Diagnosis State	of the Father					
Yes (16)	57.81±11.44	z=-2.666	21.00±13.88	z=-0.927	106.75 ± 24.98	z=2.143
No (147)	49.93±10.90	p=0.008*	17.92 ± 10.68	p=0.354	117.76 ± 18.87	p=0.034*
Income Level of the Fat	her					
No income (8)	59.21±10.56	$x^2 = 9.772$	24.12±12.48	$x^2 = 6.045$	107.50±16.66	$x^2 = 12.205$
0-1300t (27)	52.54±9.63	p=0.021*	19.55±11.53	p=0.109	$112.14{\pm}18.50$	p=0.007*
1301-3000₺(96)	50.82±11.42		$17.14{\pm}10.93$		$115.14{\pm}19.41$	
3001 [†] and above (32)	46.67±10.51		14.71±10.10		127.43±19.11	
State of the Mother Rec	eiving Psycholo	ogical Suppor	rt for their Chi	ld		
Yes (47)	54.28±12.86	z=-2.369	22.68±12.59	z=-3.786	115.44±24.17	z=-0.082
No (116)	49.25±10.11	p=0.018 [*]	15.27±9.63	p=0.001***	117.18±17.73	p=0.934

Income Level of the Mot	her			-		
No income (124)	51.63±10.43	$x^2 = 6.572$	17.58±10.11	$x^2 = 3.523$	112.55±18.50	$x^2 = 27.528$
0-1300₺ (13)	49.61±12.91	p=0.087	20.38±14.85	p=0.318	123.15±17.16	p=0.001****
1301-3000 [‡] (10)	50.75±17.40		16.00±15.94		124.10±19.22	
3001 [†] band above (16)	44.37±9.42		14.56±11.55		138.81±14.46	
Education Level of the M	Iothers					
Illiterate+primary	52.11±11.51	$x^2 = 4.344$	18.21±10.62	$x^2 = 6.358$	111.25±17.79	$x^2 = 29.562$
school		p=0.227		p=0.095		p=0.001 ^{***}
Secondary school	52.11±10.65		20.31±13.55		113.68±16.33	
High school	47.15±9.96		14.44 ± 8.14		122.44±17.51	
University	47.90±11.02		14.32±11.03		132.68±22.43	
State of Mothers Apply	ing to Psycholo	gists, Specia	l Educators, P	sychological	Counselors, Cl	nild Mental
Health Specialists for the	eir Child					
Yes (152)	50.95±11.02	z=-1.059	17.76±10.87	z=-2.109	116.65±20.19	z=-0.007
No (11)	47.27±13.14	p=0.289	12.59±12.82	p=0.035*	117.09±12.56	p=0.995
Profession of the mother						
Housewife (135)	51.39±10.65	x ² =5.969	17.82±10.56	x ² =4.570	113.63±18.20	X ²
Private sector	53.00±15.87	p=0.051	19.20±15.76	p=0.102	120.70±25.10	=22.881
employee (10)		_				p=0.001 [*]
Public employee (18)	44.23±10.50		13.33±11.48		137.33±15.33	
Education Level of the F	athers	-			•	
Illiterate+primary	51.65±10.55	x ² =2.015	17.84±10.41	x ² =2.005	109.69±19.24	X ²
school (65)		p=0569		p=0.571		=13.901
Secondary school (29)	49.48±10.20	_	16.79±10.08		120.41±15.07	p=0.003*
High school (36)	51.84±12.43	_	18.97±13.42		119.97±18.05	
University (33)	48.67±11.84		15.39±10.39		123.60±22.44	
Mental Disease Diagnosi	s of the Mother	•				
Depression (26)	58.94±12.04	t=1.965	24.46±10.65	t =-0.765	100.34±19.56	t=0.408
Anxietydisorder (18)	51.87±11.25	p=0.056	23.11±10.95	p=0.444	116.11±18.64	p=0.011 [*]
Age of the father					•	
18-24 (0)	-	$x^2 = 4.433$	-	$x^2 = 2.404$	-	$x^2 = 7.953$
25-29 (15)	50.66±8.88	p=0.218	16.00±10.07	p=0.493	122.33±16.48	p=0.047 [*]
30-34 (40)	51.75±11.02		19.60±13.08		115.17±19.63	
35-39 (50)	52.27±11.98		18.44±11.68	ļ	111.08±22.63	
40 and above (58)	48.64±11.02		15.37±8.88		121.10±17.41	
Smoking/Alcohol Use Sta	ate for the Moth	ners		•	•	
Yes (37)	55.37±11.75	z=-2.841	18.89±10.42	z=-1.233	112.35±18.91	z=-1.648
No (126)	49.33±10.66	p=0.004*	16.97±11.23	p=0.218	117.96±19.87	p=0.099

Discussion

It was determined in our study that the depressionand anxiety of the mothers are at a low level and that they have good psychological resilience.It was observed upon evaluating the correlation between the scales that psychological resilience levels are low for mothers with high depression and anxiety levels. Xia W et al. (2015) carried out a study as a result of which it was put forth that mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD experience anxiety and depressive symptoms more; Durukan et al.(2008) reported in their study that the depressionand anxiety levels are high for mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD; where as McAuley et al.(2009) put forth as a result of their study that the anxiety and depression ratios of the mothers are high (15,16,17). While Simsek et al. (2012) identified that mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD have higher psychiatric symptoms, Vincent Chin et al.(2014) concluded that mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD have higher depression levels (3,18).

(2015) The that dependence in our study that the depression of anxiety levels are high for mothers with mental illness. ADHD is evaluated as a significant stressor for the family and especially for the mothers (14) Studies carried out

of children diagnosed with ADHD.

and especially for the mothers (14). Studies carried out indicate that psychiatric issues are observed more frequently in families of children diagnosed with ADHD (19). It was determined that the psychological resilience levels of mothers with anxiety disorder are lower in comparison with mothers diagnosed with depression. McCormick et al. (1995) carried out a study as a result of which major depression was determined at a ratio of 17,9 % in mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD, whereas minor depression ratio was determined as 20,5 % (20). Karakoç Demirkaya et al. (2015) carried out a study

No study could be determined during literature surveys

carried out which evaluate the correlation between the

depression, anxietyand psychological resilience of mothers

evaluating the disease burden in the families of cases diagnosed with ADHD as a result of which it was determined that 15,6 % of the mothers have a psychiatric disease story (21).

It was determined in the study that bad environment adaptation of children diagnosed with ADHD leads to increased depressionand anxiety levels in their mothers while also decreasing their psychological resilience. Cakaloz et al. (2007) carried out a study as a result of which it was reported that social issues are observed frequently in both the ADHD and ADHD+KOKGB group (22). McAuley et al. (2009) put forth in their study that the mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD who experience more issues related with behavior problems and environment adaptation suffer more from anxiety and depression (17). It is observed that the results of this study are in parallel with those of others. It is reported that children with ADHD frequently experience problems in their relations with friends and peers, that their relationships with parents and siblings are also affected adversely and that it affects the mother more drastically leading to psychological issues since the mother plays a more effective role in childcare (23).

It was determined in our study that the depression levels are higher for mothers of students with low academic success, whereas their psychological resilience levels are lower. It is reported that children with ADHD experience learning difficulties and display academic failure, weak performance and educational issues (24,25). Biederman et al. (1996) carried out a study as a result of which it has been presented that children with ADHD have lower reading and arithmetic test scores, that their rates of repeating the class increase and that there are increases with regard to the use of corrective academic services and placement in special education classrooms (26). Whereas Çakaloz et al. (2007) carried out a study in which it failure at school was observed more in both the ADHD and ADHD+KOKGB groups (22). Özyurt et al. (2015) carried out a study indicating that issues related with children diagnosed with ADHD such as difficulties with homework, not being able to protect their objects, failure to tidy up his/her room, difficulties in carrying out their duties at home increase the parenthood stress of mothers as well as their anxiety levels (27).

It was determined in this study that while ADHD diagnosis in mothers does not have any impact on Anxiety Depression and psychological resilience, having a spouse and child diagnosed with ADHD increases the depression levels of mothers while decreasing their psychological resilience.It is reported that ADHD diagnosis in parents increases the risk of disease in children by eight times and that the disease has a strong tendency for genetic transition(2). Şimşek et al. (2012) carried out a study as a result of which it has been reported that psychiatric symptoms and ADHD symptoms are at high levels in both mothers and parents of children diagnosed with ADHD (3). McAuley et al. (2009) reported in their study that ADHD symptoms have a negative impact on mothers and that the mothers are affected not only by their own ADHD symptoms but also those by those of their children and spouses leading to chaos in the house and stress in the mothers (17).

The depression ratio of mothers without any income was determined to be high in our study, while their psychological resilience levels were determined to be low. It was determined that the mothers with high income levels have high psychological resilience. It has been reported that ADHD is observed frequently among socioeconomically disadvantageous groups in many regions of the world (28). Russell et al. (2015) put forth that ADHD symptoms are affected by financial problems in the household at a ratio of 27,8 % and that family stress increases thus making the symptoms worse (29). Greene et al. (2002) carried out a study as a result of which it was determined that psychosocial factors and low socioeconomic level increases the risk of ADHD in children (30). It is indicated that socioeconomic difficulties lead to the onset of depression with an impact on its prognosis and that it increases the frequency of additional diagnoses (31). Yağmur and Türkmen (2017) carried out a study for determining the perceived stress and psychological resilience levels of family members providing care to patients with a mental illness as a result of which it has been reported that perceived stress is higher in the relatives of patients with low income and that the psychological resilience levels are lower (p<0.005) (32).

It was determined in the present study that mothers with an extended family structure have higher depressionand anxiety levels in comparison with those having a nuclear family structure. Çöp et al. (2017) determined in their study that 82,8 % of the children diagnosed with ADHD have a nuclear family structure (33). Aktepe (2011) reported in their study that the family structure is nuclear for 73,9 % and extended for 15% (34). No study was observed during the literature surveys carried out which have focused on the family structure of children diagnosed with ADHD and the stats of depressionand anxiety in mothers.

It was determined in our study that mothers who receive psychological support regarding the state of their child have higher levels of depression and anxiety. No study was observed in literature that examines mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD receiving psychological support regarding the state of their children. The level of knowledge and awareness consciousness of mothers are tried to be improved during psychological support. Increase in awareness consciousness and access to knowledge may lead to an increase in the levels of anxiety of mothers related with their children. It is considered that failure of themothers to cope effectively with increased levels of anxiety will lead to depression.

It was determined that the education levels of the mothers and fathers who participated in this study are at illiterate and primary school level, that the depression and anxiety levels are high for illiterate participants and that their psychological resilience levels are low. Whereas it was determined that mothers with university graduate spouses have high psychological resilience levels. The education level of parents is reported as a significant risk factor in psychopathology development in children. It is reported that the child rearing methods tend to be less traditional and more positive with increasing education levels of mothers and that behavioral and emotional issues are observed less in these children (20). It was determined as a result of the literature survey carried out in accordance with our findings that the education levels are secondary school and below for majority of the parents in studies by Yıldız et al. (2016), Öztürk et al. (2000), Karakoç Demirkaya et al. (2015), Çakaloz et al. (2007), Çöp et al. (2017) and Özcan et al. (1998) (14,20,21,33,35,36). No study was determined on the impact of the education levels of mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD on the depression and anxiety levels of mothers and it has been reported as a result of a study by Çengelci (2009) on mothers of disabled children that the anxiety levels of mothers increase with decreasing education level (37). Firat (2016) reported in a study on the parents of autistic children that mental symptom states and anxiety levels of mothers decrease with increasing education level (38).

It was determined in our study that mothers working as public personnel have higher psychological resilience levels in comparison with housewife mothers. Whereas, results indicate to that the psychological resilience levels of mothers working in the private sector are lower in comparison with those of public personnel mothers. A relationship could not be determined between the profession of the father and the depression, anxietyand psychological resilience levels of mothers. It is known that the education levels of the parents have a significant impact on their choice of profession which in turn also has a significant impact on their style of parenting and family relations (39). It was determined as a result of a literature survey that majority of the mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD are housewives (36,39). The results of our study are similar in this respect with the results of other studies in literature. No study was observed in literature that examines the relationship between the depression, anxietyand psychological resilience levels of mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD with regard to their profession and it has been reported as a result of the study by Uğuz et al. (2004) on the professions of mothers of disabled children that parents of disabled children who are unemployed have higher rates of depression (40).

While no relationship was determined in this study between the ages of the mothers and their levels of depression, anxietyand psychological resilience; it was determined that the psychological resilience levels are higher for mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD with the age of their spouse ranging between 35-39 and 40 and above. The results of the present study were similar with those of other studies on the age average of parents of children diagnosed with ADHD (35).

It was determined in this study that 93.3 % of the mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD have applied to psychologists, special educators, psychological counselors, child psychiatry specialists for their children. It is indicated that the problem solving skills of mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD are lower in comparison with those of the mothers of healthy children, that social skills are lower for children with ADHD and their families and hence

dol http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.306

they experience difficulties in perceiving, evaluating and reacting properly to social processes. It is indicated that the problem solving skills and strategies of families are important and that counseling is required for increasing the problem solving skills (35,39).

This study has been carried out only on the mothers of children diagnosed with ADHD and impacts have been evaluated only for the mothers which is a significant limitation of our study. Studies including all family members can be carried out for determining the impacts of ADHD on other individuals in the family. The study carried out for the province of Gaziantep can be repeated for other provinces and comparisons can be made.

Conclusion

In conclusion, ADHD is an important public health issue with impacts primarily on the child as well as schools, families and the society. Hence, it is important that them others and the parents shoul be evaluated during the treatment process in addition to the child.

Acknowledgments: None

Conflict of Interest: The authors declare no potential conflicts of interest with respect to the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article.

Author's Contributions:

KAE, **NÖ**: Data Collection, Literature Search, Preparation of the article, statistical analysis, **NÖ**: manuscript revision

References

- Tufan AE, Yaluğ İ. Dikkat eksikliği hiperaktivite bozukluğunda tıbbi eş tanılar. Psikiyatride Güncel Yaklaşımlar. 2009; 1: 187-200.
- Akgün MG, Tufan AE, Yurteri N, Erdoğan A. Dikkat eksikliği hiperaktivite bozukluğunun genetic boyutu. Psikiyatride Güncel Yaklaşımlar. 2011; 3(1): 15-48.
- Şimşek Ş, Gökçen C, Fettahoğlu EÇ. Dikkat eksikliği hiperaktivite bozukluğu (DEHB) olan çocukların ebeveynlerinde DEHB ve diğer psikiyatrik belirtiler. Düşünen Adam Psikiyatri ve Nörolojik Bilimler Dergisi. 2012; 25(3): 230-237.
- İmren SG, Rodopman Arman A, Ulusan S. Dikkat eksikliği hiperaktivite bozukluğu olan çocukların ebeveynleri ve kardeşlerinde psikopatoloji. Düşünen Adam theJournal of Psychatri and Neurological Sciences. 2013; 26:89-95.
- Deniz E, Öztop DB, Mıstık S. Dikkat eksikliği hiperaktivite bozukluğu. Türk Aile Hekimleri Dergisi. 2008; 12(4): 207-212.
- Karamustafalıoğlu O, Yumruçal H. Depresyonve anksiyete bozuklukları. Şişli Etfal Hastanesi Tıp Bülteni. 2011;45(2): 65-74.
- Engin E. Anksiyete, obsesif kompulsif ve ilişkili bozukluklar. İçinde: Ruh sağlığı ve psikiyatri hemşireliğinin temelleri. Özcan T, Gürhan N (Eds). 6. Baskı. Akademisyen Tıp Kitabevi, Ankara, 2016: p:460-489.
- Battaloğlu B, Aydemir N,Hatipoğlu S. Sağlam çocuk polikliniğine başvuran 0-1 yaş bebeği olan annelerde depresyon taraması ve depresyonda etkili risk faktörlerini belirleme. Bakırköy Tıp Dergisi. 2012; 8(1):12-21. DOI: 10.5350/BTDMJB201208103
- Okanlı A, Güngörmüş K, Kocabeyoğlu T. Hemşirelik öğrencilerinin psikolojik dayanıklılıkları ve etkileyen faktörler. Psikiyatri Hemşireliği Dergisi. 2015;6(1):9-14.

Erginyavuz et al.

- Basım N, Çetin F. Yetişkinler İçin Psikolojik Dayanıklılık Ölçeği'nin güvenilirlik ve geçerlilik çalışması. Türk Psikiyatri Dergisi. 2011;22(2):104-114.
- Okyay P, Atasoylu G, Önde M, Dereboy Ç. Kadınlarda yaşam kalitesi anksiyete ve depresyon belirtilerinin varlığından nasıl etkileniyor? Kesitsel bir alan çalışması. Türk Psikiyatri Dergisi. 2012;23(3): 178-188.
- Aydın H, Diler S.R, Yurdagül E, Uğuz Ş, Şeydaoğlu G. DEHB Tanılı çocukların ebeveynlerinde DEHB oranı. Klinik Psikiyatri. 2006; 9:70-74.
- Kocabaşoğlu N. Anksiyete bozukluklarına acil yaklaşım takip ve tedavisi. İ.Ü. Cerrahpaşa Tıp Fakültesi Sürekli Tıp Eğitimi Etkinlikleri Sempozyum Dizisi. 2008; 62: 175-184.
- Öztürk M, Sayar K, Tüzün Ü, Tanriöver Kandil S. Dikkat eksikliği hiperaktivite bozukluğu'nda metilfenidat ve benlik saygısı. Klinik Psikofarmakoloji. 2000; 10:139-143.
- 15. Xia W, Shen L, Zhang J. Comorbid anxiety and depression schoolaged children with attention deficithy peractivity disorder (ADHD) and self reported symptom of ADHD, anxiety, and depression among parents of school-aged children with and without ADHD. 2015; 27(6):356-367.
- Durukan İ, Türkbay T, Cöngöloğlu A. Dikkat eksikliği hiperaktivite bozukluğu olan çocuklarda metilfenidatın çeşitli görsel dikkat bileşenleri üzerine etkisi. Türk Psikiyatri Dergisi. 2008; 19(4):358-364.
- 17. McAuley T, Chaban P, Tannock R. ADHD and social- emotion alabilities. About Kids Health.2009.http://www.aboutkidshealth.ca/En/ResourceCentres/AD HD/TreatmentofADHD/Behavioural Therapyfor ADHD/Pages/ADHDandSocial-EmotionalAbilities.aspx (erişim tarihi:18.03.2018).
- Vincent C, Chen H, Yeh J, Lee TC, Chou JY, Shao WS and et al. Symtoms of attention deficithy peractivity disorder and quality of like of mothers of shooleged children: Theroles of Child, mother, and family variables. The Kaohsiung Journal of Medical Sciences. 2014.30(12):631-638.
- Aydın H, Diler S.R, Yurdagül E, Uğuz Ş, Şeydaoğlu G. DEHB tanılı çocukların ebeveynlerinde DEHB oranı. Klinik Psikiyatri. 2006; 9:70-74.
- McCormick LH. Depression in mothers of children with attention deficithy peractyvity disorder. Fam Med. 1995; 27:176-179.
- Karakoç Demirkaya S, Aksu H, Yılmaz N, Özgür B. G, Eren E, Avcil S. N. Bir üniversitesi hastanesi çocuk ve ergen psikiyatri polikliniğine başvuran olguların tanıları ve sosyo-demografik özellikleri. Meandros Med Dent J. 2015; 16(1): 4-8.
- 22. Çakaloz B, Pekcanlar Akay A, Günay T. Karşıt olma karşıt gelme bozukluğunun eşlik ettiği ve etmediği dikkat eksikliği hiperaktivite bozukluğu tanılı çocukların davranışsal sorunlar, ders başarısı ve akran ilişkileri açsından değerlendirilmesi. New/Yeni Symposium Journal. 2007; 45(2): 84-91.
- Weis M, Weiss G. Attenyion deficithy perctivity disorder. Child and Adolescent Psychiaty a Comprehensive Text book. Lewis M (editor). Baltimore: lippin-cot Wiliams and Wilkins. 2002.
- Doğangün B, Yavuz M. Dikkat eksikliği hiperaktivite bozukluğu. Türk Ped Arş. 2011; 46 özel sayı:25-28.

Ercan E.S, Çuhadaroğlu Çetin F, Motovallı Mukaddes N, Yazgan Y. Dikkat eksikliği hiperaktivite bozukluğu tedavisinde atomoksetin. Çocuk Ve Gençlik Ruh Sağlığı Dergisi. 2009; 16(2): 113-118.

- 26. Biederman J, Faraone S, Milberger S, Guite J, Mick E, Chen L, Mennin D, Marrs A, Ouellette C, Moore P, Spencer T, Norman D, Wilens T, Kraus I, Perrin J (1996b) A prospective 4-year follow-up study of attention-deficit hyperactivity and related disorders. Arch Gen Psychiatry 53: 437–446
- Özyurt G, Pekcanlar Akay A, Öztürk Y. Dikkat Eksikliği hiperaktivite bozukluğu (DEHB) tanısı olan olgularda aile işlevselliği ve anne anksiyetesinin kontrol grubu ile karşılaştırılması. Bilişsel Davranışcçı Psikoterapi ve Araştırmalar Dergisi. 2015; 3:162-172.
- Russell AE. The association of attention deficithy peractivity disorder with socio economic disadvantage: alternative explanations and evidence. J Child Psychol. 2014;55(5):436-445.
- Russell AE, Ford T, Russell G. Socioeconomicas sociation with ADHD: Findings from a mediation analysis. PLos One. 2015; 10(6): e0128248.
- Greene RW, Bierdeman J, Zerwas S, Monuteaux MC, Goring JC, Faraone SV. Psychiatric comorbidity familydys function, and social impairment in referred youth with opposition aldefiant disorder. Am J Psychiatry. 2002. 157:1214-1224.
- Kaya B. Depresyon: Sosyo-ekonomik ve kültürel pencereden bakış. Klinik Psikiyatri. 2007; 10(Ek 6): 11-20.
- Yağmur T, Türkmen S.N. Ruhsal hastalığı olan hastalar bakım veren aile üyelerinde algılanan stress ve psikolojik dayanıklılık. Manisa Celal Bayar Üniversitesi Sağlık Bilimleri Enstitüsü Dergisi. 2017; 4(1): 542-548.
- Çöp E, Çengel Kültür E, Şenses Dinç G. Ana babalık Tutumları ile Dikkat Eksikliği Hiperaktivite Bozukluğu Belirtileri Arasındaki İlişki. Türk Psikiyatri Dergisi. 2017; 28(1): 25-32.
- Aktepe E. Dikkat Eksikliği Hiperaktivite bozukluğu tanısı konan çocuk ve ergenlerde eş tanılar ve sosyodemografik özellikler. New/ Yeni Symposium Journal. 2011; 49(4):201-208.
- Yıldız Gündoğdu Ö, Varol Taş F, Yıldırım Özyurt E, Dönder F, Çakın Memik N. Okul öncesi dönemde DEHB: psikososyal tedavi yaklaşımlarının gözden geçirilmesi. Anadolu Psikiyatri Dergisi. 2016; 17(2): 143-155.
- Özcan ME, Eğri M, Kutlu O, Yakıncı C, Karabiber H, Genç M. Okul çağı çocuklarında DEHB yaygınlığı: Ön çalışma. Turgut Özal Tıp Merkezi Dergisi. 1998;5(2,3):138-142.
- Çengelci B. Otizm ve down sendrom'lu çocuğa sahip annelerin kaygı, umutsuzluk ve tükenmişlik duygularının karılaştırılması. Ege Eğitim Dergisi. 2009; 2(10):1-22.
- Fırat S. Otistik çocukların anne- babalarının depresyon ve kaygı düzeyleri. Çukurova Med J. 2016; 41(3):539-547.
- Wenlen C, Yşong D, Xiangyang Z, David C. Prevalence and contributing factors to attention deficithy peractivity disorder: A study of five- to fifteen year old children in Zhabei District, Shanghai. Asia Pac Psychiatry. 2014. 6(49): 397-404.
- Uğuz Ş, Toros F, Yazgan İnanç B, Çolakkadıoğlu O. Zihinsel ve/veya bedensel engelli çocukların annelerinin anksiyete, depresyon ve stres düzeylerinin belirlenmesi. Klinik Psikiyatri. 2004; 7: 42-47.

Copyright © 2019 The Author(s); This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0), (CC BY NC) which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited. International journal of Medical Science and Discovery.

doi http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.306

OPEN ACCESS JOURNAL



Medical Science and Discovery 2019; 6(10):257-62

Research Article

Doi: 10.36472/msd.v6i10.308

Socio-Economic Status and Intelligence Quotient of primary schoolaged children with asthma

Obinna Chukwuebuka Nduagubam¹*

Abstract

Objective: Intelligence Quotient is said to be more variable in childhood and is thought to be influenced by the socioeconomic status of the families of children. This aim of this study was to determine the relationship between socioeconomic class and Intelligence Quotient (IQ) of primary school children with asthma and to compare with those of children without.

Material and Methods: One hundred and twenty children with asthma (subjects) aged 5 - 11 years were consecutively recruited at the asthma clinic of University of Nigeria Teaching Hospital Ituku/Ozalla, Enugu State, Nigeria and their age-, sex and socio-economic class (SEC) - matched normal classmates were enrolled as controls from their schools. Their SEC was obtained using the tool described by Oyedeji while their academic performance was obtained from their schools using their scores over an academic session. Their Intelligence Quotient (IQ) was determined using the Draw-A-Person- test. The relationship between SEC and Intelligence Quotient of children with asthma was determined and was compared with that of the 120 controls.

Results: There was no significant difference between the IQ of the Subjects and Control in the different Socio-economic Classes. IQ has no significant correlation (Spearman's) with SEC in both Subjects (r = 0.115; p = 0.21) and Controls (r = 0.082; p = 0.38). No significant difference exists in the IQ of children with asthma across the different socio-economic classes.

Conclusion: The IQ of children with asthma is not influenced by their Socio-Economic status.

Key words: Social class, Intelligence, Asthma, Children, Schools.

Introduction

Asthma is one of the few diseases reported to be commoner in the higher social classes but atopic asthma and severe asthma are said to be commoner in the lower socioeconomic classes (1, 2). Severe asthma with increased hospitalization and death has been linked to poverty, ethnic minorities, and urban living (1). Children with asthma from deprived areas are reported to be more likely to miss school than their more affluent peers, and minority ethnic children are also more likely to have poor school attendance (3).

Intelligence Quotient is said to be more variable in childhood and these variations are thought to be linked to the socio-economic status of the families of these children (4-9). Several studies have suggested that socioeconomic status (SES) modifies the heritability of children's intelligence and that children from disadvantaged family backgrounds score lower on intelligence tests than their high SES peers (10 - 13).

Turkheimer et al reported that in families with low SES, a greater percentage of the variance in IQ is accounted for by the shared environment, and that the contribution of genes is close to zero (11). They added that in affluent families however, the result is almost exactly the reverse. Similar findings were also reported by some other studies (4, 14).

However despite these studies the relationship between socio-economic class and intelligence quotient still remains a source of controversy as the moderating effect of SES on IQ in children is not consistently found as some other studies have divergent views to the extent that some report trends in the opposite direction- greater heritability of children's IQ in lower SES families (15-18).

Available studies on the relationship between SEC and IQ in children are all on otherwise stable children and to the best of my knowledge; no study has been done to find out the relationship between SES and IQ among children with asthma.



Received 07-09-2019 Accepted 11-10-2019 Available Online 19-10-2019 Published 30-10-2019

¹ ESUT, College of Medicine, Dept of Paediatrics, Enugu, Nigeria

^{*} Corresponding Author: Nduagubam Obinna Chukwuebuka E-mail: obinopunchus@yahoo.com

Nduagubam

There is also a paucity of information on this relationship in low income countries such as Nigeria. This study was therefore carried out to determine the relationship between socio-economic status and intelligence quotient among children with asthma. The results are expected to contribute to the existing body of knowledge.

Material and Methods

Ethical approval for the study was obtained from the Health Research Ethics Committee of the University of Nigeria Teaching Hospital, UNTH Ituku/Ozalla Enugu State (Protocol No: NHERC/05/01/2008B) dated 21st May 2012. All parents/caregivers of eligible children were informed of the purpose of the study, expected procedures and potential risks and benefits following which a written consent was obtained before data collection. It was a cross-sectional study conducted at the Asthma clinic of the University of Nigeria Teaching Hospital (UNTH), and the primary schools attended by these children with asthma within Enugu, Enugu state between July and December 2012.

Study Population

The study population comprised of 120 school children with asthma (subjects) aged 5-11 years living in Enugu metropolis. The control population (children without asthma) was made up of 120 healthy classmates of the children with asthma who are matched for age, sex and socio-economic class. The choice of classmates as controls was informed by the need to remove school-related bias and to control for class grade as suggested by Richard and Burlew (19).

Inclusion Criteria:

- 1. Children aged 5-11 years, attending primary school in Enugu metropolis.
- 2. Asthma diagnosed by a doctor (20, 21).
- 3. Attendance in the same school for at least one session before study enrolment.
- 4. Attendance at the asthma clinic for at least 12months.
- 5. Consent for the study given by care-giver.

Exclusion Criteria:

- 1. Out of school children.
- 2. Age less than five years or more than eleven years of.
- Children with other chronic diseases such as sickle cell disease, diabetes mellitus, tuberculosis, congenital heart diseases or with history of neurologic illness like seizure disorders and cerebral palsy.
- 4. Children attending school outside Enugu metropolis.
- 5. Attendance of the present primary school for less than one session before enrolment.
- 6. Refusal of consent by care-giver.
- 7. Asthmatic children with incomplete data, since some of the information were obtained from the case notes.

doi http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.308

Control group

The child next to the asthma patient in the class register was selected as control if he/she met the following criteria:

- 1. Of same sex, age (within 6 months) and socioeconomic class as the child with asthma.
- 2. Has been in the same primary school and class as the asthmatic child for at least one session before study enrolment.
- 3. Does not have any of the exclusion criteria as listed for the subjects

If the next child to the asthmatic in the class register did not meet the criteria, the most suitable child without asthma down the register who meets the criteria was chosen as control.

Selection and evaluation of the subjects

At the asthma clinic

On presentation at the clinic, the caregiver and the child with asthma were informed of the study and written informed consent obtained from the caregiver. Before enrollment, in order to ascertain eligibility, the asthmatic child's socio-demographic data was obtained. The information obtained was recorded in the proforma.

Children who meet the inclusion criteria were enrolled consecutively till the sample size was reached while those excluded were scheduled for consultation. The socioeconomic status of the Subjects was determined using the method described by Oyedeji (22). This was determined using the occupation and educational attainment of the caregiver to get the socio-economic class. The socioeconomic class was obtained by finding the mean score for the parents' educational attainment and occupation rounded off to the nearest whole number. Where any of the parents were dead, the social class of the child was assessed using that of the living parent. Socio-economic class I represent the highest socio-economic class and class V the lowest.

The Oyedeji SEC classified parental occupation as follows:

Class I. Senior public servants, Professionals, Managers, Large scale traders, Businessmen & Contractors.

Class II. Intermediate grade public servants, Senior School Teachers, Nurses and Technicians.

Class III. Junior School Teachers, Clerks, Auxiliary Nurses, Drivers and Mechanics.

Class IV. Petty traders, Laborers, Messengers and Similar Grades.

Class V. Unemployed, Full-time house wives, Students and Subsistence farmers.

While the parental educational attainment is classified as follows:

Class I: University graduates or equivalents.

Class II: School certificate holders (GCE or SSSC) who also has teaching or other professional training i.e. NCE.

Class III: School certificate or Grade II teachers' certificate Holders or equivalents.

Class IV. Junior secondary school certificate, Modern three and primary six.

Class V: Those that could not read or write or are illiterates.

Each parent is scored for parental occupation and educational attainment based on the class in which the parent belongs. For example; a parent whose educational attainment falls under class IV is scored 4 for educational attainment. Four scores are obtained from educational attainment and occupation of the 2 parents. The socio-economic class is obtained by the mean of aggregate of the 4 scores for the 2 parents. This is then rounded off to the nearest whole number to get the Socio-economic level of the subject. In a situation where only one parent is alive; occupation and academic attainment of the parent is scored and then divided by 2 before it is rounded to the nearest whole number to ascertain the SEC.

With the prevailing exchange rate of 360 Naira [(Nigerian currency to 1 United States Dollar (USD)]; parents with occupation in Oyedeji's socioeconomic class I earn > I, 390 USD; Class II earn between 100 and 1390 US dollars; Class III earn between 44.5 and 97.25 US dollars; Class IV earn between 30.5 and 41.75 US dollars while parents with occupation in Class V earns between 0 and 27.5 US dollars per month.

The level of asthma control was ascertained using the Childhood Asthma Control Test (C-ACT) (23). The C-ACT TM tool for children 4 to 11 years is made up of seven questions with a total score of 27 as the highest score obtainable. Each child, as much as possible, was allowed to answer the first four questions unaided while the care-giver answered the remaining three. A score of 19 and below signified poor control while scores above 19 indicate good control (24, 25).

The subjects were then given a sheet of paper and pencil and left alone with as much time as they needed with the instruction to draw a person (26, 27). Intelligence Quotient (IQ) was assessed using the Draw-A-Person Test (DAPT) (26). The IQ of the subjects was calculated using the validated Ziler criteria and the table of DAPQ by Ebigbo and Izuora (26). The total number of points scored is the Draw a Person Point (DAPP). DAPQ= DAPA/ Chronologic Age, where DAPA = (DAPP+ 3)/4. The DAPQ score obtained was compared with the expected DAPQ score for age and sex using the table for average DAPQ scores by Ebigbo and Izuora. A score of less than 75% for sex and age was regarded as mental dullness or backwardness (26).

The child with asthma was subsequently reviewed, complaints attended to and a future clinic appointment

^{doi} http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.308

given. However, children with acute exacerbation of asthma were first managed in the Children Emergency Room of UNTH before evaluation for the study.

In the Schools

The clearance letter from the Ministry of Education was used to obtain permission for the study at the various schools. At the school/class of each enrolled asthmatic child, the head/class teacher was informed of the study in order to access the child with asthma and to enroll the child without asthma. Also the need to obtain the information with regards to the children's school performance was explained.

With the help of the class teacher, the non-asthmatic child, next to the study Subject in the class register, who was of the same age (+ or - 6 months) and sex as the child with asthma was selected. The child was then informed of the study and given the consent form for the caregiver to fill. The consent form was retrieved on a subsequent visit to the school. The non-asthmatic child whose caregivers gave consent was then interviewed for eligibility for the study and the socio-economic status determined as described for the subjects. The selected control was then enrolled and the questionnaire administered.

The control was also given a sheet of paper and pencil and left alone with as much time as needed with the instruction to draw a person and was scored using the validated Ziler criteria by Ebigbo and Izuora (26). The DAPQ was also ascertained just as was done for the subjects.

Information obtained from the participants was recorded in the questionnaire and subsequently transferred into the data editor of Statistical Package for Social Sciences (SPSS) software for Windows® version 19.0 (IBM Inc Chicago Illinois USA, 2011) for analysis. Descriptive statistics such as mean \pm (SD) and median were obtained for continuous variables while categorical variables were summarized using frequencies and percentages. The comparison of the means of IQ which was normally distributed was done using Student's t-test, ANOVA and the Duncan Multiple Comparison test while Socioeconomic class which was not normally distributed was compared using the Mann-Whitney U test. The significance of the association between categorical variables was determined using chi-square. All the tests were taken as significant at p < 0.05. Results are presented in tables and prose.

Results

The age range of the study participants was 5 to 11 years and the overall mean age \pm SD was 8.20 \pm 1.92 years. Sixty-nine (57.5%) of the 120 subjects and controls were in early primary school age (5-8years) while fifty-one (42.5%) were in late primary school age (9–11 years). The mean age \pm SD for males and females was 8.07 \pm 1.73 and 8.47 \pm 2.26 years, respectively. The difference in the mean age of males and females was not statistically significant (t= 1.47, p:0.143). Table I shows the age and sex distribution of the study participants (Table 1). The mean IQ scores for subjects and controls were 123.28 \pm 21.45 and 118.41 \pm 19.87, respectively. The difference was not statistically significant (t = 1.83; p:0.07). Thirty (25%) of the subjects were from socio-economic class I and sixty (50%) from socio-economic class II while only twelve (10%) were from socio-economic class III and eighteen (15%) from class IV. No subject or control studied was from socio-economic class V.

Thirty out of the 120 subjects (25%) had poor asthma control while 90 (75%) had good asthma control. Similarly, the difference in the median overall academic scores for the subjects (79.04%) and controls (80.01%) were also not statistically significant (U= 6804, p:0.46). There was no significant difference in the IQ of the Subjects and Control across the different Socio-economic Classes. None of the study participants (subjects and controls) were in socio-economic class V (Table 2).

No significant correlation exist between SEC and IQ in Subjects (r = 0.115; p: 0.21) and Controls (r = 0.082; p:0.38). There was no significant difference in IQ between children with poor and good asthma control across the different socio-economic classes. There was also no significant different between the IQ of children with poor asthma control and those of children with good asthma control (Table 3).

Intelligence Quotient has a significant but weak correlation (Spearman's) with socioeconomic class among children with poor asthma control (r= 0.403; p:0.03) but not among those with good asthma control (r= 0.047; p:0.66).There was no significant difference in the IQ of children with asthma (Subjects) with respect to socio-economic class. However among controls a significant difference in IQ is noted among controls in SEC II compared to the IQ of controls in other Socioeconomic classes (F= 5.572, p:0.001) (Table 4).

Table I: Age and sex distribution of the subjects and controls.

	S	ubjects	Controls			
Age (years)	Male (%)	Female (%)	Male (%)	Female (%)		
5 - 8	45 (55.6)	24 (61.5)	45 (55.6)	24 (61.5)		
9 - 11	36 (44.4)	15 (38.5)	36 (44.4)	15 (38.5)		
Total	81 (100.0)	39 (100.0)	81 (100.0)	39 (100.0)		
Total	81 (100.0)	39 (100.0)	81 (100.0)	3		

 $\chi^2 = 0.39$, d.f = 1, p < 0.535

Table 2: Comparison of IQ between subjects and controls across Socio-economic classes

SEC	Subjects	Control	Т	P value
	Mean \pm SD	Mean \pm SD		
1	121.69 ± 18.82	112.88 ± 15.87	1.961	0.055
2	127.53 ± 23.74	125.26 ± 21.01	0.553	0.581
3	117.65 ± 5.26	113.16 ± 13.73	1.056	0.302
4	115.54 ± 22.09	108.27 ± 18.19	1.078	0.289

Table 3: Comparison of IQ between poor and good asthma control groups with respect to SEC

SEC	Poor Asthma Control Mean ± SD	Good Asthma Control Mean ± SD	Т	P value
1	121.36 ± 3.82	118.47 ± 19.37	0.254	0.801
2	129.93 ± 20.26	125.72 ± 23.83	0.614	0.541
3	114.28 ± 11.96	118.02 ± 6.17	0.681	0.511
4	110.73 ± 13.66	114.31 ± 24.57	0.329	0.746

Table 4: Socio-economic class specific comparison of IQ.

Socio-economic class									
IQ		Class I	Class II	Class III	Class IV	F	P value		
		Mean \pm SD	Mean \pm SD	Mean \pm SD	Mean \pm SD				
Subjects		121.69 ± 18.82	127.53 ± 23.74	117.65 ± 5.26	115.54 ± 22.09	1.940	0.127		
Controls		112.88 ± 15.87	$*125.26 \pm 21.01$	113.16 ± 13.73	108.27 ± 18.19	5.572	0.001		
Poor asthma c	control	121.36 ± 3.82	129.93 ± 20.26	114.28 ± 11.96	110.73 ± 13.66	2.410	0.090		
Good A	Asthma	118.47 ± 19.37	125.72 ± 23.83	118.02 ± 6.17	114.31 ± 24.57	1.201	0.314		
control									

*Duncan multiple comparison test indicating means significantly different

Discussion

In this study of the relationship between socio-economic class and IQ among primary school children with asthma, the IQ of the subjects was comparable with that of controls across the various Socio-economic classes. IQ was not associated with Socio Economic Status in both Subjects and Controls.

Majority of the subjects belonged to the higher socioeconomic classes I and II and none of the subjects were in socio-economic class V. This is in keeping with earlier reports that noted asthma to be one of the few diseases that are more common in the higher socio-economic classes (1,2). The reason could be due to life style encounters like early use of formula feeds, canned foods with additives and other social factors that are more common among people of higher socio-economic class compared to those in the lower socio-economic classes and can predispose to airway hypersensitivity. It could also indicate that more parents in the socio-economic classes I and II, compared to those in the socio-economic classes III and IV, avail themselves of the specialized services offered by the teaching hospital (28). Furthermore the finding of more children with asthma among the higher socio-economic class lends support to the hygiene hypothesis proposed by Strachan (29).

Although children from higher Socio-economic classes had higher IQ scores in this study, their IQ was not significantly higher than those of children from lower SEC in both Subjects and controls. On the contrary, a number of studies have suggested that IQ is significantly higher among children from higher SEC compared to those from lower SEC and reasons proffered included greater exposure, absence of poverty and the moderating effect of environmental factors on genes in favour of children from higher SEC (4, 10-14). Turkheimer et al found that in families with low SES, 60% of the variance in IQ is accounted for by the shared environment, and the contribution of genes is close to zero; however in affluent families, the result is almost exactly the reverse (11). The moderating effect of SES on IQ in children however is not consistently found as some other studies report trends in the opposite direction- greater heritability of children's IQ and higher IQ in children from lower SES families (15-18). The variation in the findings of these studies is still an object of controversy and the reason(s) for the variation is still unclear. However, it may be due to the different SES and IQ tools used, the age of the children studied and the prevailing socioeconomic conditions in the areas where the studies are done. The SES tool by Oyedeji (22) used in this study may be criticized on a number of issues including the changes in the economic situation within the area this SES classification tool is used. For example an artisan who was previously considered to be a low income earner and is placed low in the SES tool by Oyedeji currently could earn same or more income than a newly employed medical doctor or university lecturer. Again a good number of people with graduate/ post-graduate certificates, due to high level of unemployment; take up jobs that were hitherto considered by Oyedeji to be low income jobs. These issues could be affecting results from the use of this tool; hence

doi http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.308

there may be a need for a review of the Oyedeji SES classification tool.

The DAPT though non-verbal; is appealing to children and has been shown to demonstrate a high correlation with the Stanford-Binet which relies heavily on verbal items and Wechsler's Intelligence Scale for Children (WISC) tests which is both a verbal and performance IQ test but is lengthy requiring two sittings (26, 27). The DAPT has been standardized and validated for use in Nigerian children; the Stanford-Binet and WISC tests for IQ have not been validated for use in our environment.

IQ had a significant correlation with SEC in children with poor asthma control but not in those with good asthma control. The reason for this finding among children with asthma is unclear. However, the unequal distribution of children with good asthma control compared to those with poor asthma control across the various socio-economic classes may have influenced this result. The age of the study participants may also have contributed to these findings as differences in intelligence have been shown to be more variable in childhood, with some children showing substantial gains in intelligence and others considerable losses between infancy and adolescence (4-6) but highly stable from early adolescence to late adulthood (30). Further research is therefore needed on the relationship between SES and IQ among children with asthma.

Conclusion

According to our findings, the Intelligence Quotient of primary school-aged children with asthma is not influenced by their Socio-economic status.

Acknowledgement: I appreciate Professors Oguonu Tagbo and Ojinnaka Ngozi as well as Late Dr Ibekwe Roland all of the University of Nigeria Teaching Hospital for their supervisory roles during the course of this study which I did in partial fulfillment of the requirements for award of fellowship of the National Post-graduate Medical College of Nigeria (NPMCN). I acknowledge the parents/caregivers for their participation in the study. My gratitude goes to Mr. Uche Ikenna for assisting with data analysis.

Conflict of Interest: The author declare no potential conflicts of interest with respect to the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article.

Author's Contributions: NOC: Data Collection, Literature Search, Preparation of the article, statistical analysis, manuscript revision

References

- Liu AH, Covar RA, Spahn JD, Leung DYM. Childhood Asthma In: Kliegman RM, Berhman RE, Jenson HB, Stanton BF. Nelson Textbook of pediatrics, 18th edition. Saunders Elsevier.2007; 143. eBook ISBN: 9781437721805.
- Littlejohns P, Macdonald LD. The relationship between severe asthma and social class. Respir Med. 1993; 87: 139-43. https://doi.org/10.1016/0954-6111(93)90142-M.
- Milton B, Whitehead M, Holland P, Hamilton V. The social and economic consequences of childhood asthma across the life course: a systematic review. Child Car Hlth Devel. 2004; 30(6): 711–28. doi:10.1111/j.1365-2214.2004.00486.x.

Nduagubam

- Feinstein L. Inequality in the Early Cognitive Development of British Children in the 1970 Cohort. Economica. 2003; 70 (277): 73-97. https://doi.org/10.1111/1468-0335.t01-1-00272.
- Bayley N. On the growth of intelligence. American Psychologist.1955;10(12): 805-18. https://psycnet.apa.org/doi/10.1037/h0043803.
- Tucker-Drob EM, Briley DA. Continuity of genetic and environmental influences on cognition across the life span: A metaanalysis of longitudinal twin and adoption studies. Psychol Bull. 2014;140(4): 949-79. doi: 10.1037/a0035893.
- Dyume M, Dumaret A, Tomkiewicz S. How can we boost IQs of 'dull children'? A late adoption study. Proceedings of the National Academy of Science. 1999; 96:8790-4. doi:10.1073/pnas.96.15.8790.
- Heckman JJ. Skill formation and the economics of investing in disadvantaged children. Science.2006;312: 1900-02. DOI: 10.1126/science.1128898.
- Tucker-Drob EM, Rhemtulla M, Harden KP, Turkheimer E, Fask D. Emergence of a gene-by-socioeconomic status interaction on infant mental ability between 10 months to 2 years. Psychol Sci. 2011 Jan;22(1): 125-33. doi: 10.1177/0956797610392926
- Bradley RH, Corwyn RF. Socioeconomic status & child development. Annu Rev Psychol. 2002;53: 371-99. https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev.psych.53.100901.135233.33.
- Turkheimer E, Haley A, Waldron M, D'Onofrio B, Gottesman II. Socioeconomic Status modifies heritability of IQ in Young Children. Psychol Sci. 2003 Nov;14(6): 623-28. https://doi.org/10.1046/j.0956-7976.2003.psci_1475.x.
- Strenze T. Intelligence and socioeconomic success: A meta-analytic review of longitudinal research. Intell.2007;35 (5):401-26. doi.org/10.1016/j.intell.2006.09.004.
- Schoon I, Jones E, Cheng H, Maughan B. Family hardship, family instability, and cognitive development. J Epidemiol Community Health.2012; Aug;66(8): 716-22. doi: 10.1136/jech.2010.121228.
- von Stumn S, Plomin R. Socioeconomic status and the growth of intelligence from infancy through adolescence. Intell. 2015; Jan-Feb; 48: 30-6. doi: 10.1016/j.intell.2014.10.002.
- Scarr S. Race, social class, and individual differences in I.Q. Hillsdale, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum Associates; 1981. http://hdl.handle.net/10822/548658.
- Asbury K, Wachs TD, Plomin R. Environmental moderators of genetic influence on verbal and nonverbal abilities in early childhood. Intell. 2005; 33(6): 643–61. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.intell.2005.03.008.
- van der Sluis S, Willemsen G, de Geus EJC, Boomsma DI, Posthuma D. Gene-environment interaction in adults' IQ scores: measures of past and present environment. Behav Genet. 2008;38(4):348–60. doi: 10.1007/s10519-008-9212-5.

^{doi} http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.308

- Grant MD, Kremen WS, Jacobson KC, Franz C, Xian H, Eisen SA et al. Does Parental Education have a Moderating Effect on the Genetic and Environmental Influences of General Cognitive Ability in Early Adulthood? Behavior Genetics. 2010;40:438–46. PMID: 20300818. doi: 10.1007/s10519-010-9351-3.
- Richard HIN, Burlew KA. Academic performance among children with sickle cell disease: setting minimum standards for comparism groups. Psychol Rep. 1997; 81: 27–34. PMID:9293191, doi:10.2466/pr0.1997.81.1.27.
- Dolan CM, Frasher KE, Bleecher ER, Borish L, Chipps B, Hayden L et al. Design and baseline characteristics of the epidemiology and natural history of asthma: outcomes and treatment regimens (TENOR) study. Ann allergy Immunol .2004; 92: 32-9. https://doi.org/10.1016/S1081-1206(10)61707-3.
- Patel PH, Welsh C, Foggs MB. Improved asthma outcomes using a coordinated care approach in a large medical group. Dis Manag. June 2004; 7(2): 102-11. DOI: 10.1089/1093507041253235.
- 22. Oyedeji GA. Socio-economic and cultural background of hospitalized children in Ilesha. Nig J Paediatr. 1985; 12: 111-17.
- Nathan RA, Sorkness CA, Kosinki M, Schat M, Li JT, Marcus P et al. Development of the asthma control test- A survey for assessing asthma control. J Allergy Clin Immunol. 2004 Jan; 113(1): 59-65. PMID:14713908. doi:10.1016/j.jaci.2003.09.008.
- Rimington LD, Davies DH, Lowe D, Person MG. Relationship between anxiety, depression and morbidity in adult asthma patients. Thorax. 2001; 56(4): 266-71. http://dx.doi.org/10.1136/thorax.56.4.266.
- Schatz M, Sorkness CA, Li JT, Marcus P, Murray JJ, Nathan RA, et al. Asthma Control Test reliability, validity and responsiveness in patients not previously followed by asthma specialist. J Allergy Clin Immunol. 2006 Mar; 117(3): 549-56. PMID:16522452. doi:10.1016/j.jaci.2006.01.011.
- Ebigbo PO, Izuora GI. Draw a Person Test Standardization, validation and guidelines for use in Nigeria. Enugu: Chuka Printing Company Ltd. 1981; 7-22.
- William TO, Fall A, Eaves RC, Woods-Groves S. The reliability of scores for the Draw-A-Person intellectual ability test for children, adolescents and adults. J Psycoeduc Assess. 2006; 24: 137-44. https://doi.org/10.1177/0734282905285249.
- Ezenwosu O.U, Emodi I.J, Ikefuna A.N, Chukwu B.F, Osuorah C.O. Determinants of academic performance in children with sickle cell anemia. BMC Paediatr. 2013, 13: 189-97. doi: 10.1186/1471-2431-13-189.
- Strachan DP. Hay fever, fever, hygiene and household size. Br Med J.1989; 299(6710): 1259-60. PMCID:PMC1838109. DOI:10.1136/bmj.299.6710.1259.
- Deary IJ, Pattie A, Starr JM. The stability of intelligence from age 11 to age 90 years: The Lothian birth cohort of 1921. Psychol Sci. 2013;12: 2361-68. https://doi.org/10.1177%2F0956797613486487.

Copyright © 2019 The Author(s); This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0), (CC BY NC) which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited. International journal of Medical Science and Discovery.

OPEN ACCESS JOURNAL



Medical Science and Discovery 2019; 6(10):268-71

Research Article

Doi: 10.36472/msd.v6i10.312

Frequency of depression in patients with Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus: Psychiatric support necessity for diabetic patients

Erhan Önalan¹*, Yusuf Gökalp¹, Mehmet Aslan¹, Burkay Yakar², Emir Dönder¹

Abstract

Objective: This study aims to determine the relationship between type 2 diabetes mellitus (DM) and the risk of depression in T2DM patients in comparison to a healthy control group.

Materials and Methods: The study sample included 100 patients diagnosed with Type 2 DM who were recruited consecutively from the general internal medicine polyclinic (46 males, 54 females, mean age 55.4 ± 11.9 years) and 100 healthy control subjects who had no known diseases and had presented for routine check-up examinations (60 males, 40 females, mean age 37.6 ± 3.7 years). The participants completed a questionnaire composed of a sociodemographic characteristics section and the Beck Depression Inventory, which probes the depression states of individuals based on self-report. Laboratory results of the participants were recorded.

Results: Mean Beck Depression Inventory scores of the patient and control groups, which represent self-reported depression states, were determined as 17 ± 8.5 and 8.5 ± 7.3 , respectively. Of the 100 diabetic patients, 8 were determined to have severe depression, 38 moderate depression, 34 mild depression, and 20 minimal depression; whereas, of the 100 healthy controls, 20 were determined to have moderate depression, 18 mild depression, and 62 minimal depression, with no cases of severe depression in this group.

Conclusion: Our study reveals the importance of complementing the conventional patient follow-up procedure with psychiatric support in the management of type 2 DM patients.

Keywords: Depression; diabetes mellitus; Beck Depression Inventory

Introduction

Type 2 diabetes mellitus (DM) is a chronic metabolic disease that requires constant medical care, in which the organism cannot utilize carbohydrate, lipid, and proteins adequately due to insulin deficiency or associated defects. According to the results of TURDEP-II. which was published in 2010, the prevalence of diabetes in the adult Turkish population has reached 13.7% (1-4). The rise in the prevalence rates of diabetes and associated complications has developed into a global health problem. Depression and anxiety are two times more common among diabetic patients than the normal population. In diabetic patients younger than 64 years; smoking, a low socioeconomic status, and being female were found to be independent risk factors for depression in the presence of poor glycemic control. Depressed and anxious individuals show lower compliance with dietary guidelines and medication use.

Some controlled studies have shown the treatment of depression to improve glycemic control (5). Depression has an unfavorable effect on the progression of chronic diseases such as diabetes. It was shown to have a negative impact on lifestyle changes and reduce treatment compliance in diabetic patients. Depressed diabetic patients experienced greater difficulty with dietary compliance, poor glycemic control, and an increase in complication and mortality rates. Studies have revealed a relationship between the number of depressive episodes and hemoglobin A1c (HbA1c) levels (6). This study aims to identify the sociodemographic characteristics of adult type 2 DM patients and to determine the relationship that levels of glycemic control, diabetes education, dietary compliance, and presence of diabetes complications have with the risk of depression in these patients.

Received 25-09-2019 Accepted 11-10-2019 Available Online 19-10-2019 Published 30-10-2019

1 Fırat University School of Medicine, Department of Internal Medicine, Elazıg, TR

* Corresponding Author: Erhan Onalan E-mail: drakdeniz@msn.com



² Firat University, Faculty of Medicine, Department of Family Medicine, Elazig, TR

Materials and Methods

This study included 100 patients who had presented to the Internal Diseases Polyclinics of Firat University Medical Faculty Hospital between September 2019-October 2019, who were under follow-up for a diagnosis of type 2 DM, who could comprehend and respond to questions, and provided informed consent (58 males, 70 females; mean age 60±10.8 years; range 30-80 years). Patients who were not within the specified age range, who were being treated for a psychiatric disorder, were pregnant, did not provide voluntary consent, did not agree to the interview, or did not have the mental capacity to comprehend questions were excluded from the study. The patients completed a form that was constructed by the researcher and probed sociodemographic characteristics, and their height and weight, HbA1c levels and laboratory data obtained during routine follow-up were recorded. The patients were administered the Beck Depression Inventory through faceto-face interviews. The Beck Depression Inventory was developed in 1961 by Beck and colleagues. Its validity and reliability were established in our country in 1989 by Hisli and colleagues. The inventory assesses the physical, emotional, and cognitive symptoms of depression. It contains 21 items, each of which include four selfassessment phrases. The items are scored from 0 to 3. The sum of item scores produces a total depression score. A high score indicates more pronounced depressive symptoms (7, 8). Scores of 0-9 are considered to indicate minimal or no depression, 10-16 mild depression, 17-29 moderate depression, and scores of 30 and higher indicate severe depression (9). Data obtained from each questionnaire was tested for statistical significance within groups using the t-test.

The study protocol was approved by the ethics committee of the hospital. The patients provided written informed consent. The study was conducted in accordance with the guidelines stated in the Helsinki Declaration.

Statistical Analysis: Statistical analysis was conducted using IBM's SPPS for Windows Version 22 (IBM Corporation, Armonk, NY, USA). Data obtained from each group was tested for normal distribution using the Kolmogorov-Smirnov test. Data with a normal distribution were analyzed using the t-test in independent groups; data with a non-normal distribution were analyzed using the Mann-Whitney U test and the Kruskal Wallis variation analysis. Qualitative data were analyzed using the Chisquare test. Quantitative data were presented in the form of mean \pm standard deviation. Qualitative data were presented as "number (%)". A 95% confidence interval (CI) and a significance level of p<0.05 were adopted.

Results

This study included 200 individuals consisting of 94 females (47%) and 106 males (53%). Of the participants, 174 (87%) were younger than 65 years and 26 (13%) older than 65 years. Diabetes mellitus patients were administered the Beck Depression Inventory in order to determine the presence of symptoms of depression. According to the Beck Depression Inventory, 80 (80%) of the 100 diabetic patients showed symptoms of depression; these symptoms were severe in 8 cases, moderate in 38 patients, and mild in 34 patients. In the healthy group composed of 100 individuals, 38 showed symptoms of depression, which were moderate in 20 individuals and mild in 18 individuals. Responses to the items in the questionnaire were compared with regard to statistical significance and the outcomes were presented in the tables provided below (Table 1) (Table 2).

Mean scores on the Beck Depression Inventory, which represent self-reported depression states, were $17\pm8,5$ and $8,5\pm7,3$ for the patient and control groups, respectively. When these scores were compared across genders, females demonstrated a higher risk of depression (63.8%) than males (54.7%). Mean scores on the Beck Depression Inventory were determined as 14.4 for females and 11.34 for males, with a statistically significant difference in terms of the risk of depression (p=0.014).

In the diabetic patient group, female patients had a mean Beck depression score of 19.4 while males had a score of 14.1, and this difference was statistically significant (p=0.002). The mean HbA1c value was $6,3\pm3,2$ and HbA1c levels were determined to have a positive correlation with depression scores (p<0.001). Hemoglobin A1c levels were significantly higher in those who showed a risk of depression than in those who did not (respectively, 8.67 and 6.08), and this difference was statistically significant (p<0.001).

Table 1: Sociodemographic characteristics and clinical data of the study population

	Type 2 dm(n=100)	Control(n=100)	р
Age (years)	55,8±11,8	52,8±12	0,08
Married (n-%)	87 (87%)	86 (86%)	0,948
Smoke (n-%)	40 (40%)	52 (52%)	0,264
FBG(mg/dL)	163,5±54,3	88,9±10	<0,001*
ALT(U/L)	24±14,8	27,4±15,7	0,111
AST(U/L)	23,1±10,8	22,6±6,4	0,669
LDL-C(mg/dL)	125,5±47,5	108,3±32,4	0,003*
Triglyceride(mg/dL)	205,9±159,3	123,7±57	<0,001*
BUN(mg/dl)	22,9±11,5	13,3±3,55	<0,001*
Creatinine(mg/dL)	1±0,79	0,77±0,19	0,008*
HbA1c(%)	10,3±2,4	4,8±0,35	<0,001*

* Statistically significant differences.

Table 2: Depression scores of the study population

these parameters were higher in males, in contrary to the

	Type 2 dm(n=100) (m=46/f=54)	Control(n=100) (m=60/f=40)	р
BDI Scores(male/female)	14,1 ±7,7/19,4±8,5	9,1 ±7,5/7,7±7	
Total	17±8,5	8,5±7,3	<0,001*
BDI risk of depression(male/female)			
Minimal depression	14/6	34/28	
Mild depression	18/16	14/4	
Moderate depression	14/24	12/8	
Severe depression	0/8	0	

* Statistically significant differences.

Discussion

Besides being a chronic physical disease, diabetes mellitus is a chronic disease that can lead to a series of mental, emotional, social, and psychosexual problems for the patient.

While it can cause psychiatric disorders by impacting brain functions, psychiatric conditions may also arise from its impact on the daily lives of the patients. Such problems that accompany diabetes mellitus affect its manifestation, severity, and progress, as well as the response to the treatment.

The holistic approach to diabetic care requires the comorbid mental, psychological, psychophysiological, and psychosocial conditions to be diagnosed and treated besides considering the patients' physiological wellbeing (10).

In a study conducted by Patten (11), individuals with longterm medical disorders were reported to demonstrate a greater risk of developing major depression than those who did not suffer from long-term medical disorders. individuals who have myocardial infarction, DM, diseases associated with the human immunodeficiency virus, cancer, cerebrovascular events, and Parkinson's disease were found to experience a greater risk of developing major depression than healthy controls.

Chronic medical diseases also show a strong independent relationship with anxiety disorders (12). In this study, we aimed to investigate the causes of the increased risk of depression in type 2 DM that has been reported in the studies cited above.

We studied the relationship that levels of glycemic control, diabetic complications, and sociodemographic characteristics of patients diagnosed with the chronic disease of diabetes mellitus have with their risk of developing depression and anxiety.

Conclusion

In conclusion, we determined that, in patients who demonstrate an increased risk of depression that parallels elevated HbA1c levels, the presence of diabetic nephropathy and retinopathy increase the risk of depression. We found that females diagnosed with diabetes mellitus had higher Beck depression scores and a higher risk of depression than males; whereas in healthy controls, Our study shines light on the prediction of the risk of depression in patients diagnosed with DM, and with the consideration that patients could need psychiatric treatment in combination with diabetic treatment, it has revealed the importance of maintaining psychiatric treatment in the management of DM patients.

Acknowledgement: No

Conflict of Interest: The authors declare no potential conflicts of interest with respect to the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article.

Author's Contributions: EÖ, YG, MA, BY, ED: Patient examination, biochemical analyzes, Data Collection, EÖ: Literature Search, Preparation of the article, statistical analysis, revision of the manuscript

References

- King H, Rewers M. Global estimates for prevalence of diabetes mellitus and impaired glucose tolerance in adults. WHO Ad Hoc Diabetes Reporting Group. Diabetes Care 1993; 16: 157-77.
- King H, Aubert RE, Herman WH. Global burden of diabetes, 1995-2025: prevalence, numerical estimates, and projections. Diabetes Care 1998; 21: 1414-31.
- 3. Satman I, Yılmaz T. The epidemiology of obesity in the world and Turkey. Aktüel Tıp Dergisi 2001;6: 9-12.
- 4. Satman I. TURDEP-II Working group. 32nd TEMD Congress, 13-17 October 2010, Antalya.
- Collins MM, Corcoran P, Perry IJ. Anxiety and depression symptoms in patients with diabetes. Diabet Med 2009;26:153-61.
- 6. Siddiqui S. Depression in type 2 diabetes mellitus—a brief review. Diabetes Metab Syndr 2014;8:62-5.
- 7. Hisli N. A study on the validity of the Beck depression inventory. Journal of Psychology 1989; 6 (2): 118-122.
- 8. Neziha ABA, Havva Tel. Depression and self care power in patients with diabetes mellitus. Journal of Nursing of the Republic 2012; 1: 18-22.
- 9. Hisli N. The validity and reliability of Beck depression inventory for university students. Journal of Psychiatry 1989; 7: 3-13.
- Gülseren L, Hekimsoy Z, Gülseren Ş, Bodur Z, Kültür S. Depression anxiety, quality of life and disability in patients with diabetes mellitus. Turkish Journal of Psychiatry 2001; 12: 89-98.

Önalan et al.

 Patten SB. Long-term medical conditions and majör depression in a Canadian population study at waves 1 and 2. J Affect Disord 2001:63:35-41. 12. Akkoyunlu C, The relationship between the perception of disease and depression, anxiety and quality of life in patients with type II diabetes mellitus and rheumatoid arthritis. (Thesis), Ankara: Baskent University Department of Psychiatry; 2012.

Copyright © 2019 The Author(s); This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0), (CC BY NC) which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited. International journal of Medical Science and Discovery.

OPEN ACCESS JOURNAL



Medical Science and Discovery 2019; 6(10):263-7

Research Article

Doi: 10.36472/msd.v6i10.310

The use of methotrexate, vincristine, L-asparaginase and dexamethasone for salvaging adult acute lymphoblastic leukemia and lymphoma: a real-life experience

Funda Pepedil Tanrikulu¹*, Nurhilal Buyukkurt¹, Mahmut Yeral¹, Pelin Aytan¹, Soner Solmaz¹, Asli Korur², Cigdem Gereklioglu², Ilknur Kozanoglu^{3,4}, Can Boga¹, Hakan Ozdogu¹

Abstract

Objective: Despite recent improvements in the treatment options, adult relapsed/refractory Acute Lymphoblastic Leukaemia (ALL) and lymphoblastic lymphoma (LBL) exhibit poorer cure rates than in childhood. Since, the mainstay difference of childhood multidrug regimens is L-Asparaginase, we sought to salvage adult patients with a protocol containing methotrexate, vincristine, conventional L-asparaginase, and dexamethasone (MOAD). In this study, we aimed to summarize our experience.

Methods: Adult patients with relapsed/refractory ALL and LBL followed-up in our institution between 2017 and 2018 were reviewed and those treated with MOAD protocol were retrospectively included in the study. Clinical data, treatment responses, and adverse events were summarised. The protocol featured 28-day cycles of methotrexate 200 mg/m2 intravenously (IV) on days 1 and 15; vincristine 1.4 mg/m2 IV on days 1, 8, and 15; L-asparaginase 10,000 IU/m2 IV twice weekly; and dexamethasone 40 mg IV or orally on days 1–4 and 15–18.

Results: A total of eight patients were enrolled, of median age 37 years (range: 21–58 years). Four patients were recovered after transplantation. Complete remission was evident in 38%. Two such patients underwent allogeneic hematopoietic stem cell transplantation after the protocol. Another patient with lymphomatous disease achieved partial remission and underwent successful transplantation. L-asparaginase did not trigger any clinically evident hypersensitivity reaction; the most common adverse events associated with the protocol were hypofibrinogenemia, anemia, and febrile neutropenia.

Conclusions: The MOAD protocol was effective and tolerable, enabling to salvage before and after transplantation, particularly in patients with relapsed/refractory T-cell acute lymphoblastic leukemia and lymphoblastic lymphoma.

Key-words: Acute lymphoblastic leukemia, Lymphoblastic lymphoma, methotrexate, vincristine, L-asparaginase, dexamethasone

Introduction

Acute lymphoblastic leukemia (ALL) is a disease that is poorly curable in adults, despite initial complete remission (CR) rates of 80–90% in newly diagnosed cases (1-2). Most patients relapse and up to 20% develop resistant disease. An effective salvage therapy is required, but attempted salvage using conventional chemotherapies after the first relapse yields CR rates of only 30–40% (2-4). After a second or later relapse, the outcomes are even poorer (5). Currently, the only available potentially curative treatment is allogeneic hematopoietic stem cell transplantation (allo-HSCT). However, it is important to achieve remission prior to allo-HSCT in those with relapsed/refractory disease (6). Lymphoblastic lymphoma (LBL) is a rare disease that is biologically closely allied to ALL, but features only minimal or no bone marrow (BM) involvement. In adults, initial ALL-type regimens afford survival rates of about 70%, thus better than those of ALL patients.



Received 19-09-2019 Accepted 11-10-2019 Available Online 19-10-2019 Published 30-10-2019

¹ Baskent University Faculty of Medicine, Department of Hematology, Ankara, TR

² Baskent University Faculty of Medicine, Department of Family Medicine, Ankara, TR

³ Baskent University, Adana Teaching and Medical Research Center, Laboratory of Hematology, Adana, TR

⁴ Baskent University Faculty of Medicine, Department of Physiology, Ankara, TR

^{*} Corresponding Author: Funda Pepedil Tanrikulu E-mail: pepefunda@yahoo.com

However, management of relapsed/refractory disease remains very difficult. Second-line therapies using the available drugs are associated with poor survival; to ensure effective salvage, HSCT is imperative (7).

Apart from the conventional multi-drug regimens, new agents seek to increase the response rates to re-induction therapy for both ALL and LBL (8-13). However, the high cost and limited availability of such agents compromise their use; and adult cure rates are still lower than those of children. The childhood multidrug regimens include Lasparaginase, this drug may be toxic to adults because toxicity increases with age (14). In a recent phase 2 study in adults of median age 42 years, a PEGylated formulation of L-asparaginase was successfully combined with methotrexate, vincristine, and dexamethasone to salvage relapsed/refractory ALL (15). Previously, a similar combination of methotrexate, vincristine, conventional Lasparaginase, and dexamethasone (MOAD) was given to adults newly diagnosed with ALL (16). However, to the best of our knowledge, only a few studies have used the MOAD protocol (thus including conventional Lasparaginase rather than the PEGylated form) to treat relapsed/refractory patients. Here, we summarise our experience with the MOAD protocol in patients with relapsed/refractory ALL or LBL; we used the protocol to bridge patients to allo-HSCT or to salvage them after HSCT.

Materials and Methods

Study design: We retrospectively reviewed adults followed-up in our institution for 2 years (2017–2018) who were diagnosed with relapsed/refractory ALL or LBL and treated using the MOAD protocol. Their demographic and clinical characteristics, responses to treatment, and adverse events were noted. Data were extracted from a dedicated electronic database created in accordance with the guidelines of the Joint Accreditation Committee: International Society for Cellular Therapy and European Blood and Marrow Transplantation (JACIE) (Nucleus ver. 9.3.39; Monad Software Co., Ankara, Turkey); all data were verified by an independent audit group. Side effects were recorded using the Common Terminology Criteria for Adverse Events (ver. 5.0).

Evaluations/definitions: BM aspiration, flow cytometric analysis, and/or BM biopsy were scheduled for ALL patients after the first course of salvage chemotherapy. Additionally, patients with extramedullary lymphomatous disease were subjected to detailed radiological imaging. Complete response or complete remission (CR) featured all of the following:

normalization of peripheral blood data (absolute neutrophil count (ANC) >1x109/L, platelet count >100x109/L, BM blasts <5%, and no circulating blasts or extramedullary disease).

Refractory disease (RD) was defined as a failure to achieve CR, and relapsed disease was defined by re-appearance of blasts in the blood or BM (>5%) or in any extramedullary site after CR had been attained. Progressive disease (PD) was defined as an increase $\geq 25\%$ in the absolute number of circulating or BM blasts, or development of extramedullary disease. A partial response (PR) in those with lymphomatous extramedullary disease was defined as a >50% decrease in lymphomatous enlargement (17). Progression-free survival (PFS) was the time from treatment initiation to disease progression or death.

The MOAD Protocol

The MOAD treatment cycle ran for 28 days and featured intravenous (IV) methotrexate 200 mg on days 1 and 15 (reduced by 50% if the creatine clearance rate was 10-50 mL/min); vincristine 1.4 mg/m2 (maximum 2 mg) IV on days 1, 8, and 15 (reduced to 1 mg in those with preexisting neuropathy and/or a bilirubin level 2-3 mg/dL and not given to those with a bilirubin level >3 mg/dL); Lasparaginase 10,000 IU/m2 given IV twice weekly on days 2, 5, 9, 12, 16, 19, 22, and 25 (withheld if the bilirubin level was >3 mg/dL and/or if pancreatitis, thrombosis, or disseminated intravascular coagulation developed); and dexamethasone 40 mg IV or orally on days 1-4 and 15-18 of each cycle (Table 1). The levels of amylase and lipase; the prothrombin time (PT) and activated partial thromboplastin time (PTT); and the fibrinogen, bilirubin, and liver transaminase levels were measured prior to each administration of L-asparaginase. Intrathecal chemotherapy was used for prophylaxis or to treat active central nervous system disease if no contra-indication was evident. Fluconazole 200 mg/day (withheld on days of vincristine administration to reduce the risk of toxicity), valacyclovir 500 mg/day, and levofloxacin 500 mg/day, were given to prevent infection.

Statistical analysis: SPSS software ver. 24.0 (SPSS Inc., Chicago, IL, USA) was used for all statistical analyses. Descriptive data are shown as numbers with percentages for categorical data, and as means with standard deviations (or ranges) for continuous data.

The study protocol was approved by the Baskent University Institutional Review Board (approval no. KA19/78) and adhered to all relevant tenets of the Declaration of Helsinki.

Table	1.	The	MOAD	protocol
		1110	1110110	protocor

Day	1	2	3	4	5	8	9	12	15	16	17	18	19	22	25
Methotrexate (200 mg/m ²)	Μ								М						
Vincristine (1.4 mg/m ²)	V					V			V						
L-asparaginase (10000 IU/ m ²)		Α			Α		А	А		Α			А	А	А
Dexamethasone (40 mg)	D	D	D	D					D	D	D	D			

Results

interval 2017-2018, eight patients In the with relapsed/refractory ALL or LBL were treated using the MOAD protocol and all were included in analysis. Their median age was 37 years (range: 21-58 years). In four of the patients, MOAD served as salvage therapy after HSCT. The ALL lineage was B-cell in nature in four patients, but all patients were negative for the Philadelphia chromosome. Table 2 summarizes patient demographic and clinical characteristics. In terms of initial diagnosis, all patients presented with leukemic disease except for one presenting with lymphoma without BM involvement. Three patients with initial leukemic presentations relapsed prior to MOAD; they developed lymphomatous disease without BM involvement. The total number of completed MOAD cycles was 10; 3 uncompleted cycles were also noted.

Commencing on the first day of therapy, the mean followup period was 212 days (range, 10-623 days). One patient received the same protocol twice at different times, once prior to HSCT because of refractory disease and once after HSCT because of relapse. Table 3 lists the details for each case. Three (38%) of the eight patients achieved CR after the first MOAD protocol. For two of these, MOAD served as a bridging regimen to allo-HSCT. However, all three eventually developed progressive disease, including the two who relapsed despite allo-HSCT. Two patients (25%) with lymphomatous disease (patients 1 and 5 in Table 3) entered PR after the first MOAD cycle. One retained PR status after the second cycle but progressed after the third cycle; the other proceeded to allo-HSCT and is being continuously followed-up - that patient is in PR (without progression) 4 months after transplantation.

Table 2. Patient characteristics (n=	-8)
--------------------------------------	----	---

Median age (years), mean (range)	37 (21–58)
Gender (male:female), n	5:3
Lineage, n (%)	
В	4 (50%)
Т	4 (50%)
Disease status prior to MOAD, n (%)	
Leukemia	4 (50%)
Lymphoma	4 (50%)
Number of chemotherapies prior to MOAD, n (%)	
1–2	2 (25%)
>2	6 (75%)
HSCT prior to MOAD, n (%)	
Yes	4 (50%)
No	4 (50%)

Table 3: Summary of clinical courses.

Patient	Sex/ age (years)	Origin	Prior chemotherapy	Response to MOAD	MOAD cycles	HSCT after	Follow-up after MOAD	Follow-up period (days)	Outcome
1	M/26	Τ	HyperCVAD, FLAG, linker protocol, allo- HSCT, high-dose methotrexate/cytarabi ne, nelarabine, MEC, radiotherapy	PR after the first cycle	3	No	Progression evident after the third cycle	113	Exitus
2	M/50	В	HyperCVAD, FLAG, allo-HSCT, MEC, rituximab, high-dose methotrexate	CR after the first cycle	3	No	Progression evident after the third cycle	389	Continuing on inotuzumab
3	F/21	Т	HyperCVAD, ICE, IGEV, autologous HSCT, high- dose methotrexate/cytarabi ne, nelarabine	CR	1	Yes	Progression evident on day 123 after HSCT	623	CR developed after liposomal vincristine
4*	F/58	Т	HyperCVAD	CR	1	Yes	Progression evident on day 90 after HSCT	150	Exitus
4*			HyperCVAD, MOAD, allo-HSCT	NA	1**	No	NA		Exitus
5	F/58	Т	HyperCVAD, ICE	PR	1	Yes	PR persisted to month 4 after HSCT	339	Continued PR
6	M/21	В	HyperCVAD, BFM protocol, FLAG	RD	1	No	NA	68	Exitus
7	M/43	В	HyperCVAD, FLAG, MEC	NA	1**	No	NA	10	Exitus
8	M/22	В	HyperCVAD, FLAG, MEC, blinatumomab	NA	1**	No	NA	11	Exitus

Discussion

Adult patients with relapsed/refractory ALL or LBL have dismal prognoses, respond poorly to salvage regimens, and survive only briefly (2,7). The only option is to seek a second CR followed by allo-HSCT; the goal of salvage treatment is therefore a new CR. Apart from the conventional multi-drug regimens, new targeting agents increase the chance of re-induction (18), but these are expensive and not always available, so take-up is low. Moreover, most such agents target B-lineage disease; few new salvage options for T-lineage disease are available. Alternatively, the response rate can be increased by incorporating agents (such as L-asparaginase) that are widely used to treat pediatric ALL into adult regimens. This is not always easy, because the childhood drugs may be toxic to adults. Here, we report our experience with the MOAD protocol (which includes L-asparaginase) in patients with relapsed/refractory ALL and LBL; we sought to bridge them to allo-HSCT or salvage them after allo-HSCT. We found that 38% of patients (n=3) achieved CR that persisted for a median of 105 days after MOAD; 25% (n=2) evidenced PR. Two leukemic patients in CR and one lymphoma patient in PR proceeded to allo-HSCT after MOAD; all had T-cell disease. Thus, the protocol served as a useful bridging regimen, particularly for patients with Tcell disease for which new salvage options are few, in contrast to B-cell disease. Three patients underwent allo-HSCT prior to MOAD, and that regimen was used to salvage relapsed ALL in these patients. One achieved a short CR (62 days), one died without completing the protocol, and the third (with a lymphomatous relapse) achieved PR but for less than 3 months. Salvage after allo-HSCT is intended to reduce tumour load, which enables a therapeutic allogeneic effect; chemotherapy is not used in an effort to attain CR (19). Thus, two of three patients benefited from MOAD used as a salvage regimen after allo-HSCT.

A few studies have used similar drug combinations in relapsed/refractory settings and reported different CR rates and durations. Esterhay et al. (1982) prescribed the same drugs as we did, but with a different schedule, to 14 previously treated patients: the CR rate was 79% and the median CR duration was 7.5 months (20). Aguayo et al. studied 32 patients of median age 34 years (range, 20-74 years): the CR rate was 22% and the median CR duration was 16 weeks (21). The principal differences between the regimen used in these cited works and MOAD were the use of dexamethasone rather than prednisolone, and incorporation of the PEGylated form of L-asparaginase (polyethylene-glycol conjugated-asparaginase). Tapan et al. also used PEGylated L-asparaginase in combination with methotrexate, vincristine, and dexamethasone to treat patients with relapsed/refractory disease of median age 42 years (range, 22-69 years): the CR rate was 28% and the median CR duration was 4.3 months (15). In contrast, our protocol included the conventional form of L-asparaginase, which is an advantage because conventional L-asparaginase is more readily available than the PEGylated form, although the latter drug exhibits better pharmacokinetic properties and tolerance, and is associated with fewer side

dol http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.310

effects (22). In our present study, no patient experienced an allergic reaction during L-asparaginase administration. Additionally, all other treatment-related side effects were self-limiting; the most common side effect was hypofibrinogenemia.

One limitation of this study is that we included only a relatively small number of patients. However, very few reports have focused on relapsed/refractory patients who require allo-HSCT; our real-life clinical experience contributes to the knowledge in this area.

Conclusion

In conclusion, we suggest that a combination of methotrexate, vincristine, dexamethasone, and conventional L-asparaginase is well-tolerated, and can serve both as a bridge to allo-HSCT and as a salvage regimen after allo-HSCT, particularly in patients with relapsed/refractory T-cell ALL and LBL. Nevertheless, more work with larger numbers of patients is required to have more precise remarks and we hope our study will pioneer new prospective works about the issue.

Acknowledgement: No

Conflict of Interest: The authors declare no potential conflicts of interest with respect to the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article.

Author's Contributions: FPT, NB, MY, PA, SS, AK, CG, IK, CB, HO: Patient examination, biochemical analyzes, Data Collection, FPT: Literature Search, Preparation of the article, statistical analysis, revision of the manuscript

References

- 1. Pui CH, Robinson LL and Look AT. Acute lymphoblastic leukaemia. Lancet 2008;371:1030-1043. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0140-6736(08)60457-2
- Fielding AK, Richards SM, Chopra R, et al. Outcome of 609 adults after relapse of acute lymphoblastic leukemia (ALL); an MRC UKALL12/ECOG 2993 study. Blood 2007;109: 944-950. https://doi.org/10.1182/blood-2006-05-018192
- Tavernier E, Boiron JM, Huguet F, et al. Outcome of treatment after first relapse in adults with acute lymphoblastic leukemia initially treated by the LALA-94 trial. Leukemia 2007;21(9):1907-1914. https://doi.org/10.1038/sj.leu.2404824
- Thomas DA, Kantarjian H, Smith TL, et al. Primary refractory and relapsed adult acute lymphoblastic leukemia: characteristics, treatment results, and prognosis with salvage therapy. Cancer 1999;86:1216-1230. https://doi.org/10.1002/(sici)1097-0142(19991001)86:7% 3C1216::aid-cncr17% 3E3.0.co;2-o
- O'Brien S, Thomas D, Ravandi F, et al. Outcome of adults with acute lymphoblastic leukemia after second salvage therapy. Cancer 2008;113:3186-3191. https://doi.org/10.1002/cncr.23919
- Saadeh SS, Litzow MR. Hematopoietic stem cell transplant in adults with acute lymphoblastic leukemia: the present state. Expert Rev Hematol 2018; 11(3):195-207. https://doi.org/10.1080/17474086.2018.1433030
- Bassan R, Maino E, Cortelazzo S. Lymphoblastic lymphoma: an updated review on biology, diagnosis, and treatment. Eur J Haematol 2015; 96:447-460. https://doi.org/10.1111/ejh.12722

Tanrikulu et al.

- Thomas DA, Faderl S, O'Brien S, et al. Chemoimmunotherapy with hyper-CVAD plus rituximab for the treatment of adult Burkitt and Burkitt-type lymphoma or acute lymphoblastic leukemia. Cancer 2006; 106:1569–1580. https://doi.org/10.1002/cncr.21776
- Thomas DA, Faderl S, Cortes J, et al. Treatment of Philadelphia chromosome-positive acute lymphocytic leukemia with hyper-CVAD and imatinib mesylate. Blood 2004; 103:4396–4407. https://doi.org/10.1182/blood-2003-08-2958
- DeAngelo DJ, Yu D, Johnson JL, et al. Nelarabine induces complete remissions in adults with relapsed or refractory T-lineage acute lymphoblastic leukemia or lymphoblastic lymphoma: Cancer and Leukemia Group B study 19801. Blood 2007; 109:5136-5142. https://doi.org/10.1182/blood-2006-11-056754
- Kantarjian H, Stein A, Gokbuget N, et al. Blinatumomab versus chemotherapy for advanced acute lymphoblastic leukemia. N Engl J Med 2017;376:836-847. https://doi.org/10.1056/NEJMoa1609783
- Kantarjian H, De Angelo DJ, Stelljes M, et al. Inotuzumab ozogamicin versus standard therapy for acute lymphoblastic leukemia. N Engl J Med 2016;375:740-753. https://doi.org/10.1056/NEJMoa1509277
- Liu Y, Chen X, Han W, Zhang Y. Tisagenlecleucel, an approved anti-CD 19 chimeric antigen receptor T-cell therapy for the treatment of leukemia. Drugs Today (Barc) 2017;53(11):597-608. https://doi.org/10.1358/dot.2017.53.11.2725754
- 14. Rytting M. Peg-asparaginase for acute lymphoblastic leukemia. Expert Opin Biol Ther 2010;10:833–839. https://doi.org/10.1517/14712591003769808
- Kadia TM, Kantarjian HM, Thomas DA, et al. Phase II study of methotrexate, vincristine, pegylated-asparaginase, and dexamethasone (MOpAD) in patients with relpased/refractory acute lymphoblastic leukemia. Am J Hematol 2015;90(2):120-124. https://doi.org/10.1002/ajh.23886

doi http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.310

- 16. Wiernik PH, Dutcher JP, Paietta E, et al. Long-term follow-up of treatment and potential cure of adult acute lymphocytic leukemia with MOAD: a non-anthracycline containing regimen. Leukemia 1993;7(8):1236-1241.
- National Comprehensive Cancer Network Guidelines. Acute Lymphoblastic Leukemia (Version 1.2019). https://www.nccn.org/professionals/physician_gls/pdf/all.pdf (2019, accessed 28 March 2019)
- Ronson A, Ariella T, Rowe JM. Treatment of relapsed/refractory acute lymphoblastic leukemia in adults. Curr Oncol Rep 2016;18-39. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11912-016-0519-8
- Chen R, Campbell JL, Chen B. Prophylaxis and treatment of acute lymphoblastic leukemia relapse after allogeneic hematopoietic stem cell transplantation. Onco Targets Ther 2015;8:405-412. https://doi.org/10.2147/OTT.S78567
- Esterhay RJ, Wiernik PH, Grove WR, et al. Moderate dose methotrexate, vincristinei asparaginase, and dexamethasone for treatment of adult acute lymhoblastic leukemia. Blood 1982;59(2):334-345.
- Aguayo A, Cortes J, Thomas D, Pierce S, Keating M, Kantarjian H. Combination therapy with methotrexate, vincristine, polyethyleneglycol conjugated-asparaginase, and prednisone in the treatment of patients with refractory or recurrent acute lymphoblastic leukemia. Cancer 1999;86(7):1203-1209. https://doi.org/10.1002/(sici)1097-0142(19991001)86:7% 3C1203::aid-cncr15% 3E3.0.co;2-3
- 22. Van den Berg H. Asparaginase revisited. Leuk Lymphoma 2011;52:168-178. https://doi.org/10.3109/10428194.2010.537796

Copyright © 2019 The Author(s); This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0), (CC BY NC) which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited. International journal of Medical Science and Discovery.

OPEN ACCESS JOURNAL



Medical Science and Discovery 2019; 6(10):278-83

Research Article

Doi: 10.36472/msd.v6i10.317

Efficacy and safety of intravenous iron sucrose treatment in children with iron deficiency anemia

Elif Güler Kazancı¹, Muhammet Furkan Korkmaz²*, Betül Orhaner¹

Abstract

Objective: The purpose of this study is to investigate the efficacy and safety of intravenous iron sucrose treatment in children with iron deficiency anemia who were unresponsive to or could not tolerate oral iron therapy.

Material and Methods: Among patients determined to have iron deficiency anemia, and were intolerant or noncompliant with oral iron therapy, 92 patients who have received parenteral iron therapy between the ages of 6 months and 18 years have been investigated retrospectively. Age, gender, patient complaints at application, dietary characteristics, accompanying diseases and treatment complications, and safety, tolerability, and adverse events have been assessed from the information obtained from patient files. Treatment efficiency was evaluated with hemoglobin (Hb), mean corpuscular volume (MCV) and ferritin results from the blood samples taken before treatment, at the second week of treatment and after two months.

Results: Mean age of patients was 12.5 ± 4.7 (age interval 1-17 years), and 21% was male while 79% was female. 72% of our patients were adolescents. From an etiological aspect, 56% of our patients was determined to have an iron-poor diet, 29% had functional menorrhagia, and 15% had chronic gastrointestinal system pathologies. Mean Hb, MCV and ferritin levels before and after treatment were found as: 7.72 ± 1.21 g/dl and 11.44 g/dl ± 0.68 g/dl; 63.2 ± 7.12 fL and 76.6 ± 3.81 fL; 3.87 ± 2.52 nmol/L and 57.94 ± 17.19 nmol/L, respectively (p< 0.001). 94% of patients were determined to have at least 2 g/dL (mean value 3.71 [range 1.6-6.3]) increase in their Hb levels. Anaphylaxis was observed in a patient who had a history of allergy despite applying premedication.

Conclusion: Parenteral iron therapy is an efficient and safe treatment among indicated patients.

Keywords: children, intravenous iron, iron deficiency anemia, iron sucrose

Introduction

Iron deficiency anemia (IDA) is still a common health problem in childhood around the world. While it has various reasons, nutritional IDA is the most important reason for anemia. Iron deficiency (ID) and IDA are among the top fifteen diseases all around the world with regard to global burden of disease. According to 2001 data of World Health Organization, 30% of children aged between 0-4 and 48% of children aged between 5-14 are anemic in developing countries (1-3). In various studies from our country performed on childhood, it was reported that the prevalence of IDA is between 15.2% and 62.5% (4-7).

Particularly in infancy and adolescence, the most common reason for IDA development is inability to meet the increased need for iron with nutrition. It is recommended to examine the presence of underlying bleeding, parasitosis or malabsorption disorders such as celiac disease in childhood

and adolescence (1). Oral administration is primarily preferred as iron therapy since it is economic and has a low number of side effects. The use of 2-3 dose of drugs every day for two or three months is quite difficult for the child and the family, and problems in treatment compliance are common. Parenteral iron therapy can be applied upon intolerance to oral iron treatment, in cases requiring rapid recovery of anemia, and in malabsorptive-digestive problems such as celiac disease or inflammatory bowel disease. There is a small number of studies comparing parenteral and oral iron therapy for IDA due to nutritional deficiency in childhood, and there is a need for more studies in this subject. Iron supplements that have been released to the market in recent years have been safer, and have a relatively low number of adverse effects. However, it should be kept in mind that these adverse effects are serious (8).



Received 04-10-2019 Accepted 27-10-2019 Available Online 29-10-2019 Published 30-10-2019

¹ University of Health Sciences, Dept of Pediatric Hematology, Yuksek Ihtisas Training and Research Hospital, Bursa, TR

² University of Health Sciences, Dept of Pediatrics, Yuksek Ihtisas Training and Research Hospital, Bursa, TR * Corresponding Author: Muhammed Furkan Korkmaz E-mail: korkmazmfurkan@gmail.com

Parenteral iron treatment is administered through intramuscular (IM) or intravenous (IV) route. Particularly after rapid infusion, findings such as allergy, anaphylaxis, low blood pressure, nausea, vomiting, and abdominal pain may be developed (9). There are no sufficient efficacy and adverse effect results on the literature for the use of IV iron in the treatment of iron deficiency anemia in childhood. Over recent years, parenteral iron preparations on the market (such as iron sucrose and ferric carboxymaltose) have been safer and had a very low number of adverse effects (10,11). The purpose of our study is to investigate the efficacy and safety of intravenous iron sucrose treatment in children with IDA who were unresponsive to or could not tolerate oral iron therapy.

Materials and methods

Setting and study population

Among patients who have applied to Bursa Dörtçelik Children's Hospital Pediatrics Clinic between dates April 01, 2013 – March 31, 2014, determined to have iron deficiency in the result of performed tests and who have received parenteral iron therapy due to intolerance and noncompliance against oral iron therapy; the clinical and laboratory characteristics of children between the ages of 6 months and 18 years were retrospectively investigated in our study. The study was approved by the local ethics committee. Before being included in the study, written informed consent was obtained from all parents or legal guardians of the patients.

The diagnosis of IDA was determined when red blood cell mass and hemoglobin concentration was -2 SD lower than values that were recognized to be normal according to age, gender, and physiological status. Red blood cell indices of MCH (<27 pg), MCHC (<30% units), RDW (>15 units) and ferritin <12 nmol/L were included among diagnostic criteria (9). Gynecological examinations, gastroscopy and/or colonoscopy were performed on necessary patients to determine the etiology of iron deficiency. Celiac antibodies were checked in patients with positive fecal occult blood results or determined to have delays in growth development parameters.

Iron treatment

Inability to tolerate oral iron therapy, not responding to oral iron administration after a sufficient period, continued blood loss and inflammatory bowel disease have been recognized as parenteral iron therapy indications (All patients have been using at least 2 different iron preparations 2-3 doses in a day or at 5-6 mg/kg/day dose for at least 3 months before being included in the study).

Daily IV iron level to be administered was determined as 50-200 mg. For 43 patients, it was observed that test dose was applied in the first infusion. In the treatment of patients, iron deficit was calculated and treated by using a 2-hour infusion of iron preparations, which were in ampoule form and contained ferric hydroxide sucrose drug substance, after reconstituting those with 100 ml 0.09% isotonic saline, at a maximum of 50 mg/day dose below 10 kg body weight, a single dose of 100 mg / day in infants, and 2 doses of 200 mg / day IV in older children.

dol http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.317

Iron deficit is calculated by the following formulation (12):

(Intended Hb level – Patient's Hb level) Iron Deficit = ______ x Blood Volume x 3.4 x 1.5

Efficacy and safety

Patients were examined with regard to age, gender, patient complaints at application, dietary characteristics, accompanying diseases and treatment complications. Hb, MCV, and ferritin results were examined retrospectively from blood samples taken before parenteral therapy and in controls at treatment day 14 and month 2. The patients whose Hb levels were increased 2 g/dL or higher in the post-treatment control were evaluated as "benefited from treatment".

Statistical analysis

Characteristic data are presented as n (%) for categorical variables, and as mean \pm SD or median (interquartile range [IQR]) for continuous variables, as appropriate.

Paired t-tests were used in order to compare parameters of our study before, during and after treatment.

All tests were two-tailed and p-values <0.05 were considered to indicate statistical significance. Statistical analyses were performed by using SPSS version 21.0 (SPSS Inc., Chicago, IL, USA).

Results

Mean age was determined as 12.5 ± 4.7 (range 1-17 years) in a total of 92 patients included in our study. Nineteen (21%) patients were male, while 73 was (79%) female. 79% of our patients were in adolescence. From an etiological aspect, 56% of our patients was determined to have an iron-poor diet, 29% had functional menorrhagia, and 15% had chronic gastrointestinal system pathologies (7% chronic gastritis, 6% celiac disease, 2% ulcerative colitis) (Table 1).

Table 1. Causes of iron deficiency anemia

Condition	n
Condition	11
Nutritional iron deprivation	51
Functional menorrhagia	26
Gastritis due to Helicobacter pylori	7
Celiac disease	6
Ulcerative colitis	2
Total	92

Efficacy

The number of iron sucrose infusions per patient ranged from 3 to 8 (median: 5), the individual doses from 100 mg to 200 mg (median: 200 mg), and the total doses from 200 mg to 1200 mg (median: 1000 mg).

Mean Hb blood level before treatment was 7.72 ± 1.21 g/dl (range 5–10.1 g/dl). It was observed that Hb levels increased to 10.0 ± 0.78 g/dl (range 8.0-11.8 g/dl) at post-treatment day 14 and to 11.44 g/dl ± 0.68 g/dl (range 9.2-13.0 g/dl) at post-treatment month 2. The rise in Hb blood

level was found to be statistically significant both 14 days and 6 months after starting iron therapy (p < 0.001) (Figure 1). As treatment response, at least 2 g/dL (mean value 3.71 \pm 1.09 [range 1.6-6.3]) increase was determined in 94% of patients considered as having benefited from treatment.

Mean MCV levels were 63.2 ± 7.12 fL (range 43.4-81.7 fL) before treatment. It was observed that MCV levels were elevated to 72 ± 5.38 fL (range 53-82 fL) at day 14 and 76.6 ± 3.81 fL (range 65-87 fL) at the end of 2 months. A statistically significant difference was determined between levels measured before treatment and during treatment (p<0.001). Serum ferritin level prior to therapy was low in all patients: mean 3.87 ± 2.52 nmol/L (range 1-12.9nmol/L). The serum ferritin level rose to a mean of $44.9 \pm$ 14.58 nmol/L (range 24-88 nmol/L) after 14 days, and 57.94 ± 17.19 nmol/L (range 29-102 nmol/L), after 2 months. The rise in ferritin level was found to be statistically significant both 14 days and 6 months after starting iron therapy (p < 0.001) (Figure 2).

Safety

Two patients had short-term chest pain following iron infusion. Physical examination of these patients, saturation, electrocardiogram and cardiac enzymes were determined to be normal. It was found out that these 2 patients were followed up in pediatric psychiatry department due to anxiety. Despite applying premedication, anaphylaxis was observed in a patient who had a history of allergy. Two patients were observed to have swelling and discoloration on vascular access secondary to drug extravasation. No venous thrombosis was observed in any of the patients



Figure 1. Differences in mean hemoglobin levels measured on day 0, day 14 and 2 month after starting intravenous iron therapy. The rise in hemoglobin blood level was found to be statistically significant both 14 days and 6 months after starting iron therapy (p < 0.001).



Figure 2. Differences in mean ferritin levels measured on day 0, day 14 and 2 month after starting intravenous iron therapy. The rise in ferritin level was found to be statistically significant both 14 days and 6 months after starting iron therapy (p < 0.001).

Discussion

Iron deficiency is the most common nutritional deficiency around the world, and it is an important public health problem particularly in developing countries. It is most commonly observed in childhood at infancy and in menstruating adolescents, however, all children with increased growth rate whose needs are not met sufficiently are under risk (8).

Since IDA is known to affect physical and neurocognitive functions in particular, it should be recognized and treated in childhood (13). In our study, 56% of cases had deficiencies in their diet that posed a problem with regard to anemia. In compliance with literature, nearly all of cases were determined to have significant deficiencies in red meat consumption (14).

It is also known that adolescents will develop IDA if increased iron need due to rapid growth is not met. The rate of adolescents with IDA in our study group were determined to be 79%, and as stated in the literature, it can be said that adolescents are under the risk of ID (10). Also, chronic blood loss is commonly observed in the etiology of this group. Functional menorrhagia was determined to be 36% in this group in our study, and it attracts attention as an important cause.

Oral administration is primarily preferred as iron therapy since it is economic and has a low number of side effects. Parenteral iron therapy can be applied upon intolerance to oral iron treatment, in cases requiring rapid recovery of anemia, and in malabsorptive-digestive problems such as celiac disease or inflammatory bowel disease.

In the study of Crary et al. (15), mean Hb increase in patients who cannot tolerate oral iron therapy was 0.05 (-1.0 - 1.0) g/dL with oral therapy, while it was 3.1 (0.8 - 7.6) g/dL with IV iron sucrose. In patients with chronic blood loss, mean Hb increase was determined as 0.65 (-1.4 - 5.7) g/dL with oral treatment while it was 1.9 (0.2 - 6.6) g/dL with IV iron sucrose. In the study of Pinks et al. (16) on the efficacy and safety of intravenous iron sucrose treatment in pediatric patients with IDA, mean Hb level was 7.43 g/dL before treatment, while it was 9.27 g/dL on day 14 and was determined to increase to 12.4 g/dL at month 6. The ferritin level, which was 3.5 nmol/L before treatment, was also determined to increase to 60 nmol/L on day 14 following treatment, and it returned to normal limits (16-250 nmol/L) on month 6, decreasing to 27.99 nmol/L.

In their efficacy and safety study of parenteral iron (ferric carboxymaltose and iron sucrose) on children with inflammatory bowel disease, Papadopoulos et al. (17) have determined 2.5 g/dl mean Hb increase and observed side effects of urticaria rash in all three cases. It was determined in our study that 94% of our patients benefited from treatment. Mean 3.71 ± 1.09 g/dl Hb increase was observed, and the efficacy of parenteral iron therapy was statistically determined.

Being first used on 1930s in only rare cases, parenteral iron (iron oxyhydroxide complex) 22 treatment was observed to have very serious adverse effects (18,19). Bioavailability was increased with a high- molecular weight iron dextran developed in 1950s, and allergic reactions were observed at 0.6%-2.3% rate. Later, while ferric gluconate was safer compared to iron dextran, the incidence of anaphylaxis could not reach the intended level, remaining at 0.04% (20-23).

With the clinical use of iron sucrose in 2000s, the incidence of anaphylaxis was reduced to 0.002%. The biggest disadvantage of iron sucrose is the low maximum single administrable dose, and this causes numerous individual infusions in order to reach therapeutic dose. Lastly, ferric carboxymaltose was released in Europe in 2007, licensed for patients older than age 14. 1000 mg dose of iron can be administered in a single application and it can be applied for 15-60 minutes at a relatively fast manner without requiring a test dose, therefore hospitalization period and cost can be reduced (24).

In the study of Pinsk et al. (16) on a group of 45 pediatric patients, it was reported that 1 patient experienced temporary hypotension half an hour after starting IV iron sucrose administration that has recovered after pausing the treatment, and 2 patients experienced discoloration without pain around the vascular access intervention area due to drug extravasation that subsided in 24 hours.

Crary et al. (15) has reported in their IV iron sucrose study performed on 38 pediatric patients that 6 patients experienced adverse effects; 1 of which was headache, 2 were abdominal pain, 1 was temporary hypotension, 1 was vasovagal syncope, and a 15-year-old patient was reported to experience an anaphylactoid reaction 10 minutes into the infusion with diffuse pain on his body, swelling on his face, weak pulse and hypotension and it was reported to alleviate with epinephrine, diphenhydramine, and methylprednisolone.

Meanwhile, Mantadakis et al. (12) have reported that 3 patients developed injection site extravasation and 1 patient had a temporary change in taste in their study performed on 12 pediatric patients. Papadopoulos et al. (17) have stated that among 35 patients receiving ferric carboxymaltose, 2 patients had rash after completing the first infusion, and one case had an urticarial rash that started in the first 30 minutes of infusion and an allergic reaction accompanied by hypotension that recovered rapidly with IV chlorphenamine.

Premedication with antihistamines (diphenhydramine) was reported to have caused the majority of perceived reactions to IV iron in one large cohort (25). Patients with asthma or drug allergies should be routinely pre-medicated with methylprednisolone or hydrocortisone prior to IV iron infusion. In our study, anaphylaxis was observed in a patient who had a history of allergy despite applying premedication, and 2 patients were determined to have swelling and discoloration on vascular access secondary to drug extravasation. No venous thrombosis was observed in any of the patients.

Compared to the patient number in literature studies, our study group seems to have a valuable number of patients. It was observed in our study that parenteral iron administration rapidly recovered the general symptoms of

Kazancı et al.

anemia in suitable cases with regard to parenteral iron therapy indications in particular, and the intended increase was attained in 94% of patients with this treatment.

Since it provided rapid symptomatic recovery and improvement in quality of life in patients with IDA symptoms even while treatment is continued, it can be seen that parenteral therapy is a good option. Based on these reasons, we consider that the application of parenteral therapy would be right in indicated cases.

In the result of our study, we would like the state that nutritional ID is still an important etiological factor and emphasize the importance of evaluating gastrointestinal system in chronic blood loss, and particularly in girls, gynecological evaluation against functional menorrhagia. Contrary to usual belief, it can be said that the risk of developing anaphylaxis is lower in pediatric age group compared to adults.

Our study has contributed to the limited number of pediatric studies on literature. Nevertheless, in order to avoid the most important limitation of our study, which is the possibility of misleading results residing in the nature of every retrospective study, prospective planning of future studies is considered to be valuable.

Conclusion

Parenteral iron therapy is quite efficient in the treatment of IDA when used in suitable cases. Contrary to popular belief, adverse effects are lower and milder in pediatric patient group compared to adults. The application of parenteral iron therapy is efficient and safe in children who cannot tolerate oral iron therapy, do not benefit from oral iron therapy or have chronic diseases such as celiac disease which disrupt iron absorption.

Acknowledgement: No

Conflict of Interest: The authors declare no potential conflicts of interest with respect to the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article.

Author's Contributions: EGK, MFK, BO; Research concept and design, research the literature, laboratory examinations, preparation of the article. MFK; Statistical analyzes. EGK; Revision of the article.

References

- 1. World Health Organization. Iron deficiency anaemia assessment, prevention, and control. A guide for programme managers. Geneva (Switzerland): World Health Organization; 2001.
- Siegel E.H, Stoltzfus R.J, Khatry S.K. Epidemiology of anemia among 4-to 17-month-old children living in South Central Nepal. Europian Journal of Clinical Nutrition 2006; 60: 228–35.
- Schneider J.M, Fujii M.L, Lamp C.L. Anemia, iron deficiency, and iron deficiency anemia in 12–36 months -old children from lowincome families. Journal of Clinical Nutrition 2005; 82: 1269–75.

- dol http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.317
- Çetin E. To investigate the prevalence of anemia in children and adolescents living in Istanbul [Thesis]. Istanbul: University School of Medicine; 1997.
- Gökçay G, Kılıç A. Epidemiology of iron deficiency anemia in children. Journal of Child Health and Diseases 2000; 43: 3-13.
- Evliyaoglu N, Altintas D, Atici A. The iron status of breast milk, cow's milk and formula foods. Turkey Clinical J Pediatr 1996; 5: 249-59.
- Gür E, Yıldız I, Celkan T. Prevalence of anemia and the risk factors among school children in İstanbul. J Trop Pediatr 2005; 51: 346-50.
- Özdemir N. Iron deficiency anemia from diagnosis to treatment in children. Turk Arch Ped 2015; 50: 11-9.
- Karakas Z, Karaman S. Approach to anemic child. Turkey's National Pediatric Association, Turkish Association of Pediatric Hematology, Partner Guide. Diagnostic and treatment guidelines in pediatric health and diseases. November; 2014.
- Sillis R. Iron-Deficiency Anemia. In: Kliegman R, Stanton B, St Geme J, Schor N (Edt). Nelson Textbook of Pediatrics. 20th ed. Canada. Elsevier 2016; 2323-6.
- Lerner N.B. Anemia In: Kliegman M.R, Stanton F.B, Schor F.N, et al, Akçay T. (Edt). Nelson Pediatri. İstanbul. Nobel Tıp Kitapevleri 2015; 1648-83.
- Mantadakis E, Tsouvala E, Xanthopoulou V, et al. Intavenous iron sucrose for children with iron deficiency anemia: a single institution study. World Journal of Pediatrics 2016; 12(1): 109-13.
- Celkan T, Apak H, Özkan A, et al. Prevention and Treatment in Iron Deficiency Anemia. Turk Arch Ped 2000; 35(4): 226-31.
- Kılıçaslan Ö, Yıldırmak Yıldız Z, Urgancı N. The evaluation of the iron deficiency cases who were hospitalized in a pediatric clinic for deep anemia. The Medical Bulletin of Sisli Etfal Hospital 2014; (3): 234-8.
- Crary E.S, Hall K, Buchanan G.R. Intravenous iron sucrose for children with iron deficiency failing to respond to oral iron therapy. Pediatric Blood Cancer 2011; 56:615-9.
- Pinsk V, Levy J, Moser A, et al. Efficacy and safety of intravenous iron sucrose therapy in a group of children with iron deficiency anemia. Israel Medical Association Journal 2008; 10: 335-8.
- Papadopoulos M, Patel D, Korologou-Linden R, et al. Safety and efficacy of parenteral iron in children with inflammatory bowel disease. Br J Clin Pharmacol 2018; 84: 694–9.
- Ganz T, Nemeth E. Iron sequestration and anemia of inflammation. Semin Hematol 2009; 46: 387–93.
- Macdougall IC. Evolution of iv iron compounds over the last century. J Ren Care 2009; 35 (Suppl 2): 8–13.
- Auerbach M, Ballard H. Clinical use of intravenous iron administration efficacy and safety. Hematology Am Soc Hematol Educ Program 2010; 2010: 338–47.
- 21. Cançado RD, Muñoz M. Intravenous iron therapy: how far have we come? Rev Bras Hematol Hemoter 2011; 33: 461–9.

- 22. Fishbane S, Ungureanu VD, Maesaka JK, et al. The safety of intravenous iron dextran in hemodialysis patients. Am J Kidney Dis 1996; 28: 529–34.
- Faich G, Strobos J. Sodium ferric gluconate complex in sucrose: safer intravenous iron therapy than iron dextrans. Am J Kidney Dis 1999; 33: 464–70.
- Chertow GM, Mason PD, Vaage-Nilsen O, et al. Update on adverse drug events associated with parenteral iron. Nephrol Dial Transplant 2006; 21: 378–82.
- 25. Barton JC, Barton EH, Bertoli LF, et al. Intravenous iron dextran therapy in patients with iron deficiency and normal renal function who failed to respond to or did not tolerate oral iron supplementation. Am J Med 2000; 109: 27-32.

Copyright © 2019 The Author(s); This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0), (CC BY NC) which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited. International journal of Medical Science and Discovery.

OPEN ACCESS JOURNAL



Medical Science and Discovery 2019; 6(10):284-7

Research Article

Doi: 10.36472/msd.v6i10.318

Evaluation of the relationship between MIH severity and dental fear among the children

Can Özükoç¹*

Abstract

Objective: Molar incisor hypomineralization (MIH), a quite common condition in pediatric dentistry, whose treatment might seem complicated, manifests itself with severe dental anxiety and fear that can cause behavioral problems. Although dental fear is seen in almost all cases, it is believed that dental fear will increase as the severity of MIH increases. This study evaluates the relationship between MIH severity and dental fear.

Material and Methods: Children Fear Survey Schedule-Dental Subscale (CFSS-DS) was used to measure dental fear in 58 (51.79%) children whose teeth suffered from mild, moderate or severe MIH and 54 (48.21%) children with healthy teeth. Scores between 1 (not afraid at all) and 5 (very afraid) were given according to the responses. Each question was evaluated separately in order to obtain the total score.

Results: Children with severe MIH who participated in the study were proved to be more afraid of the dentists, drill sounds, injections, placement of instruments in the mouth, choking and going to the hospital; and there was a statistically significant difference (p<0.05).

Conclusion: Although it was observed that the severity of MIH and dental fear are correlated and dental fear increases with the increase in the MIH severity, further studies in this subject are necessary.

Keywords: Anxiety, CFSS-DS, Dental Fear, Molar Incisor Hypomineralization, Pediatric Dentistry.

Introduction

Molar incisor hypomineralization is defined as a morphologic enamel defect as a result of mineral deficiency due to systemic causes, that can be seen in one third or more of the occlusal surface of the molars and incisal surface of the incisors.(1) Clinically, they are demarcated qualitative defects that vary from white opaque to yellowbrown lesions. In many cases, dental problems such as severe tooth sensitivity and even loss of teeth due to demarcated hypomineralized enamel can be seen in first permanent molar teeth (2,3). The probability of dental problems varies in direct proportion to the severity of MIH. Nowadays, molar incisor hypomineralization is categorized into three groups as mild, moderate and severe (4). In the most common mild type, enamel surface loss is not observed, but opacity occurs. Enamel with a defect is of normal thickness but its color changes from white to yellow-brown. The incisors are usually slightly affected. There are demarcated opacities in the non-stress bearing areas of the molar teeth. Loss of enamel due to fracture in the opaque areas and cavity in the affected enamel are not observed.

There is no sensitivity in the tooth, but the number of atypical restorations increases as the child grows older (5).

In moderate hypomineralization, demarcated opacities occur in the incisal/occlusal surfaces of the teeth. Fractures after the eruption of the tooth or cavities are limited to 1 or 2 surfaces of the tooth, tubercles not included. It is stated that the sensitivity of the tooth is generally within normal limits. The patient or the families often have aesthetic concerns (5).

In the severe type, post-eruptive enamel loss, atypical cavities, atypical restorations and necessary tooth extraction occur. Approximately half of the children with affected permanent molars have also clinical symptoms in their incisors, 1/3 of them have severe hypomineralization (6). In children with severe type molar incisor hypomineralization, defects turn into dynamic lesions with age. The number of restorations and the number of extracted teeth are increased due to dynamic lesions (7).



Received 06-10-2019 Accepted 28-10-2019 Available Online 28-10-2019 Published 30-10-2019

¹ Istanbul Medipol University Faculty of Dentistry, Dept of Pediatric Dentistry, Istanbul, TR

^{*} Corresponding Author: Can Özükoç E-mail: ozukoccan@gmail.com

The defects of the incisors also affect the psychological and social development of the children. Therefore, the treatments should not only be clinical but also meet the psychologic and social needs (8).

The treatment is complex due to dental fear and behavioral disorder problems in children with molar incisor hypomineralization. A study, which evaluated the results of a fear-measuring scala on children who had hypomineralized molar teeth and children in the follow-up group who had healthy enamel, showed that children with hypomineralized teeth are considerably afraid of going to the hospital and choking (2). However, there aren't any previous researches that evaluate the relationship between the severity of MIH and fear. The purpose of this study is to examine the relationship between the severity of MIH and fear in children.

Material and Methods

The study was initiated after the necessary permissions were given by the Medical Research Ethics Committee of Istanbul Medipol University (Approval no:546). A literature review was made and it was decided to use Children Fear Survey Schedule - Dental Subscale (CFSS-DS), a validated psychometric method which had been developed by Cuthbert and Melamed in 1982 and had previously been used in several studies.(9,10)

The study was conducted at Istanbul Medipol University Faculty of Dentistry Pediatric Dentistry Clinic between the dates 06.07.2019 - 10.08.2019. Among the children whose teeth were brushed with a disposable toothbrush, 112 children in total were included in the study: 58(51.79%) (26 male, 32 female),children between the age of 8-12 who weren't mentally retarded, who had at least one permanent molar tooth affected by MIH and 54(48.21%) (27 male, 27 female) randomly selected children who didn't have any affected teeth. The severity of MIH was determined during dental examination. CFSS-DS, consisted of 15 questions, was conducted after getting written consent from the children and their parents. The participants were asked to answer all of the survey questions. The questions of the survey are shown in Table 1.

The results were examined and the relationship between the age, gender, MIH severity (mild/moderate/severe) and dental fear level was evaluated. The CFSS-DS consists of 15 items relating to different aspects of dental treatment possible scores range from 1 (not afraid at all) to 5 (very afraid). According to the scoring system, every answer had a value between 1-5 and the total score ranged between the 15-75.Every answer was evaluated separately and the total score between 15-25 showed no dental fear, 26-32 showed mild dental fear, 33-38 showed moderate dental fear but the fear can be kept under control or the fear is borderline; the total score of 39 and above showed severe dental fear.

The data were analyzed using computerized Statistical Package for Social Sciences (SPSS) 21 for windows (SPSS Inc. Chicago, IL, USA). ANOVA test was used to compare the means of multiple variables. An Independent-Samples T-test was used to compare the means of two variable, while Chi-Square test was used when proportions were compared. The level of statistical significance was chosen at p < 0.05.

Results

The average score of the answers to the CFSS-DS, which consisted of 15 questions, showed that all children were afraid of dental drills and injections. Children with MIH, who were similarly more afraid of the dental drills and injections, were also afraid of the dentists, dental examinations, opening their mouth, someone touching them harshly or someone looking at them, placement of any instruments in the mouth, choking and going to the hospital and there was a statistically significant difference (p<0.05). The data concerning the questions and the answers are shown in Table 1.

Where the relationship between MIH severity and the answers to the CFSS-DS questions was concerned, there wasn't a statistically significant difference between the mild and moderate MIH follow-up group but the average score was higher. As for the relationship between the severe MIH and the other groups, it was proven that the children were more afraid of dental drills, injections, drill sounds, placement of instruments in the mouth, choking and going to the hospital; and there was a statistically significant difference (p<0.05). The data concerning the relationship between the CFSS-DS questions and the severity of MIH are shown in Table 1.

The total CFSS-DS score, obtained by adding all the scores of the answers, showed that rate of the children whose score was between 15-25 (no dental fear) was 48.21%; between 26-32 (mild dental fear) was 27.67%, between 33-38 (moderate fearbut the fear can be kept under control) was 14.28% and 39 and above (severe dental fear) was 9.82%. The distribution of the CFSS-DS total score by the number of children is shown in Table 2.

The total CFSS-DS score average showed that the control group (23.47) had the lowest score and it was respectively increasing in the mild (24.74) and moderate (26.34) groups while the severe group (41.52) highest score; and there was a statistically significant difference (p<0.05). The distribution of the total score by the groups and the maximum and minimum values obtained in every group are shown in Table 3.

Table 1. Mean scores of the CFSS-DS.

Item	Control	Mild	Moderate	Severe
	Mean±SD	Mean±SD	Mean±SD	Mean±SD
1.Dentists	1.49 ± 0.77	1.54±0.74	1.98±0.96	** 3.21±1.12
2.Doctors	1.36 ± 0.68	1.40 ± 0.82	1.48 ± 1.10	* 2.34±0.88
3.Injections	$2.30{\pm}1.42$	2.49±1.18	2.56 ± 1.24	** 4.48±0.37
4. Having somebody examine your mouth	1.35 ± 0.74	1.39±0.78	1.39 ± 0.78	**2.21±0.82
5.Having to open your mouth	1.01±0.59	1.15±0.65	1.19 ± 0.76	** 2.06±0.92
6.Having a stranger touch you	1.27±0.69	1.31±0.69	1.42 ± 0.77	**2.49±0.99
7.Having somebody look at you	1.14 ± 0.62	1.12±0.58	1.48 ± 1.12	**2.40±1.02
8.The dentist drilling	2.44 ± 1.24	2.65±1.24	2.72±1.54	**4.02±0.63
9. The sight of the dentist drilling	1.76±0.95	1.86±1.12	2.01±1.25	*2.95±1.32
10.The noise of the dentist drilling	1.84 ± 0.92	1.92±1.03	2.00 ± 1.22	*3.46±1.35
11.Having somebody put instruments	1.78 ± 0.86	1.95±1.32	2.21±1.36	*3.38±1.44
12.Choking	1.77±0.91	1.82±0.99	1.72 ± 0.95	*3.10±1.02
13.Having to go to the hospital	1.61±0.76	1.80 ± 0.85	1.86 ± 0.92	*3.04±1.17
14.People in while uniform	1.16 ± 0.61	1.11±0.66	1.14 ± 0.54	1.17±0.87
15.Having the nurse clean your teeth	1.19 ± 0.57	1.23±0.64	1.18 ± 0.66	1.21±0.60
Total	23.47±12.33	24.74 13.29	26.34±15.17	41.52±14.52

*p<0.05; **p<0.01.

Table 2. CFSS-DS Total score and number of children relation

CFSS-DS Total Score	Number of Children (%)
15-25	54 (48.21%)
26-32	31 (27.67%)
33-38	16 (14.28%)
>38	11 (9.82%)

Table 3. MIH severity and total CFSS-DS score relation

MIH Severity	Person n (%)	Maximum score	Minimum score	Average score
Control group	54 (48.21%)	31	15	23.47
Mild	26 (23.21%)	30	15	24.74
Moderate	19 (16.96%)	36	16	26.34
Severe	13 (11.60%)	62	19	*41.52

*statistically difference

Discussion

Dental fear; is a normal emotional reaction that occurs during dental procedures against fear stimulants. Dental anxiety on the other hand, is the concern that something terrible will happen during the dental treatment and the feeling of losing control (11).

Studies conducted on different populations reported that the frequency rate of dental fear in children is 5-28% (12). However, the probability of encountering dental fear during dental treatments in children varies between 3% and 43% depending on the populations studied (9,13-16).

Dental fear and anxiety are stated to be affected by age, gender, socioeconomic and demographic factors (17). Although there are few studies directly investigating the relationship between dental fear and anxiety and sociodemographic status, it has been reported that the relationship between dental anxiety and social class is strong (18,19). Similarly, low socioeconomic status is a part of the MIH etiology as it is one of the reasons of MIH (4). Dental fear is a common condition in children with MIH, but studies conducted on children with affected teeth showed that due to dental fear and anxiety, children often open their mouth unwillingly and over-reach to air spray during their dental examination and when an instrument is placed in their mouth in the course of dental treatment.(6) Therefore, some researchers recommend that treatments should be performed under sedation or general anesthesia.(4,6,7) The aim of this study was to evaluate the relationship between the severity of hypomineralization and dental fear which is often seen in children who were affected by MIH. Many scales have been developed to examine the subjective concept of fear in the clinic. CFSS-DS, a scale with high-validity that had previously been used in many studies (14-16) and proved to be the best scale to measure dental fear, was preferred. The total score ranged from 15 to 75. It was stated that the score between 15-25 showed no dental fear, 26-32 showed mild dental fear that can be kept under control, 33-28 showed moderate dental fear and anxiety, 38 and above showed severe dental fear and anxiety. However, there are authors who suggest that the Borderline score is between 32-38, indicating that children in that range are at risk of having dental fear and need to be studied meticulously.(9,16) The study that was conducted showed that, the total score average was 41.52 in children with severe MIH. In addition, while the total score was found to be the lowest in the control group (23.47), the average score gradually increased and the total score of severe MIH (41.52) was the highest. When the data was examined, it was concluded that dental fear increases with the severity of MIH. In a study (10) examining dental fear, the rate of the children with a score of 39 and above was 6%, while it was 9.82% in this study. This suggests that dental fear may be higher in children with MIH. When the answers given to the questions were examined, it was seen that children are afraid of injections, opening their mouth and the instruments used by dentists the most. Similar results (9, 20) were found in similar studies. However, the average values obtained in the severe MIH group were higher than those obtained in previous studies. These results confirm that dental fear and anxiety may be higher in children with MIH, and dental fear and anxiety will increase with the increasing severity of MIH.

Conclusion

The study showed that there is indeed a relationship between the severity of MIH and dental fear, and dental fear increases with the increasing MIH. However, some children do not have dental fear even though they have severe MIH. Since there are many factors in the etiology of MIH, it is necessary to determine the factor or factors causing dental fear and further studies are necessary.

Acknowledgement: The author wish to thank who helped data collection at persons in Pediatric Dental Clinic, Istanbul Medipol University Faculty of Dentistry, Istanbul, Turkey.

Conflict of Interest: The authors declare no potential conflicts of interest with respect to the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article.

Author's Contributions: CO; Research concept and design, research the literature, Collection of the Data, Statistical analyzes. CO; Revision of the article.

References

- Weerheijm KL, Duggal M, Mejàre I, Papagiannoulis L, Koch G, Martens LC, Hallonsten AL. Judgement criteria for molar incisor hypomineralisation (MIH) in epidemiologic studies: A summary of the European meeting on MIH held in Athens, 2003. Eur J Paediatr Dent 2003;4:110-113.
- Jalevik B, Klingberg G. Dental treatment, dental fear and behaviour management problems in children with severe enamel hypomineralisation of their permanent first molars. Int J Paediatr Dent 2002; 12:24–32.
- Fagrell TG, Lingström P, Olsson S, Steiniger F, Nore'n JG. Bacterial invasion of dentinal tubules beneath apparently intact but hypomineralised enamel in molar teeth with molar incisor hypomineralisation. Int J Paediatr Dent 2008; 18: 333–340.
- Lygidakis NA, Dimou G, Marinou D. Molarincisorhypomineralisation (MIH). A retrospective clinical study in Greek children. II. Possible medical aetiological factors. Eur Arch Paediatr Dent 2008;9:207-217.

dol http://dx.doi.org/10.36472/msd.v6i10.318

- Da Costa Silva CM, Jeremias F, De Souza JF, De Cassia Loiola Cordeiro R, Santos-Pinto L, Zuanon ACC. Molar incisor hypomineralization: prevalance ,severity and clinical consequences in Brazilian children. Int J Paediatr Dent. 2010;20:426-434
- Jälevik B, Norén JG, Klingberg G, Barregard L. Etiologic factors influencing the prevalence of demarcated opacities in permanent first molars in a group of Swedish children. Eur J Oral Sci. 2001;109:230-234.
- 7. Fayle SA. Molar incisor hypomineralization: restorative management. Eur J Paediatr Dent. 2003;4(3):121-126.
- Da Costa-Silva CM, Mialhe FB. Considerations for clinical management ofmolar-incisor hypomineralization: A literature review. Rev Odonto Cienc 2012;27(4):333-338.
- Klingberg G, Berggren U, Carlsson SG, Noren JG. Child dental fear: cause-related factors and clinical effects. European Journal of Oral Sciences 1995; 103: 405–412.
- ten Berge M, Hoogstraten J, Veerkamp JSJ, Prins PJM. The Dental Subscale of the Children's Fear Survey Schedule: a factor analytic study in the Netherlands. Community Dentistry and Oral Epidemiology 1998; 26: 340–343.
- Gustafsson A, Broberg A, Bodin L, Berggren U, Arnrup K. Behaviour management problems: the role of child personal characteristics. Int J Ped Dent 2010;20:242-253.
- Wogelius P, Poulsen S, Sørensen HT. Prevalence of dental anxiety and behavior management problems among six to eight years old Danish children. Acta Odontol Scand 2003;61:178-183.
- Holst A, Crossner CG. Direct ratings of acceptance of dental treatment in Swedish children. Community Dent Oral Epidemiol 1987;15:258–63.
- Chellappah NK, Vignesha H, Milgrom P, Lo GL. Prevalence of dental anxiety and fear in children in Singapore. Community Dent Oral Epidemiol 1990;18:269–71.
- Alvesalo I, Murtomaa H, Milgrom P, Honkanen A, Karjalainen M, Tay KM. The Dental Fear Survey Schedule: a study with Finnish children. Int J Paediatr Dent 1993;3:193–9.
- Milgrom P, Mancl L, King B, Weinstein P. Origins of childhood dental fear. Behav Res Ther 1995;33:313–9.
- Doğan MC, Seydaoğlu G, Uğuz S, İnanç BY. The effect of age, gender and socio-economic factors on perceived dental anxiety determined by a modified scale in children. Oral Health Prev Dent 2006;4:235-241.
- 18. Peretz B, Efrat J. Dental anxiety among young adolescent patients in Israel. Int J Paediatr Dent 2000;10:126-32.
- Wright FAC, McMurray NE, Ciebartowski J. Strategies for dentists in Victoria, Australia to manage children with anxiety or behaviour problems. J Dent Child 1980;50:223-8.
- Nakai Y, Hirakawa T, Milgrom P, Coolidge T, Heima M, Mori Y, Ishihara C, Yakushiji N, Yoshida T, Shimono T. The Children's Fear Survey Schedule– Dental Subscale in Japan. Community Dent Oral Epidemiol 2005; 33: 196–204.

Copyright © 2019 The Author(s); This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0), (CC BY NC) which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited. International journal of Medical Science and Discovery.





International Journal of Medical Science and Discovery Open Access Scientific Journal ISSN: 2148-6832 Lycia Press LONDON U.K. www.medscidiscovery.com



www.lycians.com